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|
TKC METALS

e

NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING

TO: ALL STOCKHOLDERS

Please take notice that the annual meeting of the stockholders of TKC Metals Corporation (the

'CC“'L\"-‘!\‘”"‘ for 2018 shall be held on Thursday, 25 October 2018, at 8:00 in the morning, at the
Avenue, Ortigas Center, Pasig City to

Magellan Room, 41" Floor, Discovery Suites, 25 ADB

cons:der the following

AGENDA

Call to Order
Proof of Notice of Meeting

Certification of Quorum
Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting of Stockholders

Approval of 2017 Operations and Results
Ratification of all Acts of the Board of Directors and Officers

Election of Directors
Appointment of External Auditors

Increase in Authorized Capital Stock and Conversion of Advances to Equity
Change in Principal Address

Other Matters
Adjournment

-
NIPPNIOLWLP

The Corporation has, in accordance with the By-Laws, fixed the close of business on 17
September 2018 as the record date for the determination of the stockholders entitled to notice of and to

vote at such meeting and any adjournment therefore.
Registration for those who are personally attending the meeting will start at 7:30 a.m. and end
promptly at 7:50 a.m. All stockholders who will not, are unable, or do not expect to attend the meeting in

person are encouraged to fill out, date, sign and send a proxy to the Corporation's Corporate Secretary at

2704 East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, 1605 Pasig
ceived by the Corporate Secretary on or before 19 October 2018. Proxies

City. All proxies should be re
submitted shall be validated by a Committee of Inspectors on 22 October 2018 at 10 o'clock in the
dress. For corporate stockholders, the proxies should be accompanied

morning at the aforementioned ad
by a Secretary’s Certification on the appointment of the corporation’s authorized signatory.

To avoid inconvenience in registering your attendance at the meeting, you or your proxy is
requested to bring identification paper(s) containing a photograph and signature, e.g. passport, driver's

license, etc.

City of Pasig, Metro Manila, 3 October 2018.

Very truly yours,

/ﬁ_L

orporate Secretary

2nd Floor Unit 201, W Tower Condogninium,
39th St., Bonifacio Global
Taguig City, Philippines 1634
Tel No.: (02) 864-0734; 864-0736: 840-4335
Fax No.: (02) 893-3702

Scanned by CamScanner



RATIONALE FOR AGENDA ITEMS

Agenda Item No. 4. Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting of Stockholders

Copies of the Minutes of the 27 June 2014 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting is posted in the Company’s website
and will be made available during the ASM. Stockholders will be asked to approve the Minutes of the 2014
Annual Stockholders’ Meeting, as recommended by the Board of Directors.

Agenda Item No. 5. Approval of 2017 Operations and Results

A report on the highlights of the performance of the Corporation for the year ended 31 December 2017 will be
presented to the stockholders. The same was reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors,
and have been audited by the external auditors who declared an unqualified opinion on the Audited Financial
Statements (AFS). A summary of the 2017 AFS shall also be presented to the stockholders. Stockholders, after
identifying themselves, will be given an opportunity to raise questions regarding the report on the operations
and results of the Corporation.

Agenda Item No. 6. Ratification of all Acts of the Board of Directors and Management from the date
of the last Annual Stockholders’ Meeting to the date of this meeting

All actions, proceedings and contracts entered into, as well as resolutions made and adopted by the Board of
Directors and of Management from the date of the last Stockholders’ Meeting held on 27 June 2014 to the date
of this meeting shall be presented for confirmation, approval, and ratification.

Agenda Item No. 7. Election of Directors for 2018 to 2019

The incumbent members of the Board of Directors, as reviewed, qualified and recommended by the Corporate
Governance Committee, have been nominated for re-election. Their proven expertise and qualifications based
on current regulatory standards and the Corporation’s own norms are expected to help the Company improve
its performance that will result to its stockholders’ benefit. The profiles of the Directors are further detailed in the
Corporation’s Information Statement. If elected, they shall serve as such from 7 August 2018 until their
successors shall have been duly elected and qualified.

Agenda Item No. 8. Appointment of External Auditors

The Audit Committee has pre-screened and recommended, and the Board has endorsed for consideration of
the stockholders, to re-appoint Reyes Tacandong & Co. as the Corporation's External Auditor for 2018-2019.
Reyes Tacandong & Co.is one of the leading auditing firms in the country and is duly accredited by the
Securities and Exchange Commission. The stockholders will also be requested to delegate to the Board the
authority to approve the appropriate audit fee for 2018.

Agenda Item No. 9. Increase in Authorized Capital and Conversion of Advances to Equity

At present, the authorized capital stock of the Corporation is one billion pesos (RP1,000,000,000.00) Philippine
Currency, and said capital stock is divided into one billion (1,000,000,000.00) shares with par value of one peso
(P1.00) each. The proposed increase will result in an authorized capital stock of three billion pesos
(R3,000,000,000.00) Philippine Currency, and said capital stock is divided into three billion (3,000,000,000.00)
shares with par value of one peso (RP1.00) each. The increase in authorized capital stock, supported by the
conversion of advances to equity, will put the Corporation in a better position to more effectively pursue its
operations, plans, and projects.

Agenda Item No. 10. Change in Principal Address

The Articles of Incorporation will be amended to reflect the new principal address of the Corporation, “2™ Floor,
W Tower Condominium, 39" Street, North Bonifacio Triangle, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City”.



PROXY FORM

The undersigned stockholder of TKC Metals Corporation (the “Company”) hereby appoints
or in his absence, the Chairman of the meeting, as attorney and proxy, with
power of substitution, to represent and vote all shares registered in his/her/its name as proxy of the undersigned
stockholder, at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company on 25 October 2018 and at any of the
adjournments thereof for the purpose of acting on the following matters:

1. Election of Directors.

__1.1. Vote for all nominees listed below:

1.1.1. BenC.Tiu

1.1.2. Ignatius F. Yenko

1.1.3. A. Bayani K. Tan

1.1.4. Alexander Y. Tiu

1.1.5. Prudencio C. Somera, Jr.

1.1.6. Enrico G. Valdez

1.1.7. Domingo S. Benitez, Jr.

1.1.8.  Antonio Jacob A. Elizaga

1.1.9. Victor C. Fernandez (Independent Director)
1.1.10. Vicente V. De Villa (Independent Director)
1.1.11. Pablito C. Bermundo (Independent Director)

1.2. Withhold authority for all nominees listed above
1.3. Withhold authority to vote for the nominees listed below:

2. Approval of minutes of previous Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.
___Yes__No___ Abstain

3. Approval of 2017 Annual Report.
___Yes__ No__ Abstain

4. Ratification of all acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management from date of last Stockholders’
Meeting to 25 October 2018.
___Yes__No__ Abstain

5. Election of Reyes Tacandong & Co. as external auditor.
__Yes___ _No___ Abstain

6. Approval of Increase in Authorized Capital Stock (Articles of Incorporation)
___Yes__No___ Abstain

7. Approval of Change in Principal Address (Articles of Incorporation)

____Yes__No__ Abstain

8. At their discretion, the proxies named above are authorized to vote upon such other matters as may be properly
come before the meeting.

__Yes___ _No___ Abstain

Printed Name of Stockholder

Signature of Stockholder /Authorized Signatory

Date

THIS PROXY FORM SHOULD BE RECEIVED BY THE CORPORATE SECRETARY BEFORE THE DATE SET FOR THE ANNUAL
MEETING, AS PROVIDED IN THE BY-LAWS.



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-1S

Information Statement Pursuant to Section 20
of The Securities Regulation Code

—

Check the appropriate box:
[ ] Preliminary Information Statement
[ X ] Definitive Information Statement

2 Name of Registrant as specified in its charter

TKC Metals Corporation Q/Lf* b 514/

3. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organizatioh
Metro Manila, Philippines

~

4 SEC Identification Number: A1996-10620

5 BIR Tax ldentification Code: 005-038-162-000

o

Address of Princifa| Office
Unit B1-A/C, 2" Floor, Building B, Karrivin Plaza, 2316 Chino Roces Avenue Extension,

Makati City
7. Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (632) 864-0736 / 840-4335

8. Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders:
Date: 25 October 2018

Time: 8:00a.m.
Place: Magellan Room, 41% Floor, Discovery Suites, 25 ADB Avenue, Ortigas

Center, Pasig City

9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders: 4 October 2018

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants)

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
QOutstanding (as of 3 October 2018)

Common shares 940,000,000 shares

11. Are any or all of registrant’s securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

Yes [X] No|[ ]
If so disclose name of the Exchange  : The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.
Class of securities listed - Common Shares

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE
NOT REQUESTED TO SEND US A PROXY
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders:

Date: 25 October 2018
Time: 8:00a.m.
Place: Magellan Room, 41* Floor, Discovery Suites, 25 ADB Avenue, Ortigas Center, Pasig City

The complete mailing address of the Corporation is Unit B1-A/C, 2" Floor, Building B, Karrivin Plaza,
2316 Chino Roces Avenue Extension, Makati City.

The approximate date on which the information statement is first to be sent or given to security holders is
4 October 2018.

Item 2. Dissenters’ Right of Appraisal

The Corporation Code of the Philippines, specifically Sections 42 and 81 thereof, gives to a dissenting
stockholder who votes against certain corporate actions specified by law, the right to demand payment of
the fair market value of the shares, commonly referred to as Appraisal Right.

The following are the instances provided by law when dissenting stockholders can exercise their
Appraisal Right:

1. In case any amendment to the Articles of Incorporation has the effect of changing or
restricting the rights of any stockholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in
any respect superior to those outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or
shortening the term of corporate existence;

2. In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the corporate property and assets as provided in the Corporation
Code;

3. In case the Corporation decides to invest its funds in another corporation or business

outside of its primary purpose; and
4, In case of merger or consolidation.

Under Section 82 of the Corporation Code, the appraisal right may be exercised by any stockholder who
shall have voted against the proposed corporate action, by making a written demand on the Corporation
within thirty (30) days after the date on which the vote was taken for payment of the fair value of his
shares. However, failure to make the demand within such period shall be deemed a waiver of the
appraisal right. If the proposed corporate action is implemented or effected, the Corporation shall pay to
such stockholder, upon surrender of the certificate or certificates of stock representing his shares, the fair
value thereof as of the day prior to the date on which the vote was taken, excluding any appreciation or
depreciation in anticipation of such corporate action

If within a period of sixty (60) days from the date the corporate action was approved by the stockholders,
the withdrawing stockholder and the Corporation cannot agree on the fair value of the shares, it shall be
determined and appraised by three (3) disinterested persons, one of whom shall be named by the
stockholder, another by the Corporation, and the third by the two thus chosen. The findings of the majority
of the appraisers shall be final, and their award shall be paid by the Corporation within thirty (3) days after
such award is made, provided that no payment shall be made to any dissenting stockholder unless the
Corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such payment, and that upon



payment by the Corporation of the agreed or awarded price, the stockholder shall forthwith transfer his
shares to the Corporation.

There is no matter or item to be submitted to a vote or acted upon in the annual stockholders’ meeting of
the Corporation which falls under the instances provided by law when dissenting stockholders can
exercise their appraisal right.

Item 3.

Item 4.

Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

a. No current director or officer of the Corporation, or nominee for election as directors of the
Corporation or any associate thereof, has any substantial interest, direct or indirect, by
security holdings or otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon other than the election of
directors.

b. No director or security holders have informed the Corporation, in any form, that he intends to
oppose any action to be taken by the Corporation at the meeting.

CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

The Corporation has 940,000,000 outstanding common shares as of 17 September 2018. Each
common share shall be entitled to one vote with respect to all matters to be taken up during the
annual stockholders’ meeting.

The record date for determining stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote during the annual
stockholders’ meeting is on 17 September 2018.

In the forthcoming annual stockholders' meeting, stockholders shall be entitled to elect eleven
(11) members of the Board of Directors. Each stockholder may vote such number of shares for as
many as eleven (11) persons he may choose to be elected from the list of nominees, or he may
cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of his shares
multiplied by eleven (11) shall equal, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as
many candidates as he shall see fit, provided that the total number of votes cast by him shall not
exceed the number of shares owned by him multiplied by eleven (11).

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners
(1) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

The following table shows the record and beneficial owners owning more than five percent
(5%) of the outstanding capital stock as of 30 September 2018:

Name of
Name and Beneficial
. Address of No. of Percentage
Title of Owner & - .
Record Owner . : Citizenship Shares of
Class ) . Relationship .
and Relationship ; Held Holdings
. with Record
with Issuer
Owner
Common | Star Equities, Inc.* Direct Filipino 667,000,598 70.96%
2/F JTKC Center
2155 Chino Roces




Avenue, Makati
City

Common | PCD Nominee See note Filipino 264,172,420 28.10%
Corporation**

37F Tower 1, The
Enterprise Center
6766 Ayala Avenue
corner Paseo de
Roxas, Makati City

* Star Equities, Inc. is an investment and holding company incorporated under the laws of
The Philippines. Its present Board of Directors is composed of Messrs. Ruben C. Tiu, Dexter
Y. Tiu, John Y. Tiu, Jr., Alexander Y. Tiu and Ms. Evelyn T. Lim. The shares held by Star
Equities, Inc. shall be voted or disposed of by the persons who shall be duly authorized by
the corporation for the purpose. The natural person/s that has/have the power to vote on the
shares of the Corporation shall be determined upon the submission of its proxy form to the
Company.

** PCD Nominee Corporation (“PCDNC") is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Philippine Central
Depository, Inc. (“PCD"). As stated above, the beneficial owners of such shares registered
under the name of PCDNC are PCD’s participants who hold the shares in their own behalf or
in behalf of their clients. The PCD is prohibited from voting these shares. Instead, the
participants have the power to decide how the PCD shares are to be voted.

(2) Security Ownership of Directors and Management as of 30 September 2018:

. Name of Record/ Amount and Nature of Record/
Title of Class L i ) Percentage
Beneficial Owner Beneficial Ownership
Common Tiu, Ben C. 1 Direct --
Common Yenko, Ignatius F. 1 Direct --
Common Dizon, Anthony S. 1 Direct --
Common Tan, A. Bayani K. 1 Direct --
Common Tiu Dexter Y. 1 Direct --
Common Bermundo, Pablito C. 1 Direct --
Common De Villa, Vicente V. 1 Direct --
Common Fernandez, Victor C. 1 Direct --
Common Somera, Jr., Prudencio C. 1 Direct --
Common Tiu, Alexander Y. 1 Direct --
Common Valdez, Enrico G. 1 Direct --

(3) Voting Trust Holders of 5% or more

There is no party known to the Corporation which holds any voting trust or any similar agreement
for 5% or more of the Corporation's voting securities.

(4) Changes in Control

The Corporation is not aware of any arrangement which may result in a change in control of the
Corporation.

(5) Equity ownership of foreign shareholders is 2,668,601 shares or 0.28% as of 30 September
2018.



Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers

The Corporation’s Board of Directors is responsible for the overall management of the business and
properties of the Corporation. The Board of Directors is composed of eleven (11) members, each of

whom serves for a term of one year until his successor is duly elected and qualified.

Name Position Age Citizenship Period Served

Ben C. Tiu Chairman 65 Filipino February 2007 - present
Ignatius F. Yenko Vice-Chairman 66 Filipino June 2007 — present
Anthony S. Dizon President 71 Filipino April 2007 — present

A. Bayani K. Tan Corporate Secretary/ 63 Filipino February 2007 - present

Director

Dexter Y. Tiu Treasurer/Director 46 Filipino February 2007 - present
Vicente De Villa, Jr. Independent Director 84 Filipino April 2007 — present
Pablito C. Bermundo Independent Director 75 Filipino January 2011 - present
Victor C. Fernandez Independent Director 74 Filipino January 2011 - present
Prudencio C. Somera, Jr. | Director 73 Filipino April 2007 — present
Alexander Y. Tiu Director 42 Filipino April 2007 — present
Enrico G. Valdez Director 57 Filipino February 2007 - present

Board of Directors

The following are the incumbent members of the Board of Directors who, with the exception of Messrs.
Anthony S. Dizon and Dexter Y. Tiu who have opted not to seek re-election, have likewise been
nominated for re-election to the Board for the ensuing year.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is composed of Mr. Ignatius Yenko as Chairman and
Messrs. Ben C. Tiu and Vicente V. de Villa, Jr. as members. In accordance with the Securities Regulation
Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met on
3 September 2018 and nominated Messrs. Ben C. Tiu, Ignatius F. Yenko, A. Bayani K. Tan, Vicente De
Villa, Jr., Pablito C. Bermundo, Victor C. Fernandez, Prudencio C. Somera, Jr., Alexander Y. Tiu, and
Enrico G. Valdez for re-election to the Board. Messrs. Domingo S. Benitez, Jr. and Antonio Jacob A.
Elizaga, on the other hand, were nominated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during its
meeting held on 28 September 2018.

The information on the business affiliations and experiences of the abovenamed incumbent directors and
officers, as shown below, are current and/or within the past five years:

Ben C. Tiu, Filipino, 65, is the Chairman of the Corporation. Mr. Tiu is also the President of JTKC
Equities, Inc., and Union Pacific Ace Industries, Inc. Mr. Tiu is the Chairman of The Discovery Leisure
Co., the owner of Discovery Suites Hotel, The Country Suites at Tagaytay and Discovery Shores
Boracay. He served as Chairman and CEO of iRemit, Inc. from 2001 until 2004 and as Director from May
2006 to present. He is also Executive Vice President of Hotel System Asia, Inc., JTKC Realties
Corporation and Executive Vice President and Treasurer of Aldex Realty Corporation, Inc., Treasurer of
TERA Investments, Inc. Mr. Tiu is also a Corporate Nominee in the Philippine Stock Exchange of Fidelity
Securities, Inc. and formerly the Chairman of the Board of Sterling Bank of Asia, Inc., and Vice Chairman
of the Board and Chairman of the Executive Committee of International Exchange Bank. He holds a
Masters in Business Administration from the Ateneo de Manila University and a degree in Mechanical
Engineering from Loyola Marymount University, USA.

Anthony S. Dizon, Filipino, 71, is the President of the Corporation. He is also currently the President of
Koldstor Centre Philippines, Inc. He serves as Director of JAPRL Development Corporation and SD
Management Corporation. His socio-civic activities include functioning as President of Cold Chain
Association of the Philippines, past Director of Makati Sports Club and Past President of Rotary Club of
Makati East. He graduated from the University of the East with a degree of B.S. Electrical



Engineering. He holds a Masters in Business Administration degree from De La Salle University. He also
attended the Management Development Program at the Asian Institute of Management.

Ignatius F. Yenko, Filipino, 66, is the Vice-Chairman of the Corporation. He is likewise a Director of
Sterling Bank of Asia and member of the Executive Committee, IT Committee, Nomination and
Compensation Committee and Loan Committee of the bank. He is also a board director of Leisure and
Resorts World Corporation (LRWC), a publicly listed corporation, and is a member of the Audit
Committee. He was Management Consultant for Cyan Management Corporation from July 2003 to
December 2008. He was previously First Vice-President of Philippine Long Distance Telephone
Company until his resignation in July 2003. Mr. Yenko was formerly a Vice President at The Chase
Manhattan Bank, N.A. where he worked for almost 11 years. He graduated with honors from the Ateneo
de Manila University with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics. He holds a Master in Business
Management degree from the Asian Institute of Management and was a recipient of the Claude M. Wilson
National Scholarship Grant.

A. Bayani K. Tan, 63, Filipino, is a Director and the Corporate Secretary of the Corporation (since
February 2007, Publicly-Listed). He is also a Director, Corporate Secretary or both of the following
reporting and/or listed companies: Belle Corporation (since May 1994, Publicly Listed), Coal Asia
Holdings, Inc. (since July 2012, Publicly-Listed), Discovery World Corporation (since March 2013,
Publicly-Listed), I-Remit, Inc. (since May 2007, Publicly-Listed), Pacific Online Systems Corporation
(since May 2007, Publicly-Listed), Philequity Dividend Yield Fund, Inc. (since January 2013), Philequity
Dollar Income Fund, Inc. (since March 1999), Philequity Fund, Inc. (since June 1997), Philequity Peso
Bond Fund, Inc. (since June 2000), Philequity PSE Index Fund, Inc. (since February 1999), Premium
Leisure Corporation (since December 1993, Publicly-Listed), Sterling Bank of Asia Inc. (A Savings Bank)
(since December 2006), Tagaytay Highlands International Golf Club, Inc. (since November 1993),
Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc. (since June 1997), The Country Club at Tagaytay Highlands, Inc.
(since August 1995), The Spa and Lodge at Tagaytay Highlands, Inc. (since December 1999), and
Vantage Equities, Inc. (since January 1993, Publicly-Listed). He is the Managing Partner of the law
offices of Tan Venturanza Valdez (since it was established in 1988), Managing Director/President of
Shamrock Development Corporation (since May 1988), Director of Destiny LendFund, Inc. (since
December 2005), Pascual Laboratories, Inc. (since March 2014), and Pure Energy Holdings Corporation
(since October 2016), President of Catarman Chamber Elementary School Foundation, Inc. (since August
2012), Managing Trustee of SCTan Foundation, Inc. (since 1986), Trustee and Treasurer of Rebisco
Foundation, Inc. (since April 2013) and Trustee and Corporate Secretary of St. Scholastica's Hospital,
Inc. (since February 2011).

Mr. Tan holds a Master of Laws degree from New York University (Class of 1988) and earned his
Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines (Class of 1980) where he was a member
of the Order of the Purple Feather (U.P. College of Law Honor Society) and ranked ninth in his class. Mr.
Tan passed the bar examinations in 1981 where he placed sixth. He has a Bachelor of Arts major in
Political Science degree from the San Beda College (Class of 1976) from where he graduated Class
Valedictorian and was awarded the medal for Academic Excellence.

Dexter Y. Tiu, Filipino, 46, is Treasurer and Director of the Corporation. He is the Executive Chairman
and CEO of Pure Energy Holdings Corporation. Concurrently, he is also the CEO of Pure Energy’s
subsidiaries, namely Repower Energy Development Corporation, PureWater Corp., Pure Geothermal
Inc., and Just Solar Corp. He is also the President and CEO of Philippine Power and Development
Company (established 1927), which owns historically the 3 oldest operating mini hydropower plants in the
country. He is also a director of Coal Asia Holdings, JTKC Equities, Inc. and Star Equities, Inc., Vice-
Chairman of Zhangzhou Stronghold Steel Works Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of the Company in China). He
earned his Bachelor of Science Degree in Mechanical Engineering from De La Salle University in 1993.

Alexander Y. Tiu, Filipino, 42, is a Director of the Corporation. He is President of Goodyear Steel Pipe
Corporation and Executive Vice-President of British Wire Industries Corporation and Goodway Marketing
Corporation. Mr. Tiu earned his Bachelor’'s Degree in Economics from Simon Fraser University in 1999.



Enrico G. Valdez, 57, Filipino, is a Director of the Corporation. He is a Partner of Tan Venturanza Valdez,
a professional partnership engaged in the practice of law. He finished his Bachelor of Laws Degree from
the Ateneo de Manila University in 1987. He is also a Certified Public Accountant; finished his Bachelor
of Science in Business Administration & Accountancy from the Philippine School of Business
Administration in 1983, and a Masters in Business Administration from the University of the Philippines in
1996. He served as Chairman (2015-17) of the Taxation Committee of the Inter-Pacific Bar Association,
an international association of business and commercial lawyers with a focus on the Asia-Pacific region,
and a former Director of the Tax Management Association of the Philippines.

Prudencio C. Somera, Jr., Filipino, 73, is a Director of the Corporation and with publicly listed
Philcomsat Holdings Corporation (2004-present). He was previously a Director of iVantage, Inc. (1998-
2000), Acoje Oil Exploration and Minerals Corporation (1997-1999), and Basic Energy Corporation (1997-
2008), also publicly-listed corporations. At present a columnist of The Manila Times, and previously with
the Philippine Daily Inquirer and BusinessWorld. He holds a Master of Business Administration Degree
from the University of the Philippines.

Independent Directors

During its meeting on 3 September 2018, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee endorsed the
nominations in favor of Messrs. Bermundo (by Mr. Dexter Tiu), De Villa (by Mr. A. Bayani K. Tan) and
Fernandez (by Mr. Enrico G. Valdez). Except as fellow stockholders of the Corporation, the nominees for
independent director are not related to the persons nominating them.

The nomination, pre-screening and election of independent directors were made in compliance with the
requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance and the Securities and Exchange Commission’s
Guidelines on the Nomination and Election of Independent Directors which have been adopted and made
part of the Corporation’s By-Laws.

Vicente V. de Villa, Jr., a Filipino, 84, is an Independent Director of the Corporation. He currently holds
the position of Chairman and President of VICON Realty Corporation (1972-present), Director of
Heavenly Angel Memorial Park (2006-present), EL Message Services (2006-present) and ELAD Telecom
Phils., Inc. (2006-present). He is also the Executive Director of EL Enterprises, Incorporated, EL
International Holdings (BVI) Limited (1989-present). Likewise, he is a Foreign Representative of JDP
International (USA), Central International Corporation (KOREA), NW Technologies International, Inc.
(USA) and BSI Corporate Services (ITALY). He holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree from Ateneo de
Manila, Padre Faura.

Victor C. Fernandez, Filipino, 74, is an Independent Director of the Corporation. He holds a Bachelor of
Laws degree from the University of the Philippines (Class of 1971) where he was a member of the Order
of the Purple feather (U.P. College of Law Honor Society) and ranked tenth in his class. He has a
Bachelor of Arts major in Economics degree from the University of the Philippines (Class of 1967).

Atty. Fernandez is an Independent Director of Manila Jockey Club, Inc., a publicly listed corporation, and
an Independent Trustee of SCTan Foundation. He is also a director of Destiny Fund Corporation. In the
past, he served as Deputy Ombudsman for Luzon from 2003 to 2010. He also practiced law as Partner in
the Fernandez Pacheco & Dizon Law Offices. He served as Commissioner on the Commission on Bar
Discipline of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines from 2010 to 2012 and received several awards
including the Distinguished Service Award of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines and awarded as the
Most Outstanding Commissioner of the Commission on Bar Discipline (1995 to 1997).

Pablito C. Bermundo, Filipino, 75, is an Independent Director of the Corporation. He holds a Bachelor
of Science degree in Commerce — Accounting and is a Certified Public Accountant. He is currently
serving as Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer of Texicon Agriventures Corporation. He is also
Director and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of FAAS Corporation and Director and CFO of POLARA
Corporation.

10



Mr. Bermundo served as Chief Executive Officer of Symrise, Inc., a company that is engaged in the
manufacture and marketing of flavors and fragrances. He also served as Chairman of Sicaf Scientific,
Inc., and held managerial positions in 3M Philippines as Finance Director and in Procter & Gamble
Philippines as Manager of Treasury and Banking Department. He also currently serves as Deputy District
Governor, Rotary District 3800 since 2011 and was the President of the Rotary Club of San Juan North
from 2006 to 2007.

New Nominees
Below are the profiles on the two new nominees for election to the Board, Messrs. Benitez and Elizaga.

Domingo S. Benitez, Jr.

Domingo S. Benitez, Jr., 62, Filipino, established his own companies in 2009, Domark Engineering
(Brunei) and Domark Engineering (Philippines). He was a Business Development Manager (Asia Pacific
Region) for Emech Control Pty. from 2006 to 2008. From 2005-2006, he was Project Manager National
(New Zealand) for Tyco Flow Pty. Ltd. Prior to that, he was also Business Development and Project
Manager for Beaver Company (Brunei) from 1992-2005 and National Technical Services & Product
Manager for Philippine Packings and Seals Corp from 1979-1991. Mr. Benitez holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from Far Eastern University.

Antonio Jacob A. Elizaga serves as a Director of Royal South Industry Development Corporation. He
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from the Mapua Institute of Technology.

Executive Officers

Anthony S. Dizon - President and Chief Operating Officer
A. Bayani K. Tan — Corporate Secretary
Dexter Y. Tiu - Treasurer

Wilfrido O. Gamboa, Filipino, 63, is the Head of Corporate Services and Chief Compliance Officer of
the Corporation. Before he joined the Corporation, he was president of Fabricom Realty & Development
Corporation. Previous experiences of Mr. Gamboa include fund sourcing, rehabilitation planning and debt
portfolio restructuring. He has also experiences in the real property sector with tasks including
developing new real estate projects. He graduated with a degree of Bachelor of Arts in Economics and
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from De La Salle University.

Efren A. Realeza, Jr, Filipino, 57, is the Head of Accounting Services and OIC-Chief Finance Officer of
the Corporation. Prior to joining the Corporation, he was the Audit Manager of VBP Group of
Companies-Dermpharma and Dermclinics, Triumph Development Corporation - a cement manufacturing
company with overseas operation and Ajinomoto Philippines Corporation and later as Cost Accounting
Manager. He managed also the financial performance of the following subsidiaries of APC like Flavor
Food Products International Inc., Union Hikari Fertilizer International, Inc. and Global Cebu Foods
Corporation. He graduated with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Accountancy from the Polytechnic
University of the Philippines. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Ann Margaret K. Lorenzo, Filipino, 29, is the incumbent Assistant Corporate Secretary of TKC Metals
Corporation. She is currently the Corporate Secretary of the following companies: GGO Realty Holdings,
Inc., Athena Ventures, Inc., and Galileo Software Services Inc. She is likewise the Assistant Corporate
Secretary of the following listed companies: Crown Asia Chemicals Corporation, Coal Asia Holdings, Inc.,
I-Remit, Inc., and Vantage Equities, Inc., and Assistant Corporate Secretary of the following reporting
companies: Philequity PSE Index Fund, Inc., Philequity Fund, Inc., Philequity Peso Bond Fund, Inc.,
Philequity Dollar Income Fund, Inc., and Philequity Dividend Yield Fund, Inc. She is also Assistant
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Corporate Secretary of the following private companies: Philequity Strategic Growth Fund, Inc., Philequity
Balanced Fund, Inc., Philequity Resources Fund, Inc., Philequity Foreign Currency Fixed Income Fund,
Inc.,, Aldex Realty Corporation, Oakridge Properties, Inc., Palm Concepcion Power Corporation,
Peakpower Energy, Inc., Peakpower Soccsargen, Inc., Peakpower $San Francisco, Inc., Etruscan
Resources Philippines, Inc., and Tao Mohin Resources, Inc.

Ms. Lorenzo is an Associate at Tan Venturanza Valdez. She obtained her Bachelor of Arts degree in
English Studies and Juris Doctor degree from the University of the Philippines in 2010 and 2014,
respectively. She was admitted to the Philippine bar in April 2015.

Other Officers
A. Independent Directors

Messrs. Pablito C. Bermundo, Vicente V. de Villa and Victor C. Fernandez, qualify as independent
directors of the Corporation pursuant to Rule 38 of the Implementing Rules of the Securities Regulation
Code.

In compliance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Guidelines on the
Nomination and Election of Independent Directors which have been adopted and made part of the
Corporation’s By-Laws, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted by the Corporation’s
Board of Directors composed of Mr. Ignatius Yenko as Chairman and Messrs. Ben C. Tiu and Vicente V.
de Villa, Jr. as members, in a meeting held on 3 September 2018, endorsed the respective nominations
given in favor of Messrs. Bermundo (by Mr. Dexter Tiu), De Villa (by Mr. A. Bayani K. Tan) and
Fernandez (by Mr. Enrico G. Valdez). The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has determined that
these nominees for independent directors possess all the qualifications and have none of the
disqualifications for independent directors as set forth in Rule 38 of the Implementing Rules of the
Securities Regulation Code.

The nominated independent directors are in no way related to the stockholders who nominated them.
B. Significant Employees
The Corporation has no significant employees.

C. Family Relationships

Messrs. Ben Tiu, Dexter Tiu and Alexander Tiu are siblings.
D. Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

Atty. A. Bayani K. Tan. As a result of the delay in the delivery of the facilities of the Universal Leisure
Club, Inc. (ULCI), some of its members initiated a Complaint for Estafa (1.S. No. 08K-19713) against
ULCI, the Universal Rightfield Property Holdings, Inc. and the Universal Leisure Corp., as well as their
respective officers and directors, including their former Corporate Secretary, Atty. A. Bayani K. Tan. The
Complaint was submitted for resolution in 2009 and was acted upon and dismissed by the City
Prosecutor of Manila (OCP) only on March 18, 2013. Complainants belatedly filed motion for
reconsideration for which reason, among others, the OCP denied motion on June 16, 2014. A Petition for
Review dated March 31, 2014 was filed by the Complainant before the Department of Justice (DOJ). On
August 7, 2014, Atty. Tan filed his Comment to the said Petition. In a Resolution dated April 17, 2015, the
Petition for Review was denied and the DOJ dismissed the complaint for Estafa.

As of the date of this report, to the best of the Company’s knowledge, other than as disclosed above,
there has been no occurrence of any of the following events that are material to an evaluation of the

12



ability or integrity of any Director, any nominee for election as director or executive officer of the
Company:

any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which the incumbent directors or
senior management of the Company was a general partner or executive officer, either at the time
of the bankruptcy or within five years prior to that time;

any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, pending against
any of the incumbent directors or senior management of the Company;

any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court
of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring,
suspending or otherwise limiting the involvement of any of the incumbent directors or senior
management of the Company in any type of business, securities, commodities or banking
activities; and

any finding by domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in civil action), the SEC or
comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or said
regulatory organization, that any of the incumbent Directors or senior management of the
Company has violated a securities or commodities law, and the judgment has not been reversed,
suspended or vacated.

At present, the Corporation is not a party to any pending material litigation, arbitration or other legal
proceedings, and no litigation or claim of material importance is known by Management to have been filed
against the Corporation.

E. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions/List of Parents of Corporation

The Corporation entered into the following transactions with related parties:

Date of Parties Nature Cause/Consideration
Execution
April 30, 2007 TKC and Star Agreement for Acquisition at cost of the entire interest in the

Equities, Assignment of advances of SEl in
Inc. (SEI) Advances Billions Steel International Limited
June 29, 2007 TKC and Absolute Deed of | Billions assigned all its rights and interests in
Billions Assignment of 479,997 fully paid shares in Treasure Steel
Shares (TSC) for a total of consideration of
Ps. 47,997,000.00
June 29, 2007 TKC and TSC Marketing TSC appointed TKC as the exclusive sales
Agreement and marketing channel of all its products and

gave TKC the right to enter into agreements
with third parties to carry out said purpose.
Under the Agreement, both parties
acknowledge the existing agreement
between TSC and Steel Alliance and thus,
TKC assumed all the obligations of TSC to
Steel Alliance.

F.

Disagreement with Director

None of the directors have resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors since the
date of the last annual meeting of security holders because of disagreement with the Corporation on any
matter relating to the Corporation’s operations, policies or practices.
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Item 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

The Executive Officers and Directors’ compensation for the years 2016, 2017 and 2018 are presented

below:

2016

Name and Principal Position

Salary (Annual)

Bonus

Other Annual Compensation

Ignatius F. Yenko
Vice-Chairman

Anthony S. Dizon
President and Chief Operating
Officer

Nicanor L. De la Paz
Chief Financial Officer

Wilfrido O. Gamboa
Head of Corporate Services and
Chief Compliance Officer

Efren A. Realeza Jr.
Head of Accounting Services

Aggregate Compensation of all
Above-named Officers

7,676,500

Aggregate Compensation of all
Above-named Officers and
Directors

7,676,500

2017

Name and Principal Position

Salary (Annual)

Bonus

Other Annual
Compensation

Ignatius F. Yenko
Vice-Chairman

Anthony S. Dizon
President and Chief Operating
Officer

Nicanor L. Dela Paz
Chief Financial Officer

Wilfrido O. Gamboa
Head of Corporate Services/
Chief Compliance Officer

Efren A. Realeza Jr.
Head of Accounting Services

Aggregate Compensation of all
Above-named Officers

5,336,500

Aggregate Compensation of all
Above-named Officers and
Directors

5,336,500

2018 (estimated)

Name and Principal Position

Salary (Annual)

Bonus

Other Annual
Compensation

Ignatius F. Yenko
Vice-Chairman

Anthony S. Dizon
President and Chief Operating
Officer

Wilfredo O. Gamboa
Head of Corporate Services /
Chief Compliance Officer

Efren A. Realeza Jr.
Head of Accounting Services

Aggregate Compensation of all

Above-named Officers 5,336,500
Aggregate Compensation of all

Above-named Officers and

Directors 5,336,500

Note:

Members of the Board receive per diem only.
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Except for Messrs. Ignatius Yenko and Anthony Dizon, all of the Corporation’s directors have not received
any form of compensation from inception up to present. They contributed efforts to the Corporation on a
voluntary basis.

There is no employment contract between the Corporation and any of its executive officers. In addition,
except as provided below, there are no compensatory plans or arrangements with any executive
officer/director of the Corporation that will result from the resignation, retirement or termination of such
executive officer/director or from a change-in-control in the Corporation.

Iltem 7. Independent Public Accountant

Representatives of the principal accountant (Reyes Tacandong & Co.), the Company’s external auditors
for the most recently completed fiscal year are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting to respond
to appropriate questions and will be given the opportunity to make a staternent if they so desire.

Details on the selected/recommended principal accountant and partner-in-charge for the ensuing year are
as follows:

EMMANUEL V. CLARINO

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 27455

Tax ldentification No. 102-084-004-000

BOA Accreditation No. 4782; Valid until December 31, 2018

SEC Accreditation No. 1021-AR-2 Group A; Valid until March 27, 2020
BIR Accreditation No. 08-005144-005-2017; Valid until January 13, 2020
PTR No. 6607954 issued January 3, 2018, Makati City

Reyes Tacandong & Co. audited the Company’s statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in stockholders’ equity and statement
of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2017 and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes. Their responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on their audit. The audits were conducted in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting or Financial Disclosure

Since the appointment of Reyes Tacandong & Co., there has been no change in auditor and there has
been no disagreement on accounting and financial disclosures. In compliance with SRC Rule 68 3 (b)
(iv), the assignment of Reyes, Tacandong & Co.’'s managing partner shall not exceed five (5) years.

The Corporation’s Board of Directors reviews and approves the engagement of services of the
Corporation external auditors, as recommended by the Corporation’s Audit Committee composed of
Messrs. Vicente de Villa, Jr. as Chairman, and Dexter Y. Tiu, Pablito B. Bermundo and Alexander Y. Tiu,
as members. Engagement Agreements are executed for every type of engagement, which provides for
the scope of the work, timetable, fees, engagement team, etc. for each project.

The audit and audit-related fees paid by the Corporation to RT & Co. for the last three years are as
follows:

2017 2016 2015
A. Audit and Audit-related Fees 770,000.00 770,000.00 770,000.00
1. Audit of the registrant's annual financial
statements or services that are normally 770,000.00 770,000.00 770,000.00

provided by the external auditor in connection
with the statutory and regulatory filings or
engagements.
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2. Other assurance and related services by the
external auditor that are reasonably related to
the performance of the audit or review of the
registrant’s financial statements

B. Tax fees

C. All other fees

The estimated audit fees for 2018 is R770,000

Pursuant to the requirement on Rotation of External Auditors under SEC Memorandum Circular No. 8
Series of 2003, the registrant will recommend the accounting firm of Reyes Tacandong & Co. for
reappointment at the scheduled annual meeting.

G. Issuance and Exchange of Securities

There are no matters to be taken up during the Annual Stockholders' Meeting relating to the matters
covered by Items 9 to 14.

OTHER MATTERS
Action with Respect to Reports

The Corporation will seek the approval by the stockholders of the Minutes of the previous Stockholders'
Meeting during which the following matters were taken up: (1) Call to Order, (2) Proof of Notice and
Certification of Quorum, (3) Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting of Stockholders, (4) Reports
and Presentation of Audited Financial Statements, (5) Ratification of all Acts of the Board of Directors and
Officers, (6) Election of Directors, (7) Approval of Increase of Authorized Capital Stock, (8) Approval of
Rights with Warrants Offer, (9) Amendment of Articles of Incorporation to Reflect Change in Name and
Change in Principal Address, (10) Appointment of External Auditors, (11) Other Matters and Adjournment.

Management reports will be submitted for approval by the stockholders at the meeting. Approval of the
reports will constitute approval and ratification of the acts of management for the past year.

Amendment of Charter, By-laws or Other Documents

Action is to be taken with respect to the increase in Authorized Capital Stock and Change in Principal
Address, which require amendments to the Articles of Incorporation which will be submitted to the vote of
stockholders.

At present, the authorized capital stock of the Corporation is one billion pesos (R1,000,000,000.00)
Philippine Currency, and said capital stock is divided into one billion (1,000,000,000.00) shares with par
value of one peso (P1.00) each. The increase will result in an authorized capital stock of three billion
pesos (R3,000,000,000.00) Philippine Currency, and said capital stock is divided into three billion
(3,000,000,000.00) shares with par value of one peso (RP1.00) each.

The increase in authorized capital stock, supported by the conversion of advances to equity, will put the
Corporation in a better position to more effectively pursue its operations, plans, and projects.

The Articles of Incorporation will be further amended to reflect the change in principal address of the
Corporation from “Unit B1-A/C, 2nd Floor, Building B, Karrivin Plaza, 2316 Chino Roces Avenue
Extension, Makati City” to “2nd Floor, W Tower Condominium, 39th St., North Bonifacio Triangle,
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City”.

16



Other Proposed Action
The following are to be proposed for approval during the stockholders’ meeting:

2017 Operations and Results;

Ratification of all Acts of the Board of Directors and Officers;
Election of Directors for 2018-2019;

Appointment of Reyes Tacandong & Co. as External Auditors; and
Other Matters.

arONE

The items covered with respect to the ratification of the acts of the Board of Directors and officers for the
past year up to the date of the meeting are those items entered into in the ordinary course of business,
with those of significance having been covered by appropriate disclosures such as:

1. Membership in the relevant board committees;
2. Appointment of principal officers at the Organizational Board Meeting; and
3. Approval of Financial Reports.

Management reports which summarize the acts of management for the year 2017 are included in the
Company’s Annual Report to be sent to the stockholders together with this Information Statement and
shall be submitted for approval by the stockholders at the meeting. Accordingly, approval of the Annual
Report will constitute approval and ratification of the acts of Management stated in the Management
Report during the period covered thereby.

Voting Procedures

(@) Actions to be taken at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting shall require the vote of the stockholders
representing at least a majority of the Corporation’s outstanding capital stock, except the
amendment of the Articles of Incorporation to increase authorized capital stock, which requires a
two-thirds vote of holders of outstanding shares.

(b) Two inspectors shall be appointed by the Board of Directors before or at each meeting of the
stockholders, at which an election of directors shall take place; if no such appointment shall have
been made or if the inspectors appointed by the Board of Directors refused to act or fail to attend
then the appointment shall be made by the presiding officer of the meeting.

(c) Stockholders may vote at all meetings either in person or by proxy duly given in writing in favor of
any person of their confidence and each stockholder shall be entitled to one vote for each share
of stock standing in his name in the books of the corporation; provided, however, that in the
election of Directors, each stockholder shall be entitled to cumulate his votes in the manner
provided for by law. In the forthcoming annual stockholders' meeting, stockholders shall be
entitled to elect eleven (11) members to the Board of Directors. Each stockholder may vote such
number of shares for as many as eleven (11) persons he may choose to be elected from the list
of nominees, or he may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the
number of his shares multiplied by eleven (11) shall equal, or he may distribute them on the same
principle among as many candidates as he shall see fit, provided that the total number of votes
cast by him shall not exceed the number of shares owned by him multiplied by nine

(d) The By-Laws of the Corporation is silent as to the method by which votes are to be counted. In
practice, however, the same is done by the raising of hands or viva voce. The Corporate
Secretary, as assisted by other employees of the Corporation, shall count the votes cast in the
forthcoming annual stockholders’ meeting.

(e) Upon confirmation by the inspectors that there is a mathematical impossibility for certain
nominees to be elected into office based on proxies held and votes present/represented in the
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meeting, the actual casting and counting of votes for the election of Directors may be dispensed
with.

Omitted Items

ltems 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, and 16 are not responded to in this report, the Corporation having no
intention to take any action with respect to the information required therein.

18



SIGNATURE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of our knowledge and belief, | hereby certify that the tnformat:on
set forth in this report is true, complete and correct.
This report is signed in the City of Makati, Metro Manila on 01 October 2018. '

ISSUER: TKC METALS CORPORATION

By:

ANTHONY S. DIZON
President and COO
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TKC METALS CORPORATION

PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Business Development

TKC Metals Corporation (formerly SQL*Wizard, Inc.) was organized and registered with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) on November 28, 1996. SQL was originally incorporated to engage in
computer training, consulting services and selling of software licenses and other related information
solution services. It was listed then in the Small and Medium Enterprise Board of the Philippine Stock
Exchange (PSE) on July 19, 2001.

On January 19, 2007, Star Equities, Inc. (SEI) entered into a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with the
then major shareholders of SQL*Wizard, Inc., intending the latter to be its backdoor listing vehicle for its
investment in the steel business. In line with its plan to shift its business direction to new areas, both
foreign and domestic, SQL and its shareholders decided to take advantage of the new investment
opportunities that would be brought about by the entry of SEI as an investor in SQL. On this basis, SEI
agreed to become a shareholder of SQL by initially subscribing to 240,000,000 new common shares
following the increase of the latter's capital stock. Thereafter, with the change of its primary business,
SQL was renamed TKC Metals Corporation, as approved by the SEC on February 28, 2007. Likewise,
on July 25, 2007, the PSE approved the reclassification of TKC's listing status from the SME Board to the
Second Board subject to the conditions specified in the Notice of Approval issued by the PSE. The
conditions stated in said notice specifically the minimum number of stockholders and minimum offering to
the public given its market capitalization, were complied with after the conduct of a Follow-On Offering of
shares by the Corporation which culminated with the listing of the offer shares on November 23, 2007.

Business Consolidation

In meetings held on February 9, 2007, the Board of the Corporation and its shareholders approved the
following resolutions:

(@) The amendment of the articles of incorporation, whereby:

i. The primary purpose will be changed to that of a holding company;

ii. The corporate name will be changed from “SQL *Wizard, Inc.” to “TKC Steel
Corporation”;

iii. The principal office may be changed upon the Board’s determination;

iv. A provision on the denial of pre-emptive rights will be inserted in the Seventh Article; and

V. The number of directors will be increased from 7 to 9.

(b) The increase in the Corporation’s authorized capital stock from P40.0 million, divided into 40
million shares with par value of P1.00 a share to P1.0 billion, divided into 1.0 billion common
shares with the same par value.

(c) The subscription by SEI to 240 million common shares at subscription price of P1.00 per share or
total subscription price of P240.0 million.

(d) The assignment and/or sale of all and/or substantially all the Corporation’s existing IT business
assets to a new corporation.

These amendments were approved by the SEC on February 28, 2007, except for the increase in
authorized capital stock, which was approved on April 13, 2007.

On June 22, 2007, the SEC approved the amendment to the primary purpose of the Corporation, as
follows:
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“To invest in, operate, purchase, own, hold, use, develop, lease, trade, sell, exchange, deal in, on its own
behalf or as agent or commission merchant, assign, transfer, encumber, and engage in the business of,
either directly or indirectly, smelting, fusing, shaping, rolling, casting, fabricating, extruding or otherwise
developing or processing of metals, steel or other alloys of metallic, non-metallic compounds, substances
and raw materials of every nature, kind or description, and to invest in stocks, bonds, or other evidences
of indebtedness or securities of any other corporation, domestic or foreign, whether engaged in the steel
business or otherwise; Provided, that the Corporation shall not engage in the business of an Open End
Investment Company as defined in the Investment Company Act (R.A. 2629), without first complying
with the provisions of the Revised Securities Act; Provided, Further, that it shall not act as a Broker or
Dealer of Securities.

Conformably with the change in business operations, the following transactions were consummated:
(@) Subscription of SEI into TKC

As stated above, SEI subscribed to 240.0 million common shares at P1.00 per share, out of the
increase in authorized capital stock by the Corporation. Such subscription increased the outstanding
number of common shares to 265.0 million with SEI owning 90.57% of the equity of TKC.

On April 16, 2007, SEI subscribed to an additional 440.0 million common shares, increasing its equity
interest to 680.0 million shares out of the total outstanding capital stock of 705.0 million shares
representing 96.45% ownership interest in TKC.

(b) Transfer of SEI Subsidiaries to TKC

As disclosed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, SEI intended TKC to be its vehicle for
listing of its investments in the steel business. Consistent with this direction, SEI consolidated its
interests in Treasure Steelworks (TSC) and Billions Steel International Limited (Billions) (together with
the latter's 90% interest in Zhangzhou Stronghold Steel Works Co. Ltd. (ZZS)) as follows:

i) Acquisition of Billions

On April 30, 2007, an agreement was executed whereby major shareholder, SEI, assigned all of
its interest in Billions to TKC for P 594,056,700. Billions has a 90% direct interest in ZZS. Billions
is a limited liability corporation incorporated under the laws of the Republic of Mauritius. ZZS was
incorporated under the laws of the People’s Republic of China on July 13, 2005. On January 9,
2009, Billions Steel International Limited, a corporation incorporated in Mauritius sold its entire
interest in ZZ Stronghold to Billions Steel International Limited, a corporation registered in Hong
Kong. Itimmediately began construction of its facilities thereafter. lIts first batch of manufactured
steel pipes was completed and sold in June 2007. Commercial operations of ZZS began officially
after acceptance by its customer of the first batch of steel pipes manufactured and delivered.

i) Acquisition of TSC

On June 29, 2007, SYL Holdings, Inc. and Billions (in-trust for the controlling shareholder group
of SEl) each owning 48% in TSC, collectively transferred their shareholdings consisting of
479,998 shares and 479,997 shares, respectively, with the total par value of P95,999,500.00 to

TKC on account. After execution of the Deed of Sale, TKC has 96% direct interest in Treasure.

As part of the restructuring, SEI transferred its business to TKC. TKC’s consolidated financial
statements now include the following subsidiaries:
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Country of Percentage of Ownership

Name of Subsidiary Incorporation Nature of Business Direct Indirect
Treasure Steelworks Philippines Manufacture of
Corporation (TSC) steel products 98% -
Billions Steel International Investment

Limited (Billions) Hong Kong holdings 100% -

Zhangzhou Stronghold Steel People’s Republic of Manufacture of

Works Co. Ltd. (ZZS) China or PRC steel pipes - 91%*
Campanilla Mineral

Resources, Inc. Philippines

(Campanilla)** Mineral production 70% -
*x Through Billions

*x Has not commenced commercial operations

Business of Issuer
Products

TKC is engaged in the business of manufacturing and distributing steel products primarily through its two
(2) subsidiaries, as follows:

(a) TSC

TSC was incorporated with the primary purpose of operating a smelting, melting and rolling plant,
among others. It manufactures steel billets which in turn become the raw materials of downstream
steel products such as bars, wire rods and sections.

(b) ZZS

ZZS manufactures the following steel pipes: (i) ERW and spiral welded pipes for general construction,
water transmission and structural uses; and (ii) prospectively, seamless pipes for the oil and gas
development industry. ZZS offers a wide range of specifications of steel pipes ranging from an outer
diameter of 219 mm to 1920 mm, length up to 6 meters long, and thickness from 4mm to 20mm.

Sales generated and the resulting net loss of TKC, TSC and ZZS (China) are presented below,
broken down according to major markets (in millions):

(i) Sales
Country Amount %
Philippines Ps. 0.351 0
China 363 100
(i) Net Loss
Country Amount %
Philippines Ps.783 90
China 84 10
Distribution

Steel billets produced by TSC are primarily sold to local customers. On a limited scale, TSC taps the
export market.
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Marketing of steel pipes produced by ZZS is outsourced with a marketing company based in Fujian
Province. Aside from its sales offices in Xiamen, representative offices have likewise been set up in the
cities of Fuzhou and Quanzhou. We have set up an in-house sales group to supplement effort of this
marketing company, and to focus on the export market under the direct supervision of the Assistant
General Manager. To provide sufficient reach in the international market, ZZS engages the services of
affiliate offices and trading houses in various countries like the Philippines, Indonesia, Singapore, the
Middle East and North America.

Competition
TSC

TSC has the largest installed capacity for steel billet manufacturing in the Philippines. Other
manufacturers produce billets for their own production of downstream steel products.

Top billet producers in the Philippines are
Annual Installed Capacity

(000 MT)
(&) TSC 300
(b) Bacnotan Steel Corp 300
(c) Cathay Pacific Steel Corp 290
(d) Stronghold Steel Corp 150
(e) SKK 120

7S

As the first steel producer in the Fujian Province and one of the few major steel pipe producers in
Southern China, ZZS has the geographical competitive advantage against producers from Northern
China. Our initial marketing thrust in the Chinese domestic market is focused on Fujian Province and the
neighboring province of Zhejiang. The target market for ZZS’ products can be segmented in terms of
product application. Construction and water pipes are primarily intended to supply the needs of the
Southern China region, with exports into Southeast Asian countries, such as the Philippines and
Singapore. We are even tapping the European market. On the other hand, seamless pipes are geared
toward serving the requirements of oil and gas exploration and development activities in different parts of
the world.

Raw Materials

Raw materials used to produce billets are scrap sourced from neighboring provinces in Visayas and
Mindanao. TSC buys the scrap from major scrap consolidators and their own collection networks. Scrap
is old, wasted metal such as parts of vehicles, building supplies, and surplus materials.

Spiral welded pipes are produced from hot rolled steel strip while electric resistance welded pipes are
produced from hot rolled steel coils/strips. On the other hand, seamless pipes are produced from billets
through a hot draw and extrusion process.

Customer Base

The Corporation and its subsidiaries (TSC and ZZS) are not dependent upon a single or few customers.
Transactions with Related Parties

In the regular course of its business, the Corporation engages in transactions with related parties

(stockholders and affiliates). These transactions may involve inter-company trade dealings, and the
granting of advances and paying of expenses.
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Patents and other Intellectual Property Rights

For marketing and distribution of its corrugated roofing sheets, the Corporation acquired “Philgalume” and
“Philgabond” as trademarks from the Bureau of Patents. The renewal of registration has a term of five (5)
years until January 26, 2019. Whereas the Corporation’s subsidiaries have no patents, trademarks,
copyrights, licenses, franchises, concessions and royalty agreements covering any of its products and the
marketing or distribution thereof.

Government Regulations

TKC and its subsidiaries are not currently required to secure government approval for its products and
services. Government approvals and permits, both in China and in the Philippines, are currently, and may
in the future be, required in connection with the companies’ operations.

Costs and effects of Compliance with Environmental Laws

TSC and ZZS are subject to environmental regulations in their respective jurisdictions. These regulations
mandate, among other things, the maintenance of air, noise and water quality standards. They also set
forth limitations on the generation, transportation, storage and disposal of solid and liquid hazardous
waste.

As part of its efforts to ensure compliance with environmental regulations, the Corporation rehabilitated
and upgraded the dust collection system to meet environmental standards, make it more effective and
cope with the anticipated increase in production volume resulting from new facilities.

Employees

TKC currently has 10 employees, namely: Vice-Chairman, President and Chief Operating Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, Head of Corporate Services/Compliance Officer, Chief Liaison Officer, Chief Logistic
Officer, Head of Accounting Services and three (3) Administrative Staff.

Recent Issuance of Securities Constituting an Exempt Transaction

For the year ended December 31, 2017, we have not issued any securities constituting an exempt
transaction.

Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Last
Three Years: 2017, 2016 and 2015)

a. Corporate Restructuring

The Corporation undertook a corporate restructuring which consisted of the following:

1. On 13 April 2007 and 7 June 2007, the primary business purpose was changed from
providing complete information solutions to operating and holding investments in steel
companies;

2. On 13 April 2007, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock from P40
million to R1 billion;

3. Capital Stock was increased from R25 million to 2705 million;

4, On 30 April 2007, it acquired 90% equity interest in ZZ Stronghold (ZZS), a Corporation
located in China;

5. On 29 June 2007, it acquired 96% equity interest in TSC, a Corporation located in the
Philippines.
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In addition to aforementioned Steps 1 to 5, the SEC approved the change in the corporate name from
SQL*Wizards, Inc. to TKC Steel Corporation. As mentioned earlier, the Corporation was originally
registered as SQL*Wizards, Inc. with the primary purpose of providing complete information solutions.

As disclosed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, SEI (the immediate parent Corporation)
has intended the Corporation to be a backdoor listing vehicle for its investment in the steel business.
Consistent with the provisions of Philippine Financial Reporting Standard (PFRS) 3, the acquisition of the
Corporation was accounted for as a reverse acquisition as the arrangement was for the parent
Corporation to be “acquired” by a smaller public entity as a means of obtaining a stock exchange listing.
Legally, the Corporation, as the issuing public is regarded as the parent Corporation. From an accounting
perspective, SEI is considered the “acquirer” since they have the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of the Corporation and its subsidiaries, TSC and ZZ Stronghold (ZZS).

The acquisition or transfers of Billions (together with ZZ Stronghold) and TSC were considered business
reorganization of companies under common control. Accordingly, the acquisitions or transfers were
accounted for in a manner similar to the pooling-of-interests method.

Risk Management
a. Financial Risks

The Corporation is exposed to a variety of financial risks. The Corporation’s risk management program
focuses on safeguarding shareholder value to manage unpredictability of risks and minimize potential
adverse impact on its operating performance and financial condition.

The Corporation’s Board of Directors (BOD) is directly responsible for risk management. Management
carries out risk management policies approved by the BOD. The Management identifies, evaluates
reports and monitors significant risks, and submits appropriate recommendations. The BOD approves
formal policies for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as
foreign exchange risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk arises as a result of change in exchange rates between Philippine peso and foreign
currencies. Any change will affect our foreign currency denominated accounts and transactions.

The Corporation’s foreign currency exposure primarily covers operations in PRC. Any fluctuation in the
exchange rate between the Philippine Peso and the RMB, PRC's currency, will impact the amount of our
investment and related accounts in our China subsidiary.

The Corporation regularly monitors foreign exchange rates and any trends and changes thereupon.
Measures will be adopted to protect our investment in the event there would be significant fluctuations in
the exchange rate.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Corporation may encounter difficulties in raising funds to
meet or settle its obligations at a reasonable price.

The Corporation monitors potential sources of the risk to a shortage of funds through monitoring of
financial investments and financial assets, and projected cash flows from operations. An essential part of
this strategy is the proper matching of trade receivables and trade and other payables. The Corporation’s
objectives to manage its liquidity are: a) to ensure that adequate funding is available at all times; b) to
meet commitments as they arise without incurring unnecessary costs; and c) to be able to access funding
when needed at the least possible cost.
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The Corporation also maintains a financial strategy that the scheduled principal and interest payments
are well within the Corporation’s ability to generate cash from its business operations.

Capital Management Risk

The Corporation is committed to maintaining adequate capital at all times to meet shareholders’
expectations, withstand adverse business conditions and take advantage of business opportunities.

The Corporation regularly keeps track of its capital position and assesses business conditions to ensure
early detection and determination of risks, and its consequent adverse impact. The Corporation adopts
measures, as may be deemed necessary and appropriate, to mitigate risks.

We aim to achieve acceptable level of debt-to-equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as total liabilities
divided by total equity.

Our long-term strategy is to sustain a healthy debt-to-equity ratio. As at December 31, 2017, this ratio is:

Amount
Total liabilities Ps. 5,586,730,924
Total equity -898,723,113
Debt-to-equity ratio -6.21:1

Our main sources of capital include but not limited to:

Retained earnings, where available
Current earnings

Debt

Share issues

Shareholder advances

PO T®

The Corporation seeks to generate reasonable rate of return on its capital. Corollary to this, our dividend
policy will be dictated by the level of retained earnings and ongoing business earnings.

We will access the capital market when we consider it necessary. As we grow our business, we will
retain sufficient flexibility to raise capital to support new business opportunities. We are prudent in our
capital management.

b. Operational Risks
Fluctuation of Steel Demand and Prices

The industries in which steel are used, such as the construction industry, and the demand for steel
products, are cyclical in nature. As a result, the prices at which our products are sold, both in the local
and international markets, move in accordance with the local and global steel dynamics. Furthermore,
any volatility in the steel prices may affect the normal timing of orders by customers. The volatility in steel
prices could cause the Corporation’s results of operation to vary and may have an adverse effect on the
Corporation’s business, financial position, results of operations and prospects.

Similarly, the volatility in the cost of raw materials, scrap for TSC and hot-rolled coils for ZZS, may also
cause fluctuations in the results of operations.

We closely monitor demand and price trends, both local and international markets, align our production

and sales volumes to desired inventory levels, and put in place measures to ensure that we can access
various sources of raw materials.

26



Single Production Site

Both TSC and ZZS conduct their respective manufacturing activities in single production sites, both in the
Philippines and China, respectively. Closure of the production sites, interruption or prolonged suspension
of any substantial part of the operations or any damage to, or destruction of, the facilities arising from
unexpected events or catastrophes, or other similar events would prevent the operating subsidiaries from
generating revenue. All existing facilities have been duly insured. Any new installations will likewise be
covered by appropriate insurance coverage.

Scarcity of Raw Materials

Scrap metal is an essential raw material for the production of TSC’s end-products. The supply of this raw
material is currently sourced locally. Any shortage in supply of scrap metal may adversely affect TSC's
operations. TSC is continually expanding its raw material sources to ensure a steady supply. At the same
time, we keep good business relationships with scrap consolidators.

There is no foreseeable risk of raw materials scarcity for ZZS which utilizes hot-rolled coils from slabs that
are widely available in China.

Insurance Risks

Our businesses are subject to a number of risks and hazards generally, including, but not limited to,
adverse environmental conditions, industrial accidents, labor disputes, unusual or unexpected geological
conditions, ground or slop failures, cave-ins, changes in the regulatory environment and natural
phenomena such as inclement weather conditions, floods and avalanches. Such occurrences may result
in damage to production, facilities, personal injury or death, environmental damage to properties or
properties of third parties, monetary losses, and possible legal liability.

Insurance coverage is maintained to protect against certain risks in such amounts as are considered
reasonable and appropriate.

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

TKC does not own any real or personal property other than its leasehold improvements, office fixtures,
furniture and equipment located in its principal office. TSC and ZZS lease the land where their plant
facilities are currently situated but they own the machineries and equipment.

Leases

TKC leases its main office located at 2™ Floor W Tower Condominium, 39" St., North Bonifacio Triangle,
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City. This covers a period of five (5) years which will expire on September
2019.

TSC, as an assignee of Mr. Ben Tiu, leases its billet making plant, including all the equipment and
machineries, in lligan City from Global Ispat Holdings Ltd.

The memorandum of agreement (MOA) is for 25 years starting 2005. At the expiration or earlier
termination of the term of the MOA, TSC has the option to purchase the billet plant at an amount
equivalent to its market value at the time the option is exercised. The market value shall be determined by
three (3) recognized and competent appraisers to be nominated by the parties. However, this does not
preclude the parties from arriving at an agreement and determining between them said purchase price.

In the performance of its obligations under the MOA, TSC paid the outstanding liens incurred by the

former owners and inherited by the lessor pertaining to the billet making plant amounting to 246 million in
2006.
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ZZS entered into a contractual agreement with China Merchants ZhangZhou Development Zone Co. Ltd,
wherein the lessor transferred the right to use the land located in 1M2-05 Zone |, China Merchants
Development Zone to ZZS for a period of 50 years. This is where the existing steel plant facilities of ZZS
are located.

Under the original agreement between ZZS and China Merchants Development Zone Co. Ltd., the land
has a total area of about 53.3 hectares divided into Phases I, Il and IlI.

During the first semester of 2010, China Merchants, as mandated by the Fujian Provincial Government,
made some revisions in the original contract as follows: 1) the term of the lease for Phase 1 was reduced
to forty two (42) years from fifty (50) years. ZZ Stronghold received a refund of P9.3 million (RMB 1.4
million) during the first quarter of 2010 to reflect the shorter lease term; 2) a portion of the land for Phase
2 (55,089.567 square meters out of the original 179,374.822 square meters) will no longer be delivered;
and 3) due to China Merchants’ inability to reclaim the land, Phase 3 land will no longer be delivered to
ZZ Stronghold. As a consequence of the non-delivery of a portion of Phase 2 land and the entire area of
Phase 3, the cost of leasehold rights was reduced by R114.0 million and the long term debt was reduced
to nil in 2010. ZZS has fully paid for both Phase 1 and 2 land as of the end of 2011.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
The Corporation or any of its subsidiaries is not a party to any pending material litigation, arbitration or
other legal proceedings, and no litigation or claim of material importance is known by Management to

have been filed against the Corporation.

PART Il - SECURITIES OF THE REGISTRANT

MARKET INFORMATION

The common shares of the Corporation have been listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange since 19 July
2001. Following the amendment of the articles of incorporation whereby the (a) primary purpose was
changed to that of a holding Corporation, (b) corporate name was changed from SQL*Wizard to TKC
Steel Corporation, (c) authorized capital stock was increased from 240 million (par value of 21.00 per
share) to R1 billion with the same par value, and the assignment and/or sale of all and/or substantially all
of the Corporation’s existing IT business assets in favor of a new corporation, the Corporation undertook
a FOO of 235,000,000 common shares on 23 November 2007 based on the offer price of R9.68 per
share. After the FOO was completed, the Corporation’s total issued and outstanding common shares
stood at 940,000,000 shares. The offer shares represented 25% of the Corporation’s issued and
outstanding common shares.

Presented in the table below are the high and low prices of the Corporation’s shares as traded at the PSE
for 1% quarter of 2018 and for each quarter within the last two (2) years in 2017 and 2016:

High Low
15" Quarter, 2018 1.05 1.04
Year Ended December 31, 2017
15" Quarter 1.38 1.35
2" Quarter 1.37 1.35
3" Quarter 1.28 1.22
4™ Quarter 1.19 1.18
Year Ended December 31, 2016
15" Quarter 1.39 1.24
2" Quarter 1.96 1.81
3 Quarter 1.74 1.71
4™ Quarter 1.42 1.44
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As of 2 October 2018, the Corporation’s shares are trading at 1.00 per share.

As of 25 September 2018, the Corporation’s shares are trading at the following price:

Holders of Common Equity

High 1.00
Low 0.97
Close 0.98
Ave. 0.98

As of 30 September 2018, the Corporation has a total of 940,000,000 issued and outstanding shares,

owned by 46 common shareholders.

As of 30 September 2018, the top twenty (20) shareholders and their corresponding shares and
percentage ownership of the Corporation are as follows:

RANK NAME CTZN TOTAL SHARES PERC(E/STAGE
1 Star Equities, Inc. Philippines 667,000,598 70.9575
2 PCD Nominee Corp. - Filipino Philippines 266,820,021 28.3851
3 Chuahiong, Gertim G. Philippines 2,912,000 0.3098
4 BA Investments & Holdings, Inc. Philippines 1,279,730 0.1361
5 Sio, Elsie Chua Philippines 900,000 0.0957
6 Napoles, Janet L. Philippines 300,000 0.0319
7 Uy, Francisco A. Philippines 200,000 0.0213
8 BA Securities, Inc. Philippines 120,270 0.0128
9 Hernandez, Elmer C. Philippines 100,000 0.0106
10 Ko, Michael Anthony Lee Philippines 100,000 0.0106
11 Martin, Francisca S. Philippines 90,000 0.0096
12 Enrile, William T. Philippines 50,000 0.0053
13 Bautista, Efren D. Philippines 20,000 0.0021
14 De Villa, Henrietta Philippines 20,000 0.0021
15 Chua Co Kiong, William N. Philippines 15,000 0.0016
16 Resurreccion, Antonio Philippines 10,000 0.0011
17 Insua, Jose Cesar Philippines 10,000 0.0011
18 Puno, Orpha C. Philippines 10,000 0.0011
19 Estrada, Claudia Patricia D. Philippines 6,250 0.0007
20 Evangelista, Maria Imelda C. Philippines 6,250 0.0007

Based on the records of our Stock Transfer Agent, Professional Stock Transfer, Inc., the Corporation has
29.0425% public ownership level as of 30 September 2018.

DIVIDENDS

The Corporation did not declare dividends in the past three years.

There are no known restrictions or impediments to the Corporation’s ability to pay dividends on common

equity, whether current or future.
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RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED OR EXEMPT SECURITIES, INCLUDING RECENT ISSUANCE
OF SECURITIES CONSTITUTING AN EXEMPT TRANSACTION

For the year ended 31 December 2017, we have not issued any securities constituting an exempt
transaction.

PART 1l - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

- Results of Operations

Accounts Increase Increase
In Million (Decrease) (Decrease)
Pesos) 2017 2016 2015 2017/2016 (%) 2016/2015 (%)

Revenue 364 272 381 34 % (29%)
Cost of Sales 341 328 299 1% 10%
Gross  Income o o
(Loss) 22 (56) 82 (139 %) (168%)
Operating o o
Expenses 889 362 180 146% 101%
Net Income (860) (419) (98) 105 % 328 %

Operating performance posted again a net loss for the current year due to the adverse market conditions
and the Corporation’s focus on its plant modernization and expansion program. The Corporation posted
net losses of Ps. 860 million, Ps. 419 million and Ps. 98 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively,
primarily due to lower production and sales volume coupled with lower demand and price in the market.

Despite the very competitive market conditions the total sales also went up by 34% to Ps. 364 million in
2017 compared to Ps. 272 million and Ps.381 million in 2016 and 2015 respectively. The increase in
revenue was primarily due to improved production activity and operation of ZZS with some closed
contracts in the last quarter both domestic and abroad. ZZS average selling prices of steel is lower due to
China’s existing steel supply has exceeded the demand resulting to decline in steel prices.

Due to slower production and minimal sales and marketing activity of the Group, total operating expenses
went up by 145% from Ps. 362 million in 2016 to Ps. 889 million in 2017. Significant increases were noted
in the following accounts as follows: provision for impairment loss on property, plant and equipment by
100%; utilities expense by 128%; taxes and licenses by 690%; professional fees by 780% and interest
expense by 12%.

- Financial Condition

Accounts Increase(Decrease) | Increase(Decrease)
(In Million 2017 2016 2015 2017/2016 (%) 2016/2015 (%)
Pesos)
Current 1,021 987 1,309 3% (25%)
Assets
Total Assets 4,688 5,244 5,691 (11 %) -8 %
Current 5,563 5,383 5,421 3% 1%
Liabilities
_thgl 5,593 5,414 5,452 3% 1%
Liabilities
Equity (898) (170) 239 428 % (171 %)
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Our total asset base was reduced by 11% to Ps. 4,688 million from the previous year's level of Ps. 5,244
million. The significant decrease was primarily to the 15% decrease in property, plant and equipment from
Ps. 4,012 million to Ps. 3,405 million as a result of the current provision for impairment loss for Ps. 683
million; inventories by 5% to Ps. 360 million from Ps.380 million; other current assets and prepayments by
15% from Ps. 30 million to Ps. 25 million.

Current ratio for the years 2017 and 2016 remains stable at 0.2:1 and 0.2:1 respectively while debt-to-
equity ratio is -6.18:1 in 2017 from -31.84:1 in 2016.

c. 2017 versus 2016
- Results of Operations

The Corporation registered a net loss of Ps. 860 million in 2017 compared to a net loss of Ps. 419 million
a year ago. The significant increases in net loss were brought about by the provision of impairment loss in
the property, plant and equipment of TSC. Although TSC is non-operating for the last five years, the
prospect of having for the right investors is still active as there were several groups who have visited the
plant. ZZS recovered in the last quarter and resulted in gross profit however the overall market conditions
is still unfavorable coupled with a lower steel prices in China due to higher steel supply but lower demand.
TSC as previously reported has nil operation while TKC has minimal production and sales activity
resulting to net loss of Ps.742 million and Ps. 281 million respectively.

Revenue increased by 34% to Ps. 364 million compared to a year ago of Ps. 272 million. Of the total
sales, ZZS generated Ps. 363 million while TKC recorded only Ps. 0.35 million. TSC has stop operation
since 2013 brought about by a  prolonged power crisis and the scarcity of raw material supply in
Mindanao.

The Corporation registered a gross profit of Ps. 22 million in 2017 compared to a gross loss of Ps. 56
million in 2016. Although ZZS performance slightly recovered in the last quarter, the general production
and marketing activity still depended on a lower market price and demand due to over-supply of steel
products in the China market and coupled with the nil operation of TSC, our group losses increased
significantly by 105% from Ps. 419 million to Ps. 867 million.

Operating expenses went up by Ps.527 million or 146% higher from the 2016 level of Ps. 362 million. The
major factor of increased operating expenses were in the following accounts: a) current provision for
impairment loss on property plant and equipment; utilities expense by 128%; taxes and licenses by 690%;
professional fees by 780% and interest expense by 12%.

- Financial Condition

Total assets went down by 11% to Ps. 4,688 million in 2017 from last year’s figure of Ps. 5,244 million.
The significant decrease was primarily due to the current provision for impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment for Ps. 683 million; inventories by 5% to Ps. 360 million from Ps.380 million; other current
assets and prepayments by 15% from Ps. 30 million to Ps. 25 million. The current financial conditions of
the Group were attributable significantly due to ZZS minimal operating activity and TSC’s nil production,
sales and marketing activity primarily due to prolonged power crisis and not so competitive market price
and conditions. Current assets accounted for 22% of total assets in 2017 compared to 19% in 2016
resulting in almost the same current ratio of 0.2:1 in 2017.

In 2017, total liabilities went up by 3% or Ps. 172 million from Ps. 5,414 million to Ps. 5,586 million. There
were significant increases in trade payable by 6% or Ps. 49 million from Ps. 7680 million up to Ps. 818
million; accrued expenses increased by 144% or Ps. 67 million from Ps. 47 million to Ps. 114 million;
loans payable increased by 4% or Ps. 38 million from Ps. 1,010 million to Ps. 1,048 million; and due to
related parties 1% or Ps. 37 million from Ps. 3,523 million to Ps. 3,560 million.
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Our capital base was adversely affected by the continued non-operation and slower business activity in
our two steel subsidiaries coupled with lower steel price and demand and the current provision for
impairment loss in the property, plant and equipment resulting to deficit equity of Ps. 898 million
compared to Ps. 170 million a year ago. The decline was primarily attributable to the decrease in retained
earnings as a result of the net loss for the year of Ps. 860 million although this was reduced with a
favorable currency translation adjustment of Ps. 130 million. As a result of the decline in capital base,
debt to equity ratio went down to -6.18:1 from a year ago of -31.84.

Causes for any Material Changes in the Balance Sheet Accounts:

e Cash and cash equivalents increased slightly by 11% to Ps. 34 million from Ps. 31 million a year
ago brought about by the continuing slower market activity.

e Trade and other receivable went up by Ps. 55 million or 26% from Ps. 210 to Ps. 265 million due
to last quarter closed sales contract by ZZS both domestic and abroad.

e Inventories slightly went down by Ps. 20 million or 5% from Ps. 380 million to Ps. 361 million due
to improved production and sales activity in ZZS.

e Creditable withholding and value-added taxes remain constant at Ps. 295 million respectively for
the years 2017 and 2016 primarily due to slower business activities.

e Other current assets went down by Ps. 4 million or 15% from Ps. 30 million to Ps. 25 million due
to liquidation of advances from suppliers and prepaid others.

e Property, plant and equipment went down by Ps. 607 million from Ps. 4, 012 million a year ago to
Ps. 3,405 or 15% as a result of provision of impairment loss in TSC

e Other non-current assets increased by 69% or Ps. 13 million from a year ago of Ps. 18 million to
Ps. 31 million primarily due to advances and deposits to contractors and suppliers.

e Trade and other payables went up by 12% or Ps. 105 million from Ps. 850 million to Ps. 955
million notably in trade payables by 6%; accrued expenses by 144% however there were also
significant decreases in deposits received by 100% and other payables account that offset the
increases.

e Loans payable was increased by Ps. 38 million or 4% from Ps. 1,010 million to Ps. 1,048 million
as a result of short-term renewal of credit facilities of ZZS in relation to their requirement in
production and selling activities.

e Equity dropped to negative Ps. 898 million or 428% lower from a year ago of Ps. 170 million as a
result of the net loss for the year of Ps.860 million. The group loss was primarily affected by the
provision of impairment loss in the group property, plant and equipment for Ps. 683 million
although the deficit was reduced with a favorable currency translation adjustments of Ps. 130
million.

d. 2016 versus 2015

- Results of Operations
The Corporation registered a net loss of Ps. 419 million in 2016 compared to a net loss of Ps. 98 million a
year ago. This significant increase in net loss were brought about by ZZS slowdown in operations, slower
sales activity and decline in steel prices in China due to higher steel supply but lower demand. TSC as

previously reported has nil operation while TKC has minimal production and sales activity resulting to net
loss of Ps.178 million and Ps. 22 million respectively.
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Revenue decreased by 29% to Ps. 272 million compared to a year ago of Ps. 381 million. Of the total
sales, ZZS generated Ps. 271.9 million while TKC recorded only Ps. 0.43 million. TSC has stop operation
since 2013 brought about by a  prolonged power crisis and the scarcity of raw material supply in
Mindanao.

The Corporation registered a gross loss of Ps. 56 million in 2016 compared to a gross profit of Ps. 82
million in 2015. As a result of ZZS slowdown in production and sales volume coupled with a lower market
price and demand due to over-supply of steel products in China and nil operation of TSC, our group
losses increased significantly by 328% from Ps. 98 million to Ps. 419 million.

Operating expenses went up by Ps. 182 million or 101% higher from the 2015 level of Ps. 180 million.
The major driver of increased operating expenses were in the following accounts: a) salaries and wages,
up by 7% from Ps. 48 million to Ps. 51 million; b) taxes and licenses, up by 12% from Ps. 12 million to Ps.
14 million; c) professional fees, up by 96% from Ps. 1 million to Ps. 2 million; d) inventory obsolescence,
up by 1281% from Ps. 7.7 million to Ps. 105 million; e) receivable impairment, up by 1876% from Ps. 1.5
million to Ps. 29 million; and f) other expenses, up by 146% from Ps.7.7 million to Ps. 19 million.

- Financial Condition

Total assets went down by 8% to Ps. 5,244 million in 2016 from last year’s figure of Ps. 5,691 million. The
decrease was due to reduced cash and cash equivalents by 58% or Ps. 31 million from Ps. 73 million;
inventories decreased by 20% from Ps. 478 million to Ps. 380 million; prepayments went down by 68%
from Ps.95 million to Ps. 30 million; and property, plant and equipment by about 2% or Ps.4,078 million
to Ps. 4,013 million. The current financial conditions of the Group were attributable significantly due to
TSC's nil production, sales and marketing activity primarily due to prolonged power crisis and not so
competitive market price and conditions. Current assets accounted for 19 % of total assets in 2016
compared to 23% in 2015 resulting in a slightly reduced current ratio of 0.2:1 in 2016.

In 2016, total liabilities went down by 1% or Ps. 38 million from Ps. 5,452 million to Ps. 5,414 million.
There was a significant liquidation of loans payables by 5% or Ps. 51 million from Ps. 1,061 million down
to Ps. 1,010 million; deposits received by 22% or Ps. 5 million from Ps. 24 million to Ps. 18 million; and
other payables down by 90% or Ps. 34 million from Ps. 38 million to Ps. 4 million.

Our capital base was affected by the continued non-operation and slower business activity in our two
steel subsidiaries coupled with lower steel price and demand resulting in a negative equity of Ps. 170
million compared to Ps. 239 million a year ago. The decline was primarily attributable to the decrease in
retained earnings as a result of the net loss for the year of Ps. 419 million although this was reduced with
a favorable currency translation adjustment of Ps. 9 million. As a result of the decline in capital base, debt
to equity ratio went down to -31.79:1 from a year ago of 22.83.

- Causes for any Material Changes in the Balance Sheet Accounts:

e Cash and cash equivalents fell by 58% to Ps. 31 million from Ps. 74 million a year ago brought
about by the continuing slower market activity and liquidation of local payables.

e Inventories significantly went down by Ps. 98million or 20% due to nil production and sales in
TSC.

e Creditable withholding and value-added taxes remain constant at Ps. 295 million respectively for
the years 2016 and 2015 primarily due to slower business activities.

e Other current assets went down by Ps. 65 million or 68% from Ps. 95 million to Ps. 30 million due
to liquidation of advances from suppliers by 46%; prepaid interest by 99% and prepaid others by
25%.
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e Property, plant and equipment went down by Ps. 65 million from Ps. 4, 078 million a year ago to
Ps. 4,013 or slightly 2 % as a result of slowdown in business activity.

e Other non-current assets slightly went down by 72% or Ps. 48 million from a year ago of Ps. 67
million to Ps. 18 million primarily due to Ps. 47 million allowance for impairment losses on
advances and deposits to contractors and suppliers.

e Trade and other payables went up slightly by 0.2% or Ps. 1.4 million from Ps. 849 million to Ps.
850 million notably in trade payables by 5% from Ps. 733 million to Ps. 768 million; accrued
expenses by 5% from Ps. 44 million to Ps. 47 million however there were also decreases in other
payables account that offset the increases.

e Loans payable was reduced by Ps. 51 million or 5 % from Ps. 1,061 million to Ps. 1,010 million as
a result of partial liquidation of short-term credit facilities of ZZS in relation to their minimal
production and selling activities

e Equity dropped to negative Ps. 170 million or 171 % lower from a year ago of Ps. 239 million as a
result of the net loss for the year of Ps.419 million although the loss was reduced with a favorable
currency translation adjustments of Ps. 9 million.

e. 2015 versus 2014
- Results of Operations

The Corporation significantly recovered by registering a net loss of Ps.98 million in 2015 compared to a
net loss of Ps. 231 million a year ago. This was due to ZZS renewed operation: (1) increased production
and sales volume (2) slightly lower production cost, and (3) favorable market price which resulted in a
positive gross margin of Ps. 82 million. TSC as previously reported has nil operation while TKC has
minimal production and sales activity resulting to net loss of Ps. 42 million and Ps. 29 million respectively.

Revenue increased by 34% to Ps. 381 million compared to a year ago of Ps. 284 million. Of the total
sales, ZZS generated Ps. 375 million while TKC recorded only Ps. 6 million. TSC has stop operation in
2014 brought about by a prolonged power crisis and the scarcity of raw material supply in Mindanao.

The Corporation registered a gross profit of Ps. 82 million in 2015 compared to a gross loss of Ps. 32
million in 2014. As a result of ZZS higher production and sales volume coupled with an improve market
conditions and lower production cost, our net loss was reduced significantly by 58% from Ps. 231 million
to Ps. 98 million.

Operating expenses went down by Ps. 19 million or 10% lower from the 2014 level of Ps. 198 million. The
major driver of lower operating expenses were in the following accounts: a) Finance charges, down by
9% from Ps. 79 million to Ps. 72 million; b) taxes and licenses, down by 31% from Ps. 18 million to Ps. 12
million; c) outside services, down by 33% from Ps. 11 million to Ps. 7 million; d) professional fees , down
by 72% from Ps. 4 million to Ps. 1 million; e) rental and utilities, down by 27% from Ps. 12 million to Ps. 9
million; and f) office supplies, down by 76% from Ps.1.3 million to Ps.0.3 million.

- Financial Condition

Total assets slightly went down by 1% to Ps. 5,691 million in 2015 from last year's figure of Ps. 5,773
million. The decrease was due to reduced cash equivalents by 31% or Ps. 33 million; inventories
decreased by 5% from Ps. 503 million to Ps. 478 million; prepayments went down by 8% from Ps.103
million to Ps. 95 million; and property, plant and equipment by about 1% or Ps.4,108 million to Ps. 4,078
million. The current financial conditions of the Group were attributable significantly due to TSC’s nil
production, sales and marketing activity primarily due to power crisis and not so competitive market price
and conditions. Current assets accounted for 23 % of total assets in 2015 compared to 23% in 2014
resulting in a slightly reduced current ratio of 0.2:1 in 2015.
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In 2015, total liabilities slightly went up by Ps. 4 million from Ps. 5,448 million to Ps. 5,452 million.
Although there was a significant liquidation of local payables by 10% from Ps. 947 million down to Ps. 849
million this was however offset by an increased in loans payable by 5% from Ps. 1,014 million to Ps.
1,061 million and advances from related parties went up by 2% from Ps. 3,457 million to Ps. 3,511 million.

Our capital base declined to Ps. 239 million compared to Ps. 324 million a year ago. The decline was
attributable to the decrease in retained earnings as a result of the net loss for the year of Ps. 98 million
however this was reduced with a favorable currency translation adjustment Ps. 12 million . As a result of
the decline in capital base, debt to equity ratio went up to 22.83:1 from a year ago of 16.81.

Causes for any Material Changes in the Balance Sheet Accounts:

Cash and cash equivalents fell by 31% to Ps. 74 million from Ps. 108 million a year ago brought
about by the continuing slower market activity and liquidation of local payables.

Inventories significantly went down by Ps. 24 million or 5% due to nil production and sales in
TSC.

Creditable withholding and value-added taxes slightly increased by Ps. 0.7 million or 0.2 %
primarily due to slower activities both in production and selling.

Other current assets went down by Ps. 8 million or 8% due to liquidation of prepayments,
deliveries of inventory in transit and refundable deposits.

Property, plant and equipment went down by Ps. 30 million from Ps. 4,108 million a year ago to
Ps. 4,078 or slightly 1 % as a result of slowdown in business activity.

Other non-current assets slightly went up by 6% from a year ago primarily due to advances and
deposits to contractors and suppliers which increased by Ps. 5 million.

Trade and other payables went down by Ps. 98 million or 10 % due to slowdown in operation and
partial liquidation of local and other payables.

Loans payable went up by Ps. 47 million or 5 % as a result of renewal of short-term credit
facilities of ZZS in relation to their renewed production and selling activities

Equity dropped to Ps. 239 million or 26 % lower from a year ago of Ps. 324 million as a result of
the net loss for the year of Ps. 98 million although the loss was reduced with a favorable currency
translation adjustments of Ps. 12 million.

Key Performance Indicators

Performance Ratios 2017 2016 2015
Revenue Growth (%) 34% (28 %) 34%
Gross Profit Margin (%) 6%) (21 %) 22%
Basic Loss per share 1/ (Ps. 0.90) (Ps. 0.42) (Ps. 0.10)
Current Ratio 2/ 0.2 0.9 0.2
Debt-to-Equity Ratio 3/ (6.2) (31.7) 22.8
Return on Equity 4/ (1.9 %) (4.9 %) (34.8%)

1/ Net income applicable to majority shareholders/weighted average of outstanding common

shares

2/ Total current assets/total current liabilities

3/ Total liabilities/equity

4/ Net income /total equity (average)
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g. Other Matters

e There were no known trends, demands or uncertainties that will have a material impact on the
Corporation’s liquidity. The Corporation does not anticipate any cash flow or liquidity problems
within the next twelve (12) months and is not at default or breach of any note, loan, lease or other
indebtedness or financing arrangement requiring it to make payments. No significant amounts of
trade payables have been unpaid within the stated trade terms.

e There are no known trends, or events, uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from
continuing operations nor any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that
is material to the Corporation, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

e There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationship of the Corporation with unconsolidated entities or
other persons created during the reporting period.

e There were no seasonal aspects that had a material impact on the financial condition or results of
operations of the Corporation.

e Any material commitments for capital expenditure:

The Corporation conducted a Follow-On Offering on November 23, 2007 that raised gross
proceeds of Ps. 2,275 million to finance expansion and development plans of its two (2)
subsidiaries, TSC and ZZS. These projects are on-going both in our China and Iligan plants.

e There were no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the registrant’s
continuing operations except as presented in the Management Discussion and Analysis.
— Management Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition (First
Quarter 2018)

The Parent Corporation completed a corporate restructuring which consisted of the following:

1. On 13 April 2007 and 7 June 2007, the primary business purpose was changed from
providing complete information solutions to operating and holding investments in steel
companies;

2. On 13 April 2007, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock from B40 million
to B1 billion;

3. Capital Stock was increased from B25 million to B705 million;

4, On 30 April 2007, it acquired 90% equity interest in ZZ Stronghold (ZZS), a Corporation
located in China;

5. On 29 June 2007, it acquired 96% equity interest in TSC, a Corporation located in the
Philippines.

In addition to Steps 1 to 5, above, the SEC approved the change in the corporate name from
SQL*Wizards, Inc. to TKC Steel Corporation. The Parent Corporation was originally registered as
SQL*Wizards, Inc. with the primary purpose of providing complete information solutions.

As disclosed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, SEI (the immediate parent Corporation)
intended the Corporation to be a backdoor listing vehicle for its investments in the steel business.
Consistent with the provisions of Philippine Financial Reporting Standard (PFRS) 3, the acquisition of the
Corporation was accounted for as a reverse acquisition as the arrangement was for TSC and ZZS to be
“acquired” by a smaller public entity as a means of obtaining a stock exchange listing. Legally, the
Corporation, as the issuing public entity is regarded as the parent Corporation. From an accounting
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perspective, TSC and ZZS are considered the “acquirers” since they have the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of the Corporation.

The acquisition or transfers of Billions (together with ZZ Stronghold) and TSC were considered business
reorganization of companies under common control. Accordingly, the acquisitions or transfers were
accounted for in a manner similar to the pooling-of-interests method.

The Group registered a net loss of B113 million for the three months ended March 31, 2013 versus a net
loss of B175 million for the same period last year. The Group posted a negative gross profit of 58 million
as of the first quarter of 2013 compared to the negative gross profit of P92 million for the same period in
2012. The consolidated sales of the Group decrease by 68% to P198 million. ZZS registered a sharp 83%
decline in sales for the first three months of 2013 which was partially offset by a lower production cost
resulting to a positive gross margin of B3.2 million. TSC also registered a decline in sales by 70%
compared to the same period last year due to lower sales volume by about 65%. Production cost
improves by 5% per metric ton produced as compared to the same period last year however power and
other raw materials consumption per metric ton increases by 30% and 16% respectively resulting in a
gross loss of B51 million. This was however offset by a 33% decrease in operating costs as compared to
the same period last year.

The Group’s financial condition, however, remains stable with 3.23% increase in the consolidated total
assets from B6,486 million at year-end 2012 to B6,696 million as of March 31, 2013. The Corporation
continues to invest in its property/plant/equipment which increased by 1.7% from B3,469 million at year-
end 2012 to B3,711 million which is consistent with the capital expansion and development projects both
in lligan and China.

Stockholders’ equity decreased to B952 million as against the level of B1,139 million at year-end 2012.
The decline in capital base was due to the net loss recognized for the period and the effect of currency
translation adjustment.

Total liabilities amounted to B5,743 million, an increase of B396 million or 7.4% over the December 31,
2012 level of B5,347 million. The increase in total liabilities was primarily due to a 20.2% increase in Due
to related parties and other payables.

Causes of major movements in financial statements

Balance Sheet Iltems
(June 2018 vs. December 2017)

Cash and cash equivalents — 134% increased from B34 million to P81 million

Cash and cash equivalents went up by P46 million in the normal course of day to day operation and
partial liquidation of trade receivables by B79 million.

Trade and other receivables —29% decreased from BP266 million to B187 million

Trade receivables significantly decreased by B79 million that was attributable to ZZS improved sales
activity and liquidation of trade receivable and collection in the other receivables account.

Inventories —49% increased from B360 million to B540 million

The level of inventories significantly went up by B179 million attributable to a combined increased in
factory supplies and finished goods inventory by B163 million due to improved sales activity of ZZS.
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Creditable Withholding/Input VAT — 1.57% slightly decreased from B295 million to B290 million

The amount represents input vat and tax withheld by our customers. Creditable withholding remains
constant at B69 million while Input Vat slightly decreased by B4.0 million from last year due to the low
level of local purchases as a result of slower activity in operation.

Prepayments and other current assets — 160% increased from B26 million to P66 million

The increase was due to prepaid expenses of P62 million but these were slightly offset by the liquidation
of B25 million in other advances from suppliers.

Property and equipment, net — 6.47% increased from B3,404 million to BP3,625 million

The increase of B220 million was primarily attributable to a favorable currency translation adjustment.

Trade and other payables —10% increased from B955 million to B1,056 million

The increase of B101 million in trade and other payables was attributable to increases in deposits
received for P144 million and accounts payable-others for B207 million and other payables however there
were significant liquidation in trade payable and accrued expenses for BP205 million and B64 million
respectively.

Long-term debt — Nil

Current — Nil

This account pertains to the net present value of the leasehold right on the land where the manufacturing
plant of ZZ Stronghold is situated.

Due to related parties — 0.17% increased from B3,560 to P3,566 million

There was no significant activity in the due to related accounts. This account pertains to funding and
advances from affiliates to finance the operating expenses of the group.

Equity — 25% appreciate from (B 898) million to (B672) million

Capital position improves although still in a deficit status recovered to a deficit of B672 million for the first
six months of 2018 compared to a deficit of B898 million as at year end of 2017 as a result of a favorable
currency translation adjustment of B299 million.

Income Statement Items
(YTD June 2018 vs. YTD June 2017)

Revenue/Sales — 718% increased from B47 million to 390 million

Revenue for the first six months of 2018 was significantly higher by B343 million for the same period a
year ago due to improved sales and production of ZZS by 489% and 192% respectively.

Cost of sales — 734% increased from B38 million to P319 million

Consolidated cost of sales significantly increased by B280 million that was also attributable and
comparable to ZZS significant increase in production and sales revenues.
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Other operating expense — 112% increased from B49 million to P104 million

The other operating expenses increased by B55 million as a result of improved sales and operating
activities in ZZS.

Finance cost —6% decreased from P40 million to B38 million

The net decrease in finance charges by B2 million was due to the impact of the market to market
conditions of certain accounts.

Income tax expense —1129% increased from B0.005 million to B nil million

The level of income tax was comparable in terms of nominal value both for 2017 and this year.
Key Performance Indicators:

The Group’s key performance indicators (consolidated figures) are as follow:

YTD Jun. 30, 2018 YTD Jun. 30, 2017

Revenue Growth (%) 718 % -72 %
Gross Profit Margin (%) 18 % 20.00 %
Basic Earnings per share 1/ -0.07 -0.08

As of As of

Jun. 30, 2018 December 31, 2017
Current Ratio 2/ 0.22 0.18
Debt-to-Equity Ratio 3/ -8.5 -6.22
Return on Equity (%) 4/ 9.07% -1.61%

1/ Net income applicable to majority shareholders / weighted average of outstanding common shares
2/ Total current assets / total current liabilities

3/ Total liabilities / equity

4/ Net income / total equity (average)

OTHER MATTERS

a. There were no known trends, demands or uncertainties that will have a material impact on the
Group’s liquidity. The Group does not anticipate any cash flow or liquidity problems within the next
twelve (12) months and is not at default or breach of any note, loan, lease or other indebtedness or
financing arrangement requiring it to make payments. No significant amounts of trade payables have
been unpaid within the stated trade terms.

b. There are no known trends, or events, uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to
have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from continuing
operations nor any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to
the Group, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

c. There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relationship of the Group with unconsolidated entities or other persons created
during the reporting period.

d. There were no seasonal aspects that had a material impact on the financial condition or results of
operations of the Group.
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e. Any material commitments for capital expenditure:
The Parent Company conducted a Follow-On Offering on November 23, 2007 that raised gross
proceeds of B 2,275 million to finance expansion and development plans of its two (2) subsidiaries,
Treasure Steelworks and ZZ Stronghold.

f.  There were no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the registrant’s continuing
operations except as presented in the Management Discussion and Analysis.

PART IV - MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITY HOLDERS

Please refer to the portion of this Information Statement on “Directors and Executive Officers”.

PART V - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In compliance with the initiative of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) under Memorandum
Circular No. 19, Series of 2016, the Company’s Revised Manual on Corporate Governance (the “Manual”)
was approved by the Board of Directors on 31 May 2017. The Manual is a supplement to the Company’s
Amended By-Laws.

The Company remains focused on insuring the adoption of systems and practices of good corporate
governance in enhancing value for its shareholders. Even prior to the adoption of the Manual, the Board
of Directors organized themselves into Board level committees, such as: Corporate Governance
Committee, for selection and evaluation of qualifications of directors and officers, a Compensation and
Remuneration Committee, to look into an appropriate remuneration system; and an Audit and Risk
Management Committee to review financial and accounting matters as well as oversee the Company’s
management of risk.

The Company evaluates the level of compliance of the Board of Directors and top-level management with
its Revised Manual on Corporate Governance, as well as the leading corporate governance practices of
the industry, by using the evaluation standards set by the Philippine Stock Exchange and Institute of
Corporate Directors. Through its participation in the annual Corporate Governance Disclosure Survey of
the PSE and the ICD’s yearly corporate governance initiatives, the Company is able to assess its
corporate governance performance as against best practices benchmarks.

Compliance with Rules on Corporate Governance

The Company continues to monitor compliance with the Rules on Corporate Governance issued by the
SEC and remains committed in ensuring the adoption of other systems and practices of good corporate
governance to enhance its value for its stockholders. The Integrated Annual Corporate Governance of the
Corporation was submitted to the SEC and PSE on 30 May 2018.

PART VI - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

Exhibits

Please refer to the attached audited consolidated financial statements and required supplementary
schedules of the Company as of and for the year ended 31 December 2017, which have been prepared
in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, as audited by Reyes, Tacandong & Co.
Likewise attached is the Company’s interim unaudited financial statements as of 31 March 2018.
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UNDERTAKING TO PROVIDE COPIES OF REPORTS

UPON WRITTEN REQUEST OF ANY SHAREHOLDER OF RECORD ENTITLED TO NOTICE OF AND
VOTE AT THE MEETING, THE COMPANY SHALL FURNISH SUCH SHAREHOLDER WITH A COPY
OF THE COMPANY'S INFORMATION STATEMENT (SEC FORM 20-IS), ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2017
(SEC FORM 17-A), AND QUARTERLY REPORT FOR SECOND QUARTER 2018 (SEC FORM 17-Q)
FREE OF CHARGE. ANY SUCH WRITTEN REQUEST SHALL BE ADDRESSED TO:

A. BAYANI K. TAN

THE CORPORATE SECRETARY

TKC METALS CORPORATION

2704 EAST TOWER

PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE CENTRE
EXCHANGE ROAD, ORTIGAS CENTER
PASIG CITY, METRO MANILA, PHILIPPINES

F:\data\CLIENTS\1000\2018 ASM\TKC Definitive 201S_FINAL 10042018.docx
ABKT\JCN\AMKL\JFG 1000-228
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PART I - BUSINESS AND GENERAL NFORMATION
ITEM 1 - BUSINESS !
Business Development

TKC Steel Corporation (formerly SQL*Wizard, Inc) was organized and registered with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on November 28, 1996. SQL was
originally incorporated to engage in computer training, consulting setvices and selling of
software licenses and other related information solution services. It was listed then in the
Small and Medium Enterprise Board of the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) on July 19,
2001. 3

On January 19, 2007, Star Equities, Inc. (SEI) entered into a Memorandum of Agreement
(MOA) with the then major shareholders of SQL*Wizard, Inc, intending the Jatter to be
its backdoor listing vehicle for its investment in the steel business. In line with its plan to
shift its business direction to new areas, both foreign and domestic, SQL and its
shareholders decided to take advantage of the new investment opportunities that would be
brought about by the entry of SEI as an investor in SQL. On this basis, SEI agreed to
become a shareholder of SQL by initially subscribing to 240,000,000 new common
shares following the increase of the latter’s capital stock. Thereafter, with the change of
its primary business, SQL was renamed TKC Steel Corporation, as approved by the SEC
on February 28, 2007. Likewise, on July 25, 2007, the PSE approved the reclassification
of TKC’s listing status from the SME Board to the Second Board subject to the
conditions specified in the Notice of Approval issued by the PSE. The conditions stated
in said notice specifically the minimum number of stockholders and minimum offering to
the public given its market capitalization, were complied with after the conduct of a
Follow-On Offering of shares by the Corporation which culminated with the listing of the
offer shares on November 23, 2007.

Business Consolidation

In meetings held on February 9, 2007, the Board of the Corporation and its shareholders
approved the following reselutions:

(a) The amendment of the articles of incorporation, whereby:

i. The primary purpose will be changed to that of a holding company;

ii. The corporate name will be changed from “SQL *Wizard, Inc.” to “TKC
Steel Corporation™; ‘

{ii. The principal office may be changed upon the Board’s determination;

iv. A provision on the denial of pre-emptive rights will be inserted in the
Seventh Article; and !

v. The number of directors will be increased from 7 to 9.



(b) The increase in
divided into 40

the Corporation’s authorized capital stock fi’om P40.0 million,
million shares with par value of P1.00 a share to P1.0 billion,

divided into 1.0 billion common shares with the same par value.

(¢) The subseription by SEI to 240 million common shares at sﬁbscription price of
P1.00 per share or total subscription price of P240.0 million.

(d) The assignment

and/or sale of all and/or substantially ali the Corporation’s

existing IT business assets to a new corporation.

These amendments were approved by the SEC on February 28, 2007, except for the
increase in authorized capital stock, which was approved on April 13, 2007.

On June 22, 2007, the
Corporation, as follows

exchange, deal

SEC approved the amendment to the pritﬂary purpose of the
|

, on its own behalf or as agent or commission merchant, assign,

“To invest in, {;perate, purchase, own, hold, use, develop, lease, trade, sell,

transfer, encum
smelting, fusing

developing or pr

compounds, sub

er, and engage in the business of, either directly or indirectly,
, shaping, rolling, casting, fabricating, extruding or otherwise
ocessing of metals, steel or other alloys of metallic, non-metallic
stances and raw materials of every nature, kind or description,

and 1o invest in|stocks, bonds, or other evidences of indebtedness or securities of
any other corporation, domestic or foreign, whether engaged in the steel business
or otherwise; Provided, that the Corporation shall not engage in the business of an
Open End Investment Company as defined in the Investment Company Act
(RLA. 2629), without first complying with the provisions of the Revised Securities
Act; Provided, Rurther, that it shall not act as a Broker or Dealer of Securities.

Conformably with the change in business operations, the following transactions were

consummated:

(a) Subscription of SEI

inte TKC

As stated above, SEI subscribed to 240.0 million common sharesj at P1.00 per share,
out of the increase in authorized capital stock by the Corporation, Such subscription
increased the outstanding number of common shares to 265.0 million with SEI

owning 90.57% of the equity of TKC. !

On April 16, 2007

SEI subscribed to an additional 440.0 million common shares,

increasing its equity interest to 680.0 million shares out of the total outstanding

capital stock of 705

0 million shares representing 96.45% ownership interest in TKC.




(b) Transfer of SEI Subsidiaries to TKC

As disclosed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, SEI intended TKC to
be its vehicle for listing of its investments in the steel business. Consistent with this
direction, SEI consolidated its interests in Treasure Steelworks (TSC) and Billions
Steel International Limited (Billions) (together with the latter’s 90% interest in
Zhangzhou Stronghold Steel Works Co. Ltd, (ZZS)) as follows:

i) Acquisition of Billions

On April 30, 2007, an agreement was executed whereby major shareholder, SEI,
assigned all of its interest in Billions to TKC for P 594,056,700. Billions has a 90%
direct interest in ZZ8. Billions is a limited liability corporation incorporated under
the laws of the Republic of Mauritius. ZZS was incorporated under the laws of the
People’s Republic of China on July 13, 2005. On January 9, 2009, Billions Steel
International Limited, a corporation incorporated in Mauritius sold its entire interest
in ZZ Stronghold to Billions Steel International Limited, a corporation registered in
Hong Kong. It immediately began construction of its facilities thereafter. Its first
batch of manufactured steel pipes was completed and sold in June 2007. Commercial
operations of ZZS began officially after acceptance by its customer of the first batch
of steel pipes manufactured and delivered. |

if) Acquisition of TSC

On June 29, 2007, SYL Holdings, Inc. and Billions (in-trust} for the controlling
shareholder group of SEI) each owning 48% in TSC, collectively transferred their
shareholdings consisting of 479,998 shares and 479,997 shares, respectively, with the
total par value of P95,999,500.00 to TKC on account. After execution of the Deed of
Sale, TKC has 96% direct interest in Treasure. 3

As part of the restructuring, SEI transferred its business to TKC. TKC’s consolidated
financial statements now include the following subsidiaries: ‘

Country of _Percentage of Ownership

Neme of Subsidiary Incorporation Nature of Business Direct Indirect
Treasure Steelworks Manufacture of steel !

Corporation (TSC) Philippines products } 98% -
Billions Steel International f

Limited (Billicns) Hong Kong Investment holdings | 100% -
Zhangzhou Stronghold Steel  People’s Republic of Manufacture of steel

Works Co. Ltd. (ZZ8) China or PRC pipes | - 91%*
Campantlla Mineral Resources, :

Ine. (Campanillay** Philippines Mineral production | 70% -

* Through Sillions

=% FHas not commenced commercial operations



Business of Issuer
Products

TKC is engaged in the business of manufacturing and distributing steel products
primarily through its two (2) subsidiarics, as follows: !

(a) TSC

TSC was incorporated with the primary purpose of operating a srhelting, melting and
rolling plant, among cthers. It manufactures steel billets which iin turn become the
raw materials of downstream steel products such as bars, wire rods and sections.

(b) 2Z8

778 manufactures the following steel pipes: (i) ERW and spiral welded pipes for
general construction, water transmission and structural uses; and (if) prospectively,
seamless pipes for the oil and gas development industry. ZZS offers a wide range of
specifications of steel pipes ranging from an outer diameter of 219 mm to 1920 mm,
length up to 6 meters long, and thickness from 4mm to 20mm.

Sales generated and the resulting net loss of TKC, TSC and ZZS (China) are
presented below, broken down according to major markets (in millions):

(2) Sales
Country Amount Yo
Philippines Ps. 0.351 0
China 363 100

(b) Net Loss

Country Amount %

Philippines Ps.783 90

China 34 10
Distribation

Steel billets produced by TSC are primarily sold to local customers.:On a limited scale,
TSC taps the export market. |

Marketing of steel pipes produced by ZZS is outsourced with a markéting company based
in Fujian Province. Aside from its sales offices in Xiamen, representative offices have
likewise been set up in the cities of Fuzhou and Quanzhou, We have set up an in-house



sales group to supplement effort of this marketing company, and togfocus on the export
market under the direct supervision of the Assistant General Manager. To provide
sufficient reach in the international market, ZZS engages the servicds of affiliate offices
and trading houses in various countries like the Philippines, Indonesia, Singapore, the
Middle East and North America. |

Competition
TSC

TSC has the largest installed capacity for steel billet manufacturing in the Philippines.
Other manufacturers produce billets for their own production of downstream steel
products, |

Top billet producers in the Philippines are f
Annual Installed Capacity

{000 MT)
(2) TSC 300
(b) Bacnotan Steel Corp 300
(c) Cathay Pacific Steel Corp 290
(d) Stronghold Steel Corp 150
(e) SKK 120

ZZS

As the first steel producer in the Fujian Province and one of the féw major steel pipe
producers in Southern China, ZZS has the geographical competitive advantage against
producers from Northern China. Our initial marketing thrust in the Chinese domestic
market is focused on Fujian Province and the neighboring province of Zhejiang, The
target market for ZZS' praducts can be segmented in terms of product application.
Construction and water pipes are primarily intended to supply the needs of the Southern
China region, with exports into Southeast Asian countries, such as the Philippines and
Singapore. We are even tapping the European market. On the other hand, seamless pipes
are geared toward serving the requirements of oil and gas exploration and development
activities in different parts of the world. ’

Raw Materials :
Raw materials used to produce billets are scrap sourced from neighboring provinces in
Visayas and Mindanao. TSC buys the scrap from major scrap consolidators and their own
collection networks. Scrap is old, wasted metal such as parts of vehicles, building

supplies, and surplus materials.



Spiral welded pipes are produced from hot rolled steel strip whilé electric resistance
welded pipes are produced from hot rolled steel coils/strips. On the other hand, seamiess
pipes are produced from billets through a hot draw and extrusion process.

Customer Base

The Corporation and its subsidiaries (TSC and ZZS) are not dependent upon a single or
few customers. |

Transactions with Related Parties

In the regular course of its business, the Corporation engages in transactions with related
parties (stockholders and affiliates). These transactions may involve inter-company trade
dealings, and the granting of advances and paying of expenses. :

Patents and other Intellectual Property Rights

For marketing and distribution of its corrugated roofing sheets, the Cdrporation acquired
“Philgalume” and “Philgabond” as trademarks from the Bureau of Patents, The renewal

of registration has a term of five (5) years until January 26, 2019, Whereas the
Corporation’s subsidiaries have no patents, trademarks, copyrights, liéense:s, franchises,
concessions and royalty agreements covering any of its products and the marketing or
distribution thereof. ‘

Government Regulations

TKC and its subsidiaries are not currently required to secure governrhent approval for its
products and services. Government approvals and permits, both in China and in the
Philippines, are currently, and may in the future be, required in connection with the

companies” operations.
Costs and effects of Compliance with Environmental Laws

TSC and ZZS are subject to environmental regulations in their respective jurisdictions.
These regulations mandate, among other things, the maintenance of air, noise and water
quality standards. They also set forth limitations on the generation, transportation, storage
and disposal of solid and liquid hazardous waste.

As part of its efforts to ensure compliance with environmenta! regulations, the
Corporation rehabilitated and upgraded the dust collection system fo meet environmental
standards, make it more effective and cope with the anticipated increase in production
volume resulting from new facilities. :



Employees

TKC currently has 10 employees, namely: Vice-Chairman, President and Chief Operating
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Corporate Services/Compliance Officer, Chief
Liaison Officer, Chief Logistic Officer, Head of Accounting Services and three (3)
Administrative Staff. %

Risk Management

a.

Financial Risks

The Corporation is exposed to a variety of financial risks. Tﬁe Corporation’s risk
management program focuses on safeguarding sharcholder value to manage
unpredictability of risks and minimize potential adverse impact on its operating
performance and financial condition. }

The Corporation’s Board of Directors (BOD) is directly responsible for risk
management. Management carries out risk management policies approved by the
BOD. The Management identifies, evaluates reports and monitors significant
risks, and submits appropriate recommendations. The BOD approves formal
policies for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk arises as a result of change in exchange rates between
Philippine peso and foreign currencies. Any change will affect our foreign
currency denominated accounts and transactions, :

The Corporation’s foreign currency exposure primarily covers operations in PRC,
Any fluctuation in the exchange rate between the Philippine Peso and the RMB,
PRC’s currency, will impact the amount of our investment and related accounts in

our China subsidiary.

The Corporation regularly monitors foreign exchange rates ?and any trends and
changes thereupon. Measures will be adopted to protect our investment in the
event there would be significant fluctuations in the exchange rate.

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Corpora:tion may encounter
difficulties in raising funds to meet or seitle its obligations at a reasonable price.

The Corporation monitors potential sources of the risk to a shortage of funds
through monitoring of financial investments and financial assets, and projected
cash flows from operations, An essential part of this strategy is the proper



matching of trade receivables and trade and other payab[es The Corporation’s
objectives to manage its liquidity are: a) to ensure that adequate fundmg is
available at all times; b) to meet commitments as they arise without incurring
unnecessary costs; a nd c) to be able to access funding whcn needed at the least

possible cost,

The Corporation also maintains a financial strategy that the | scheduled principal
and interest payments are well within the Corporation’s ablhty to generate cash
from its business operations.

Capital Management Risk

The Corporation is committed to maintaining adequate capltal at all times to meet
shareholders’ expectations, withstand adverse business condltlons and take
advantage of business opportunities.

The Corporation regularly keeps track of its capital position and assesses business
conditions to ensure early detection and determination of risks, and its consequent
adverse impact. The Cerporation adopts measures, as may be deemed necessary
and appropriate, to mitigate risks.

We aim to achieve acceptable level of debt-to-equity ratio. This ratio is
calculated as total liabilities divided by total equity. |

Our long-term strategy is to sustain a healthy debt-to-equity ratlo As at December
31, 2017, this ratio is:

‘ Amount
Total liabilities ' Ps, 5,586,730,924
Total equity o .898,723,113
Debt-to-equity ratio ‘ -6.21:1

Our main sources of capital include but not limited to:

a. Retained earnings, where available
b, Current earnings

¢. Debt

d. Share issues

¢. Shareholder advances

The Corporation seeks to generate reasonable rate of retum on its capital
Corollary to this, our dividend polxcy will be dictated by the level of retained
earnings and ongoing business earnings. |



We will access the capital market when we consider it necessary. As we grow our
business, we will retain sufficient flexibility to raise capital to support new
business opportunities. We are prudent in our capital management.

Operational Risks
Finctuation of Steel Demand and Prices

The industries in which steel are used, such as the construction industry, and the
demand for steel products, are cyclical in nature. As a result, the prices at which
our products are sold, both in the local and international markets, move in
accordance with the local and global steel dynamics. Furthermore, any volatility
in the steel prices may affect the normal timing of orders by customers. The
volatility in steel prices could cause the Corporation’s results of operation to vary
and may have an adverse effect on the Corporation’s business, financial position,
results of operations and prospects.

Similarly, the volatility in the cost of raw materials, scrap foaf TSC and hot-rolled
coils for ZZS, may also cause fluctuations in the results of operations.

We closely monitor demand and price trends, both local and international
markets, align our production and sales volumes to desired inventory levels, and
put in place measures to ensure that we can access various sources of raw

materials. 1
Single Production Site

Both TSC and ZZS conduct their respective manufacturing activities in single
production sites, both in the Philippines and China, respectively. Closure of the
production sites, intetruption or prolonged suspension of any substantial part of
the operations or any damage to, or destruction of, the facilities arising from
unexpected events or catastrophes, or other similar events would prevent the
operating subsidiaries from generating revenue. All existing facilities have been
duly insured. Any new installations will likewise be covered by appropriate
insurance coverage. ‘

Scarcity of Raw Materials

Scrap metal is an essential raw material for the production of TSC’s end-products.
The supply of this raw material is currently sourced locally. Any shortage in
supply of scrap metal may adversely affect TSC’s operations, TSC is contimually
expanding its raw material sources to ensure a steady supply. At the same time,
we keep good business relationships with scrap consolidators..

There is no foreseeable risk of raw materials scarcity for ZZS which utilizes hot-
rolled coils from slabs that are widely available in China.



Insurance Risks

Qur businesses are subject to a number of risks and hazards generally, including,
but not limited to, adverse environmental conditions, industrial accidents, labor
disputes, unusual or unexpected geological conditions, ground or slop failures,
cave-ins, changes in the regulatory environment and patural phenomena such as
inclement weather conditions, floods and avalanches. Such occurrences may
result in damage to production, facilities, personal injury or death, environmental
damage to properties or properties of third parties, monetary losses, and possible
legal liability. |

Insurance coverage is maintained to protect against certain risks in such amounts
as are considered reasonable and appropriate, 1

ITEM 2 - DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

TKC does not own any real or personal property other than its leasehold
improvements, office fixtures, furniture and equipment located in its principal
office. TSC and ZZS lease the land where their plant facilities are currently
situated but they own the machineries and equipment.

Leases

TKC leases its main office located at 2™ Floor W Tower Condominium, 39" St.,
North Bonifacio Triangle, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City. This covers a
period of five (5) years which will expire on September 2019.

TSC, as an assignee of Mr. Ben Tiu, leases its billet making plant, including all
the equipment and machineries, in Iligan City from Global Ispat Holdings Ltd and
Global Steglworks International, Inc. 1

The memorandum of agreement (MOA) is for 25 years starting 2006. At the
expiration or earlier termination of the term of the MOA, TSC has the option to
purchase the billet plant at an amount equivalent to its market value at the time
the option is exercised. The market value shall be determined by three (3)
recognized and competent appraisers to be nominated by the parties. However,
this does not preclude the parties from arriving at an agreement and determining
between themselves said purchase price. ;

In the performance of its obligations under the MOA, TSC paid the outstanding
liens incurred by the former owners and inherited by the lessor pertaining to the
billet making plant amounting to P46 million in 2006. ‘

ZZS entered into a contractual agreement with China Mérchants ZhangZhou
Development Zone Co., Ltd {(China Merchants), wherein the lessor transferred the



right to use the land located in 1 M2-05 Zone I, China Merchants Development
Zone to ZZS for a period of 50 years. This is where the existing steel plant
facilities of ZZS are located. |

Under the agreement between ZZS and China Merchants, the,j land has a total area
of about 53,3 hectares divided into Phases I, IT and I11.

During the first semester of 2010, China Merchants, as mandated by the Fujian
Provincial Government made revisions in the original contract as follows: 1) the
term of the lease for Phase 1 was reduced to forty two (42) years from fifty (50)
years. ZZS received a refund of £9.3 million (RMB 1.4 million) during the first
quarter of 2010 to reflect the shorter lease term; 2) a portion of the land for Phase
2 (55,089.567 square meters out of the original 179,374.822 square meters.} will
no longer be delivered; and 3) due to China Merchants® inability to reclaim the
land, Phase 3 land will no longer be delivered to ZZS. As a consequence of the
non-delivery of a portion of Phase 2 land and the entire area of Phase 3, the cost
of leasehold rights was reduced by B114.0 million and the long term debt was
reduced to nil in 2010. ZZS has fully paid for both Phase 1 and 2 of the land as of

the end of 2011.

ITEM 3- LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Corporation is not a party to any pending material litigation, arbitration or
other legal proceedings, and no litigation or claim of material importance is
known by Management to have been filed against the Company.

ITEM 4- SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECUI:IITY HOLDERS

No matter was submitted for the approval of the stockholders during the year
ended December 31, 2017, :



PART I — OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 5 - Market for Issuer’s Common Equity and Related Stockhelders Matters
Market Information |

The common shares of TKC have been listed on the Phlhpp}me Stock Exchange
since July 19, 2001. Following the amendment of the articles of incorporation
whereby the (a) primary purpose was changed to that of a holding company, (b)
corporate name was changed from SQL*Wizard to TKC Steel Corporation, ( ¢)
authorized capital stock was increased from P40 million (par value of P1.00 per
share) to P 1 billion with the same par value, and the assignment and/or sale of
all and/or substantially all of the Company’s existing IT business assets in favor
of a new corporation, TKC undertook a Follow On Offering (FOO) of
235,000,000 common shares on November 23, 2007 based on the offer price of
Ps. 9.68 per share, After the FOO was completed the Company’s total issued and
outstanding common shares stood at 940,000,000 shares. The offer shares
represented 25% of TKC’s issued and outstanding common sha:es

Presented in the table below are the high and low prices of TKC shares,

High Low

[ 1% Quarter, 2018 1.05 1.04
Year Ended December 31, 2017 }
1* Quarter 1.38 135
2™ Quarter 1.37 1.35
3™ Quarter 1.28 122
4" Quarter 1.19 1,18
Year Ended December 31, 2016
1¥ Quarter 1.39 1.24
2" Quarter 1.96 1.81
3" Quarter 1.74 171
4™ Quarter 1.42 1.44

Holders of Common Equity

As of December 31, 2017, the Corporation has a total of 940,000,000 issued and
outstanding shares, owned by 41 common shareholders. |

The top twenty (20) shareholders, and their corresponding shares and percentage
ownership of TKC are as follows:



% to Total

Name of Stockholders No. of Shares

Outstanding
1. Star Equities, Inc. 667,000,598 | 70.9575%
2, PCD Nominee Corp |
(Filipino) 266,850,021 28.3801
3. Chuahiong, Gertim G. 2,912,000 0.3098
4, BA Investments & Holdings, 0.1361
Inc. 1,279,730
5. Sio, Elsie Chua 900,000 0.0957
6. Napoles, Janet L. 300,000 0.0319
7. Uy, Francisco a. 200,000 0.0213
8. BA Securities 120,270 0.0128
9. Hernandez, Elmer C. 100,000 0.0106
10. Ko, Michael Anthony Lee 100,000 0.0106
11. Martin, Francisca A. 90,000 0.0096
12, Enrile, William T. 50,000 0.0053
13. De Villa, Hanrietta 20,000 0.0021
14. Chua Co Kiong, William 15,000 0.0016
15. Resurrecion, Antonio 10,000 0.0011
16. Insua, Jose Cesar 10,000 0.0011
17. Bstrada, Claudia Patricia 6,250 0.0007
18. Evangelista, Maria Imelda 6,250 0.0007
19. Garcia, Luningning 6,250 2.0007
20. Saplala, Victor 6,250 0.0007

Based on the records of our Stock Transfer Agent, Professional Stock Transfer,
Inc., TKC Steel Corporation has 29.0425% public ownershlp level as of March

31, 2018.

Dividends

The Corporation did not declare dividends in 2017 and 2016,

There are no known restrictions or impediments to the corporation’s ability to pay
dividends on common equity, whether current or future.

Recent Issuance of Securities Constituting an Exempt Trafnsaction

For the year ended December 31, 2017, we have not 1ssued any securities
constituting an exempt transaction.




ITEM 6 - Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations (Last Three Years: 2017, 2016 and 2015)

a. Corporate Restrueturing

The Corporation completed a corporate restructuring which consisted of the
following: 3

1. On April 13, 2607 and June 7, 2007, the primary business purpose was
changed from providing complete information solutions to operating and
holding investments in steel companies; o

2. On April 13, 2007, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital
stock from P40 million to P1 billion; %

3. Capital Stock was increased from P25 million to P705 million;

4, On April 30, 2007, it acquired 90% equity interest in ZZ Stronghold, 2
company located in China; !

5. On June 29, 2007, it acquired 96% equity interest in Treasure, a

corporation located in the Philippines. i

In addition to Steps 1 to 5, above, the SEC approved the change in the
corporate name from SQL*Wizards, Inc. to TKC Steel Corporation. The
Corporation was originally registered as SQL*Wizards, Inc with the primary
purpose of providing complete information solutions. i

As disclosed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, SEI (the
immediate parent corporation) has intended TKC to be a backdoor listing
vehicle for its investment in the steel business. Consistent with the provisions
of Philippine Financial Reporting Standard (PFRS) 3, the acquisition of TKC
was accounted for as a reverse acquisition as the arrangement was for the
parent corporation to be “acquired” by a smaller public entity as a means of
obtaining a stock exchange listing. Legally, TKC, as the issuing public is
regarded as the parent corporation. From an accounting perspective, SEX is
considered the “acquirer” since they have the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of TKC and its subsidiaries, Treasure Steelworks and
ZZ Stronghold (ZZS). |

The acquisition or transfers of Billions (together with ZZ Stronghold) and
Treasure Steelworks (TSC) were considered business reorganization of
companies under common control. Accordingly, the acquisitions or transfers
were accounted for in a manner similar to the poofing-of-interests method.



b. Financial Highlights

- Results of Operations

Accounts Incréase Increase

In Million (Decrease) {Decrease)

Pesos) 2017 2016 2015 2017/2016 (%) | 2016/2015 (%)

Revenue 364| 272 381 34 % (29%)
Cost of Sales 341 328 299 4% 10%
Gross Income ;

(Loss) 22 (56) 32 (139 %) {168%)
Operating g
Expenses 889 362 180 146% 101%
Net Income @60) | 19| (98 107.% 328 %

Operating performance posted again a net loss for the cufrent year due to the
adverse market conditions and the Corporation’s focus on its plant
modernization and expansion program. The Corporation posted net losses of
Ps. 860 million, Ps. 419 million and Ps. 98 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively, primarily due to lower production and sales volume coupled with
lower demand and price in the market. |

Despite the very competitive market conditions the total sales also went up by
34% to Ps. 364 million in 2017 compared to Ps, 272 million and Ps.381
million in 2016 and 2015 respectively. The increase in revenue was primarily
due to improved production activity and operation of ZZ3 with some closed
contracts in the last quarter both domestic and abroad. ZZS average selling
prices of steel is lower due to China’s existing steel supply has exceeded the
demand resulting to decline in steel prices. 3

Due to slower production and minimal sales and marketing activity of the
Group, total operating expenses went up by 145% from Ps. 362 million in
2016 to Ps. 889 million in 2017. Significant increase's were noted in the
following accounts as follows: provision for impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment by 100%; utilities expense by 128%; taxes and licenses
by 690%; professional fees by 780% and interest expense by 12%.




- Financial Condition

Increase{Decrease)

Accounts Increase(Decrease)
(in Million | 2017 2016 2015 2017/2016 (%) 2016/2015 (%)
Pesos)

Current 021 | 987 | 1,309 3% (25%)
Assets ‘

Total 4,688 5,244 5,601 {11 %) -8 %
Assets

Current ;

Liabilities 5,563 5,383 5,421 3% -1%
Total j

Liabilities 5,593 5,414 5,452 3% -1%
Equity (898) (170) 239 428 % (171 %)

Our total asset base was reduced by 11% to Ps. 4,688 million from the
previous year's level of Ps. 5,244 million. The significant decrease was
primarily to the 15% decrease in property, plant and equipment from Ps, 4,012
million to Ps. 3,405 million as a result of the current provision for impairment
loss for Ps. 683 million; inventories by 5% to Ps. 360 million from Ps.380
million; other current assets and prepayments by 15% from Ps. 30 million to

Ps. 25 million.

Current ratio for the years 2017 and 2016 remains stable : at 0.2:1 and 0.2:1
respectively while debt-to-equity ratio is -6.18:1 in 2017 from -31.84:1 in
2016. |

c. 2017 versus 2016

- Results of Operations

The Corporation registered a net loss of Ps. 860 million in 2017 compared to a
net loss of Ps. 419 million 2 year ago. The significant increases in net loss
were brought about by the provision of impairment loss in the property, plant
and equipment of TSC. Although TSC is non-operating for the last five years,
the prospect of having for the right investors is still active as there were
several groups who have visited the plant. ZZS3 recovered in the fast quarter
and resulted in gross profit however the overall market conditions is still
unfavourable coupled with a lower steel prices in China due to higher steel
supply but lower demand. TSC as previously reported has nil operation while



TKC has minimal production and sales activity resulting to net loss of Ps.742
million and Ps. 281 million respectively. 3

Revenue increased by 34% to Ps. 364 million compared to a year ago of Ps.
272 million. Of the total sales, ZZS generated Ps. 363 million while TKC
recorded only Ps. 0.35 million. TSC has stop operation since 2013 brought
about by a prolonged power crisis and the scarcity of raw material supply in
Mindanao. ' |

The Corporation registered a gross profit of Ps. 22 million in 2017 compared
to a gross loss of Ps. 56 miltion in 2016. Although ZZS performance slightly
recovered in the last quarter, the general production and marketing activity
still depended on a lower market price and demand due to over-supply of steel
products in the China market and coupled with the nil operation of TSC, our
group losses increased significantly by 105% from Ps. 419 million to Ps. 867
million. !

Operating expenses went up by Ps.527 million or 146% higher from the 2016
level of Ps. 362 million. The major factor of increased operating expenscs
were in the following accounts: a) current provision for impairment loss on
property plant and equipment; utilities expense by 128%; taxes and licenses
by 690%,; professional fees by 780% and interest expense by 12%.

- Financial Condition

Total assets went down by 11% to Ps. 4,688 million in 2017 from last year’s
figure of Ps. 5,244 million. The significant decrease was primarily due to the
current provision for impairment loss on property, plant and equipment for Ps.
683 million; inventories by 5% to Ps. 360 million from Ps.380 million; other
current assets and prepayments by 15% from Ps. 30 million to Ps. 25 million.
The current financial conditions of the Group were attributable significantly
due to ZZS minimal operating activity and TSC’s nil production, sales and
marketing activity primarily due to prolonged power ! crisis and not so
competitive market price and conditions. Current assets accounted for 22% of
total assets in 2017 compared to 19% in 2016 resulting in almost the same
current ratio of 0,2:1 in 2017,

In 2017, total liabilities went up by 3% or Ps. 172 million from Ps. 5,414
million to Ps. 5,586 million, There were significant increases in trade payable
by 6% or Ps. 49 million from Ps. 7680 million up to Ps. 818 million; accrued
expenses increased by 144% or Ps. 67 million from Ps. 47 million to Ps. 114
million; loans payable increased by 4% or Ps. 38 million from Ps. 1,010
million to Ps. 1,048 million; and due to related parties 1% or Ps. 37 million
from Ps. 3,523 million to Ps. 3,560 million, ‘



Our capital base was adversely affected by the continued non-operation and
slower business activity in our two steel subsidiaries coupled with lower steel
price and demand and the current provision for impairment loss in the
property, plant and equipment resulting to deficit equity iof Ps. 898 million
compared to Ps. 170 million a year ago. The decline was primarily attributable
to the decrease in retained earnings as a result of the net loss for the year of
Ps. 860 million although this was reduced with a favorable currency
translation adjustment of Ps. 130 million. As a result of the decline in capital
base, debt to cquity ratio went down to -6.18:1 from a year ago of -31.84.

- Causes for any Material Changes in the Balance Sheet Accounts:

. Cash and cash equivalents increased slightly by 11% to Ps. 34 million
from Ps. 31 million a year ago brought about by the continuing slower market
activity. !

¢ Trade and other receivable went up by Ps. 55 miilion or 26% from Ps. 210
to Ps. 265 million due to last quarter closed sales contract by ZZS both
domestic and abroad.

«  Inventories slightly went down by Ps. 20 million or 5% from Ps. 380
million to Ps. 361 million due to improved production and sales activity in

Z7Z3.,

+  Creditable withholding and value-added taxes remain constant at Ps. 295
million respectively for the years 2017 and 2016 primarily due to slower
business activities. 1

+ Other current assets went down by Ps. 4 million 01;' 15% from Ps. 30
million to Ps. 25 million due to liquidation of advances from suppliers and
prepaid others. |

Property, plant and equipment went down by Ps. 607 million from
Ps. 4, 012 million a year ago to Ps. 3,405 or 15% as a result of provision of
impairment loss in TSC *

«  Other non-current assets increased by 69% or Ps. 13 fmiilion from a year
ago of Ps. 18 million to Ps. 31 million primarily due to advances and deposits
to contractors and suppliers. 1

+  Trade and other payables went up by 12% or Ps. 105 miltion from
Ps. 850 million to Ps. 955 million notably in trade payables by 6%; acerued
expenses by 144% however there were also significant decreases in deposits
received by 100% and other payables account that offset the increases.



. Loans payable was increased by Ps. 38 million or 4% from Ps. 1,010
million to Ps. 1,048 million as a result of short-term rencwal of credit facilities
of ZZ$ in relation to their requirement in production and selling activities,

+  Equity dropped to negative Ps. 898 million or 428% lower from a year
ago of Ps. 170 million as a result of the net loss for the year of Ps.860 million.
The group loss was primarily affected by the provision of impairment loss in
the group property, plant and equipment for Ps. 683 million although the
deficit was reduced with a favorable currency translation adjustments of
Ps. 130 million.

d. 2016 versus 2015
- Results of Operations

The Corporation registered a net loss of Ps, 419 million in 2016 compared to a
net loss of Ps. 98 million a year ago. This significant increase in net loss were
brought about by ZZS slowdown in operations, slower sales activity and
decline in steel prices in China due to higher steel supply but lower demand.
TSC as previously reported has nil operation while TKC has minimal
production and sales activity resulting to net loss of Ps.178 million and Ps. 22
million respectively. 3

Revenue decreased by 29% to Ps, 272 million compared to a year ago of Ps,
381 million. Of the total sales, ZZS generated Ps. 271.9 million while TKC
recorded only Ps. 0.43 million. TSC has stop operation since 2013 brought
about by a prolonged power crisis and the scarcity of raw material supply in
Mindanao. !

The Corporation registered a gross loss of Ps. 56 million in 2016 compared to
a gross profit of Ps. 82 million in 2015. As a result of ZZ8 slowdown in
production and sales volume coupled with a lower market price and demand
due to over-supply of steel products in China and nil operation of TSC, our
group losses increased significantly by 328% from Ps. 98 million to Ps. 419
million. i

Operating expenses went up by Ps. 182 million or 101% higher from the 2015
fevel of Ps. 180 million. The major driver of increased operating expenses
were in the following accounts: a) salaries and wages, up by 7% from Ps. 48
million to Ps. 51 million; b) taxes and licenses, up by 12% from Ps. 12 million
to Ps. 14 million; ¢) professional fees, up by 96% from Ps. 1 million to Ps..2
milfion; d) inventory obsolescence , up by 1281% from Ps. 7.7 million to Ps.
105 million; €) receivable impairment, up by 1876% from Ps. 1.5 million to
Ps. 29 million; and f) other expenses, up by 146% from Ps.7.7 million to Ps.
19 million. ‘



- Financial Condition

Total assets went down by 8% to Ps. 5,244 million in 2016 from last year’s
figure of Ps. 5,691 million. The decrease was due to reduced cash and cash
equivalents by 58% or Ps. 31 million from Ps. 73 million; inventories
decreased by 20% from Ps. 478 million to Ps. 380 million; prepayments went
down by 68% from Ps.95 million to Ps, 30 million; and property, plant and
equipment by about 2% or Ps.4,078 million to Ps. 4,013 million. The current
financial conditions of the Group were attributable significantly due to TSC’s
nil production, sales and marketing activity primarily due to prolonged power
crisis and not so competitive market price and conditions, Current assets
accounted for 19 % of total assets in 2016 compared to 23% in 2015 resulting
in a slightly reduced current ratio of 0.2:1 in 2016. ‘

In 2016, total liabilities went down by 1% or Ps. 38 million from Ps, 5,452
million to Ps. 5,414 million, There was a significant liquidation of loans
payables by 5% or Ps. 51 million from Ps. 1,061 million down to Ps. 1,010
million; deposits received by 22% or Ps. 5 million from Ps. 24 million to Ps.
18 million; and other payables down by 90% or Ps. 34 million from Ps. 38
million to Ps. 4 million. !

Our capital base was affected by the continued non-operation and slower
business activity in our two steel subsidiaries coupled with lower steel price
and demand resulting in a negative equity of Ps. 170 million compared to Ps,
239 million a year ago. The decline was primarily attributable to the decrease
in retained earnings as a resukt of the net loss for the year of Ps. 419 million
although this was reduced with a favorable currency translation adjustment of
Ps. 9 million. As a result of the decline in capital base, fiebt to equity ratio
went down to -31.79:1 from a year ago of 22.83.

- Causes for any Material Changes in the Balance Sheet Accounts:

+  Cash and cash equivalents fell by 58% to Ps, 31 million from Ps. 74
million a year ago brought about by the continuing slower market activity and
liquidation of local payables. !

+  Inventories significantly went down by Ps. 98mi11i01n or 20% due to nil
production and sales in TSC. 1

"« Creditable withholding and value-added taxes remaiﬁ constant at Ps. 295
million respectively for the years 2016 and 2015 primarily due to slower
business activities.



« Other current assets went down by Ps, 65 million of' 68% from Ps, 95
million to Ps. 30 million due to liquidation of advances from suppliers by
46%; prepaid interest by 99% and prepaid others by 25 %.,

. Property, plant and equipment went down by Ps. 65 million from Ps, 4,
078 million a year ago to Ps. 4,013 or slightly 2 % as a result of slowdown in
business activity. ‘

«  Other non-current assets slightly went down by 72% or Ps. 48 million
from a year ago of Ps. 67 million to Ps. 18 million primarily due to Ps. 47
million allowance for impairment losses on advances and deposits to
cantractors and suppliers, ‘

«  Trade and other payables went up slightly by 0.2% or Ps. 1.4 million
from Ps. 849 million to Ps. 850 million notably in trade payables by 5% from
Ps. 733 million to Ps. 768 million; accrued expenses by 5% from Ps. 44
million to Ps. 47 million however there were also decreases in other payables
account that offset the increases. 3

. Loans payable was reduced by Ps. 51 million or 5 % from Ps. 1,061
million to Ps. 1,01¢ million as a result of partial liquidation of short-term
credit facilities of ZZS in relation to their minimal production and selling

activities

. Equity dropped to negative Ps. 170 million or 171 % lower from a year
ago of Ps, 239 million as a result of the net loss for the year of Ps,419 million
although the loss was reduced with a favorable currency translation
adjustments of Ps. 9 million, 3

e, 2015 versus 2014
- Results of Operations

The Corporation significantly recovered by registering a net loss of Ps.98
million in 2015 compared to a net loss of Ps, 231 million a year ago. This was
due to ZZS renewed operation: (1} increased production and sales volume
(2) slightly lower production cost, and (3) favorable market price which
resulted in a positive gross margin of Ps. 82 million, TSC as previously
reported has nil operation while TKC has minimal production and sales
activity resulting to net loss of Ps. 42 million and Ps. 29 million respectively.

Revenue increased by 34% to Ps. 381 million compared to a year ago of Ps.
184 million. OF the total sales, ZZS generated Ps. 375 million while TKC
recorded only Ps. 6 million. TSC has stop operation in 2014 brought about by
a  prolonged power crisis and the scarcity of raw material supply in

Mindanao.



The Corporation registered a gross profit of Ps. 82 millioﬁ in 2015 compared
to a gross loss of Ps, 32 million in 2014. As a result of ZZS higher production
and sales volume coupled with an improve market conditions and lower
production cost, our net Joss was reduced significantly by 58% from Ps. 231
million to Ps. 98 million, ‘

Operating expenses went down by Ps. 19 million or 10% lower from the 2014
level of Ps. 198 million. The major driver of lower operating expenses were in
the following accounts: a) Finance charges, down by 9% from Ps. 79 million
to Ps. 72 million; b) taxes and licenses, down by 31% from Ps. 18 million to
Ps. 12 million; ¢) outside services, down by 33% from Ps. 11 million to Ps. 7
million; d) professional fees , down by 72% from Ps.f4 million to Ps, 1
million; €) rental and utilities, down by 27% from Ps, 12 million to Ps. 9
million; and f) office supplies, down by 76% from Ps.1.3 million to Ps.0.3
million. ‘

- Financial Condition

Total assets slightly went down by 1% to Ps. 5,691 million in 2015 from last
year’s figure of Ps. 5,773 million. The decrease was due to reduced cash
equivalents by 31% or Ps. 33 million; inventories decreased by 5% from Ps.
503 million to Ps. 478 million; prepayments went down by 8% from Ps.103
million to Ps. 95 million; and property, plant and equipment by about 1% or
Ps.4,108 million to Ps. 4,078 million. The current financial conditions of the
Group were attributable significantly due to TSC’s nil production, sales and
marketing activity primarily due to power crisis and not so'competitive market
price and conditions. Current assets accounted for 23 % of total assets in
2015 compared to 23% in 2014 resulting in a slightly reduced current ratio of
0.2:1 in 2015, ‘

In 2015, total Liabilities slightly went up by Ps. 4 million from Ps. 5,448
million to Ps. 5,452 million. Although there was a significant liquidation of
local payables by 10% from Ps. 947 million down to Ps. 849 million this was
however offset by an increased in loans payable by 5% from Ps. 1,014 million
to Ps. 1,061 million and advances from related parties went up by 2% from Ps.
3,457 million to Ps. 3,511 million. |

Our capital base declined to Ps. 239 million compared to Ps. 324 million a
year ago. The decline was attributable to the decrease in retained earnings as a
result of the net loss for the year of Ps. 98 million however this was reduced
with a favorable currency translation adjustment Ps. 12 million . As a result
of the decline in capital base, debt to equity ratio went up to 22.83:1 from a
year ago of 16.81,



- Causes for any Material Changes in the Balance Sheet Accounts:

|
«  Cash and cash equivalents fell by 31% to Ps. 74 million from Ps. 108
million a year ago brought about by the continuing slower market activity and
liquidation of local payables. |

«  Inventories significantly went down by Ps. 24 million or 5% due to nil
production and sales in TSC. ‘

+  Creditable withholding and value-added taxes slightly increased by Ps.
0.7 million or 0.2 % primarily due to slower activities both in production and
selling. 1

«  Other current assets went down by Ps. 8 million or 8% due to liquidation
of prepayments, deliveries of inventory in transit and refundable deposits.

. Property, plant and equipment went down by Ps. 30 million from Ps.
4,108 million a year ago to Ps. 4,078 or slightly 1 % as ajresult of slowdown

in business activity.

+  Other non-current assets slightly went up by 6% from a year ago
primarily due to advances and deposits to contractors and suppliers which

increased by Ps, 5 million.

«  Trade and other payables went down by Ps. 98 million or 10 % due to
slowdown in operation and partial liquidation of local and pther payables.

»  Loans payable went up by Ps. 47 million or § % as a result of renewal
of short-term credit facilities of ZZ$ in relation to their renewed production
and selling activities !

»  Equity dropped to Ps. 239 million or 26 % lower ﬁ'ém a year ago of Ps.
324 million as a result of the net loss for the year of Ps. 98 million although
the loss was reduced with a favorable currency translation adjustments of Ps.

12 million.



f. Key Performance Indicators

Performance Ratios 2017 2016 2015
Revenue Growth (%) 34% (28 %) 34%
Gross Profit Margin (%) 6%) 21 %)’ 22%
Basic Loss per share 1/ (®s. 0.90) (Ps. 0.42) (Ps. 0.10)
Current Ratio 0.2 0.2 0.2
2/ 1

Debt-to-Equity Ratio 6.2) GLT7) | 22.8
3/ |

Retarn on Equity (1.9 %) {4.9 %), (34.8%)
4f ;

1/ Net income applicable to majority shareholders/weightejd average of

outstanding common shares
2/ Total current assets/total current liabilities

3/ Total liabilities/equity

4/ Net income /total equity (average)

g. Other Matfers

|
There were no known trends, demands or uncertainties that will have a
material impact on the Corporation’s liguidity. The Corporation does not
anticipate any cash flow or liquidity problems within the next twelve (12)
months and is not at default or breach of any note, Ioan, lease or other
indebtedness or financing arrangement requiring it to make payments. No
significant amounts of trade payables have been unpaid within the stated
trade terms. 3

There are no known trends, or events, uncertainties that have had or that
are reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable
impact on net sales/revenues/income from continuing operations nor any
events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to the Corporation, including any default or acceleration of an
obligation. i

There are no material off-balance sheet transactjions, arrangements
obligations (including contingent obligations), and other relationship of
the Corporation with unconsolidated entities or other persons created
during the reporting period. ‘

There were no seasonal aspects that had a material impact on the financial

condition or resuits of operations of the Corporation. .
|



- Any material commitments for capital expenditure:

The Corporation conducted a Follow-On Offering on November 23, 2007
that raised gross proceeds of Ps. 2, 275 million to finance expansion and
development plans of its two (2) subsidiaries, TSC and ZZS. These
projects are on-going both in our China and Iligan plants.

- There were no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise
from the registrant’s continuing operations except as presented in the
Management Discussion and Analysis. 1

ITEM 7 — Financial Statements

Please refer to the aftached audited consolidated financial statements of the
Corporation as at and for the year ended December 31, 2016 which have been
prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, as audited
by Reves Tacandong & Co. !

ITEM 8 - Changes in and Disagreement with Accountants on chcounting and
Financial Disclosure ;

Reyes Tacandong & Co. was appointed as external auditor for the years ended
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 to comply with the rotation of external
auditors every 5 years. For the years ended December 31, 2010 and prior years,
the external audit of the annual financial statements was performed by SGV &

Co.

There were no disagreements with the external auditors on any matter pertaining
to accounting and financial disclosure. ‘

PART III - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMAHON

ITEM 9 - Directors and Executive Officers

The Corporation’s Board of Directors is responsible for the overall management
of the business and assets of the Corporation. The Board of Directors is composed
of eleven (11) members, each of whom serves for a term of one (1) year until
histher successor is duly elected and qualified. ‘



Board of Directors

The following are the incumbent members of the Board of Dirjectors of the
Corporation: |

Ben C. Tiu, Filipino, 65, is the Chairman of the Corporatiori. Mr. Tiu is also the
President of JTKC Equities, Inc., and Union Pacific Ace Industries, Inc. Mr. Tiu
is the Chairman of The Discovery Leisure Co., the owner of Discovery Suites
Hote), The Country Suites at Tagaytay and Discovery ShoresBoracay. He served
as Chairman and CEO of iRemit, Inc. from 2001 until 2004 and as Director from
May 2006 to present. He is also Executive Vice President of Hotel System Asia,
Inc., JTKC Realties Corporation and Executive Vice President and Treasurer of
Aldex Realty Corporation, Inc., Treasurer of TERA Investments, Inc. Mr. Tiu is
also a Corporate Nominee in the Philippine Stock Exchange of Fidelity Securities,
Inc. and formerly the Chairman of the Board of Sterling Bank of Asia, Inc., and
Vice Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Executive Committee of
International Exchange Bank. He holds a Masters in Business Administration
from the Atenco de Manila University and a degree in Mechanical Engineering
from Loyola Marymount University, USA. 5

Antheny 8. Dizon, Filipino, 71, is the President of the Corporation. He is also
currently the President of Koldstor Centre Philippines, Inc.. He serves as Director
of JAPRL Development Corporation and SD Management Corporation. His
socio-civic activities include functioning as President of Cold Chain Association
of the Philippines, past Director of Makati Sports Club and Past President of
Rotary Club of Makati East. He graduated from the University of the East with a
degree of B.S. Electrical Engineering. He holds a Masters in Business
Administration degree from De La Salle University. He also attended the
Management Development Program at the Asian Institute of Management.

Ignatius F. Yenko, Filipino, 66, is the Vice-Chairman of the Corporation. He is
likewise a Director of Sterling Bank of Asia and member of the Executive
Committee, Audit Committee, Risk Committee, Nomination and Compensation
Committee and Loan Committee of the bank. He was Management Consultant
for Cyan Management Corporation from July 2003 to December 2008. He was
previously First Vice-President of Philippine Long Distance Telephone Company
until his resignation in July 2003, Mr. Yenko was formerly a Vice President at
The Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A. where he worked for almost 11 years. He
graduated with honors from the Ateneo de Manila University with a Bachelor of
Arts degree in Economics, He holds a Master in Business Management degree
from the Asian Institute of Management and was a recipier}t of the Claude M.

Wilson National Scholarship Grant.

A. Bayani K. Tan, Filipino, 62, is a Director and Corporaj.te Secretary of the
Corporation. He is currently a Director, Corporate Secretary or both of the
following reporting and/or listed companies: Belle Corporation (May 1994-



present), Coal Asia Holdings, Inc. (July 2012-present), Desfiny Financial Plans,
Inc. (2003-present), First Abacus Financial Holdings Corpbration (May 1994.
present), I-Remit, Inc. (May 2007-present), Pacific Online Systems Corporation
(May 2007-present), Philequity Balanced Fund, Inc. (M%arch 2010-present),
Philequity Dollar Income Fund, Inc. (March 1999-present), Philequity Foreign
Currency Fixed Income Fund, Inc. (March 2010-present), Philequity Fund, Inc.
(June 1997-present), Philequity Peso Bond Fund, Inc. (June 2000-present),
Philequity PSE Index Fund, Inc. (February 1999-present), Rhilcquily Resources
Fund, Inc. (March 2010-present), Philequity Strategic Growth Fund, Inc. (April
2008-present), Sinophil Corporation (December 1993-present),  Tagaytay
Highlands International Golf Club, Inc. (November 1993-present), Tagaytay
Midlands Gelf Club, Inc. (June 1997-present), The Country Club at Tagaytay
Highlands, Inc. (August 1995-present), The Spa and Lodge at Tagaytay
Highlands, Inc. (December 1999-present), Vantage Equities, Inc. (January 1993-
present) and Yehey! Corporation (June 2004-present). Mr Tan is also the
Corporate Secretary and a Director of Sterling Bank of Asia Ine. since December
2006. He is also a Director, Corporate Secretary, or both for the following private
companies: Destiny LendFund, Inc. (December 2005-present), Discovery World,
Inc. (March 2013 as Director, July 2003 —present as Corporate Secretary), Monte
Oro Resources & Energy, Inc. (March 2005-present) PalmiConccpcion Power
Corporation (January 2013-present), and Pharex Healtthrp. (March 2012-
present), among others, Atty, Tan is Managing Partner of th¢ law offices of Tan
Venturanza Valdez (1988 to present), Managing Director/President of Shamrock
Development Corporation (May 1988-present), President of Catarman Chamber
Elementary School Foundation, Inc. (August 2012-present) aﬁd Managing Trustee
of SCTan Foundation, Inc. (1986-present). He is currently the legal counsel of
Xavier School, Ing. 3

Atty. Tan holds a Master of Laws degree from New York University USA (Class
of 1988) and earned his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the
Philippines (Class of 1980) where he was a member of the Order of the Purple
Feather (U.P. College of Law Honor Society) and ranked ninth in his class. Atty.
Tan passed the bar examinations in 1981 where he placed sixth. He has a
Bachelor of Arts major in Political Science degree from the San Beda College
(Class of 1976) from where he graduated Class Valedictorian and was awarded
the medal for Academic Excellence. !

Dexter Y. Tiu, Filipino, 46, is Treasurer and Director of the Corporation. He is
also a director of Coal Asia Holdings, JTKC Equities, Inc. and Star Equities, Inc.,
Vice-Chairman of Zhangzhou Stronghold Steel Works Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of
the Company in China), President of Stronghold Steel Corporation, Chairman of



Pacifico Sul Mineracao Corporation and Titan Exploratién & Development
Corporation. He earned his Bachelor of Science Degree in Mechanical
Engineering from De La Salle University in 1993. ‘

Alexander Y. Tiu, Filipino, 42, is a Director of the Corporation. He is President
of Goodyear Steel Pipe Corporation and Executive Vice-President of British Wire
Industries Corporation and Goodway Marketing Corporation. Mr. Tiu eamed his
Bachelor’s Degree in Economics from Simon Fraser University in 1999.

Enrico G. Valdez, Filipino, 57, is a Director of the Corporation. He is likewise a
Director of Manta Ray Holdings, Inc,, Lion City Landholdings, Inc. and Harbor
Holdings Company, Inc. and Corporate Secretary of TBWA Santiago Mangada
Puno Advertising, Inc. and Jan De Nul (Phils.), Inc. He is a Partner of Tan
Venturanza Valdez and Treasurer of T & V Realty Holdings Inc. He took up his
Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration from the Philippine
School of Business Administration and his Bachelor of Laws Degree from the
Ateneo de Manila University. He also has a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the University of the Philippines. He is a member of the
Integrated Bar of the Philippines and Philippine Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He served as former Director of the Tax Management Association
of the Philippines and former Vice Chairman of the Taxation Committee of the
Inter-Pacific Bar Association. !

Vicente V. de Villa, Jr., a Filipino, 84, is an Independént Director of the
Corporation. He currently holds the position of Chairman and President of
VICON Realty Corporation (1972-present), Director of Heavenly Angel
Memorial Park (2006-present), EL Message Services (2006-present) and ELAD
Telecom Phils., Inc. (2006-present). He is also the Executive Director of EL
Enterprises, Incorporated, BL International Holdings (BVI) Limited (1989-
present). Likewise, he is a Foreign Representative of JDP International (USA),
Central International Corporation (KOREA), NW Technologies International, Inc,
(USA) and BSI Corporate Services (JTALY). He holds a Bachelor of Laws
Degree from Ateneo de Manila, Padre Faura. |

Prudencio C. Somera, Jr., Filipino, 73, is a Director of the Corporation. He is
an Independent Director of Basic Petroleum Corporation (1997-present), another
publicly-listed corporation, and Director of Philcomsat Holdings Corporation
(2004-present). He is a member Board of Advisers of Basic Energy Corporation
since August 2008 (board member, 1977 —2008). He was pr:eviousiy Director of
iVantage, Inc. (1998-2000) and Acoje Oil Exploration and Minerals Corporation
(1997-1999). A columnist of Philippine Daily Inquirer, he holds a Master of
Business Administration Degree from the University of the Philippines.

Victor C. Fernmandez, Filipino, 74, is an Independent Director of the
Corporation. He holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the
Philippines (Class of 1971) where he was a member of the ;Order of the Purple



feather (U.P. College of Law Honor Socicty) and ranked teﬁth in his class. He
has a Bachelor of Arts major in Economics degree from the University of the
Philippines (Class of 1967). :

Atty. Fernandez served as Deputy Ombudsman for Luzon from 2003 to 2010. He
also practiced law ag Partner in the Fernandez Pacheco & Dizon Law Offices. He
currently serves as Commissioner on the Commission on Bar Discipline of the
Integrated Bar of the Philippines and received several awards including the
Distinguished Service Award of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines and awarded
as the Most Outstanding Commissioner of the Commission on Bar Discipline
(1995 to 1997). 3

Pablito C. Bermundo, Filipino, 75, is an Independent Director of the
Corporation, He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce — Accounting
and is a Certified Public Accountant. He is currently a Director/Consultant in
Symrise, Inc., a company where he was once the Chief Executive Officer.
Symrise, Inc. is engaged in the manufacture and marketing of flavors and
fragrances. He is also currently serving as Executive Director of the Texicon
Group of Companies. |

Mr. Bermundo served as Chairman and Director of Sicaf Sciehtiﬁc, Inc., and held
managerial positions in 3M Philippines (as Finance Director), Evertex Industries,
Inc. (as Manager of Treasury and Banking Department). Mr. Bermundo also
served as the President of the Rotary Club of San Juan North from 2006 to 2007.

Executive Officers

Anthony S. Dizon -~ President and Chief Operating Officer
A. Bayani K. Tan — Corporate Secretary |

Dexter Y. Tiu — Treasurer

wilfrido O. Gamboa, Filipino, 63, is the Head of Corporate Services and
Chief Compliance Officer of the Corporation. Before he joined the Cozporation,
he was president of Fabricom Realty & Development Corporation. Previous
experiences of Mr. Gamboa include fund sourcing, rehabilitation planning and
debt portfolio restructuring. He has also experiences in the real property sector
with tasks including developing new real estate projects. He graduated with a
degree of Bachelor of Arts in Economics and Bachelor of Science in Business

Administration from De La Salle University.

Efren A. Realeza, Jr, Filipino, 57, is the Head of Accounting Serviees and OIC-
Chief Finance Officer of the Corporation. Prior to joining the Corporation, he



was the Audit Manager of VBP Group of Companies-Dermpharma and
Dermelinics, Triumph Development Corporation - a cement manufacturing
company with overseas operation and Ajinomoto Philippines Corporation and
later as Cost Accounting Manager. He managed also the financial performance
of the following subsidiaries of APC like Flavor Food Products International Inc,,
Union Hikari Fertilizer International, Inc. and Global Cebu Foods Corporation.
He graduated with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Accountancy from the
Polytechnic University of the Philippines. He is a Certified Public Accountant,

Ann Margaret K. Lorenzo, Filipino, 29, is the incumbent Assistant Corporate
Secretary of TKC Metals Corporation. She is currently the jCorporate Secretary
of the following companies: Athena Ventures, Inc. (2017 to date), and Galileo
Software Services Inc. (2015 to date), She is likewise the 'Assistant Corporate
Secretary of the following listed companies: Crown Asia Chemicals Corporation
(2017 to date), Coal Asia Holdings, Inc, (2017 to date), I-Remit, Inc. (2017 to
date), and Vantage Equities, Inc. (2017 to date) and Assistant'Corporate Secretary
of the following reporting companies: Philequity PSE Index Fund, Inc. (2017 to
date), Philequity Fund, Inc. (2017 to date), Philequity Peso Bond Fund, Inc. (2017
to date), Phileguity Dollar Income Fund, Inc. (2017 to d?te), and Philequity
Dividend Yield Fund, Inc. (2017 to date). She is also Assistant Corporate
Secretary of the following private companies: Philequity Strategic Growth Fund,
Inc, (2017 to date), Philequity Balanced Fund, Inc. (2017 to date), Philequity
Resources Fund, Inc. (2017 to date), Philequity Foreign Currency Fixed Income
Fund, Inc. (2017 to date), Aldex Realty Corporation (2017 to date), QOakridge
Properties, Inc. (2017 to date), Etruscan Resources Philippines, Inc. (2015 to
date), and Tao Mohin Resources, Inc. (2015 to date). ‘
Ms. Lorenzo is an Associate at Tan Venturanza Valdez. She obtained her
Bachelor of Arts degree in English Studies and Juris Doctor degree from the
University of the Philippines in 2010 and 2014, respectively. She was admitted to
the Philippine bar in April 2015. f

Ruben C. Tiu - Filipino, 62, is the Chief Liaison Officer of the Corporation. He
is also the Chairman and President of Star Equities, Inc., President of JTKC
Realty Corporation, Pan Asean Multi Resources Corp., Aldex Realty Corporation,
Qakridge Properties, Inc., Hotel Systems Asia, Inc,, JTKC Land, Inc., The

' Discovery Leisure Company, Inc., and Discovery Country Suites, Inc., Executive
Vice President of JTKC Equities, Inc. and Union Pacific Ace Industries, Inc,, and
a Director of Palawan Cove Corporation, Discovery World Corporation, Cay
Islands Corporation, Tera Investments, Inc., Sonoran Corporation, Sterling Bank
of Asia, Inc., and [-Remit, Inc. He was previously a director of Southern Visayas
Property Holdings, Inc. (2003 - 2009), International Exchange Bank (1995 -
2006), and I - Remit, Inc. (2002 - 2004). He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Business Administration from the De La Salle University. |



John Kacho Y. Tin, Jr. — Filipino, 41, is the Chief Logistic Officer of the
Corporation. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering
Minor in Mathematics from the University of Washington, Seattle, Washington,
USA. He is currently the Chairman and President of Tera Investments, Inc; the
President of Southern Visayas Property Holdings, Inc. and Fidelity Securities,
Inc.; the Vice President and a Director of JTKC Realty Corporation, and, the
Treasurer and a Director of Sonoran Corporation, Cay Islands Corporation,
Palawan Cove Corporation, Tofino Corporation, Star Equities, Inc., Discovery
Country Suite, Inc,, JTKC Land, Inc., JTKC Equities, Inc., Touch Solutions, Inc.,
and The Discovery Leisure Company, Inc. He is also a director of Zhangzhou
Stronghold Steel Works Co., Ltd., Sagesoft Solutions, Inc., Oakridge Properties,
Inc., and I-Remit, Inc.

Significant Emplovees ' '

' |
Although the Corporation has and will likely continue to rely significantly on the
continued individual and collective contributions of its senior management team,
the Corporation is not dependent on the services of any particular employee. It
does not have any special arrangements to ensure that any employee will remain

with the Corporation and will not compete upon termination. -

Family Relationships

Messrs. Ben C. Tiu, Dexter Y, Tiu and Alexander Y. Tiu, }all Directors of the
Corporation, are siblings. |

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

None of the members of the Corporation’s Board of Directors and its Executive
Officers are involved in criminal, bankruptcy or insolvency investigation or
proceedings against them. :

ITEM 10 — Executive Compensation

As discussed under Item 1, Part I, above, we had initiated corporate restructuring
that involved the (a) change in primary purpose from being a provider of
complete IT solutions to that of a holding company, (b) change in corporate name
from SQL*Wizard to TKC Steel, (¢) increase in authorized capital, and (d)
assignment and/or sale of all and/or substantially all of the IT business assets to a
new corporation. After effecting all these changes, new sets of members of Board
of Directors and Executive Officers were appointed on various dates in 2007. The
executive compensation. information that is presented below covered the
Executive Officers and Direstors of TKC for 2016, 2017 and 2013,



All members of the Board of Directors receive per diem per tﬁeeting only.

2016

Name and Principal Position

Salary (Annual)

Bonus

Other Annual
Compensation

Ignatius F. Yenko
Vice-Chairman

Anthony S. Dizon
President and Chief Operating
Officer :

Nicanor L. De la Paz
Chief Financial Officer

Wilfrido O. Gamboa
Head of Corporate Services and
Chief Compliance Officer

Efren A, Realeza Jr.
Head of Accounting Services

Aggregate Compensation of all
Above-named Officers

7,676,500

Aggregate Compensation of all
above-
Named Officers and Directors

7,676,500

2017

Name and Principal Position

Salary
{Annuzal)

Bonus

i Other Annual
i Compensation

Ignatius F. Yenko
Vice-Chairman

Anthony S. Dizon
President and Chief Operating |
Officer

Nicanor L. Dela Paz
Chief Financial Officer

Wilfrido O. Gamboa
Head of Corporate Services/
Chief Compliance Officer

Efren A. Realeza Jr.
Head of Accounting Services

Aggregate Compensation of all
Above-named Officers

5,336,500

Aggregate Compensation of all .
Above-named Officers and
Directors

5,351,500




2018 (Estimated)

Name and Principal Position

Salary
{Annual)

Bonus

Other Annual

. Compensation

Ignatius F. Yenko
Vice-Chairman

Anthony 8. Dizon

President and Chief Operating

Officer

Wilfrido O. Gamboa
Head of Corporate Services/
Chief Compliance Officer

Efren A. Realeza Ir,
OIC-Chief Finance Officer

Aggregate Compensation of all
Above-named Qfficers

5,336,500

Directors

Aggregate Compensation of all
Above-named Officers and

5,380,500

ITEM 11 - Security Ownershili of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and

Management

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

As of December 31, 2017, the following stockholders bencficially own more than
5% of the Corporation’s OQutstanding and Issued Common Shares:

Number of

Title of | Name/Address | Name of Citizenship | I Percentage
Class of Record Beneficial | Shares of
Owner & Owner & | Holdings
Relationship | Relationship
with with Record
Issuer Owner
Coramon | Star Equities, Filipino 667,000,598 | 70.96%
Inc. |
2™ Floor,
JTKC Center
2155 Pasong
Tamo
Makati City’




Common

PCD Nominee
Corporation

Filipino 266,85 0,021 { 28.38%

Security Ownership of Directors and Management

Title of | Name of Number of Shares Percentage

Each Record/Beneficial Owner | and Nature of

Class Record/ ;

Beneficial Ownership

Common | Tiu, Alexander Y. i -
Tan, A, Bayani K. 1 -
De Villa, Vicente V. i1 --
Dizon, Anthony S. 1 -
Somera, Ir., Prudencio C. i1 -
Tiu, Ben C, 11 --
Tiu, Dexter Y. 1 -
Valdez, Enrico G. 1 -
Yenko, Ignatius F. 1 -
Pablito B. Bermundo 1 -
Victor C. Fernandez 1 -

Voting Trust Holders of 5% or more

There is no person holding more than 5% of any class of the Corporation’s
securities under a voting trust or similar agreement. i

ITEM 12 — Certain Relatmnslup and Related Transactions

The Corporation entered into the following transactions with related parties:

Date of Parties Nature Cause/Consideration

Execution ;

April 30, TKC and Agreement for | Acquisition at cost of the entire

2007 Star Assignment of | interest in the advances of SEI in
Equities, Advances Billions Stee! International




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the
Corporation Code, this report is signed on behalf of the issuer, by the undersign,

thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Makation April ____, 2018, i
en C, Tiu ) : Anthony 5. Dizon
Ch irman of the Board : Pfesident and Chief Gperatmg Officet
I e
Delter Y. Tiu - EfremA.Realezalr. |
Treasurer : QIC-Chief Financial Officar
: M\A
jé: Margaret l@;renzo
Assistant Corporate’Secretary
SUBSRIBED AND SWORN to before methis . éPR 2 6 2018 2018
afflants exhlbitlngt? me his/her Passport, as follows
MAKATI |
NAMES PASSPORT NO. - VALID UNTIL QPLACE OF I55UE
Ben C. Tiu EC3799702 03/25/2020 ~  DFA NCREast
Anthony S. Dizon - ECS5379162 09/17/2020 | DFA NCR fast”
DexterY. Tiu PO3821521 08/24/2021 -+ DFA Manila
Efren A. Realeza Ir, ECB208182 12/13/2020 : DFANCR Central
Ann Margaret K, Lorenze EC1023699 05/07/2019 | DFANCR East

Doc, Wo. __afd
Fage No, ___i%.
Book WO, .l
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iSEr.’.‘ Registration Number
alx[s]s]s[-[2]o[s]2]o;

TIK|C M|IEIT|A|L]S C RIPIOIRIA|T|1|OIN AIN|D S;UBSIDIARIES
1
PRINCIPAL OFFLCE (No./strect/Barangoy/City/Tewn/Province) 1
Uin|ift Bl1|-|[A|/|C|, 2|nid Fll|ofolir}, Blulilk{d|iin|g}] {B}, Klfajr
rli|vli|nl |P|1lalz|al|, 2(3l2t6| |c{hli|njo| |R|o|cje|s| |A[vie|njuie Elx
tjeinis|ijoln]|. Mia|k tli Clijtly
;

Department requiring the report

C{R(M|D

Secoridary License Type, If Apphicabla
Ni/ (A

COMPANY INFORMATION

Company’s Email Address

Campany’s Telephone Number/s

Wobile Number

- (02] 864-0734 to 36 ' -
No. of Stockholders Annual Meeting {Month / Da_v) : ; Fiscal Year (Month / Day)
a0 Last Friday of July ! December 31
]
GONTACT PERSON INFORMATION ] ]
The designated contact person MUST be an Officer of the Corperation
Name of Contact Person Email Address Telephone Number/s Mobile Number
Efren A, Realeza Jr. earealeza@yahoo.com (02) 864:0734 to 36 0918-979-8300

—

CONTACT PERSON'S ADDRESS

] ]

2nd Floor W Tower Condominium 3aoth St., North Bonifacio Triangle, Bonifai:"io Global City, Taguig City

NOTE 1: n case of denth, resfgnotion or.cessotion of office
thirty {30) calendor days from the occurrence thereof with Info

up. Faiture to do so shall cause the delay In updating the cirporation’s records with the Cornimission

21 All Boses must be properly ond completely filled-
-recelpt shall not excuse the corporatlon from itabillty for its deficiencles.

andfor non-recelpt of Notice of Deficiencies. Further, non

of the officer designated as contact person, such Jncfdent'shaﬂ Be reported to the Commission within
rmation and complete contact detalls of the new contact person designated.



TKC METALS

Strength in vision

|
1
“STATEMENT OF MANAGENMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY |
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS” 1

i

The Management of TKC Meétals Corporation is fesponsible fér the prepar—atlon and fair
prasentstion of the fingntial staterients cluding the schedules attached therein, for the-
vears ended Deceniliér 31, 2017 and. 20186, in accordahce: with the prescrlbed fmancfa[
reporting framework thdicated thefein, and for such internal control as Management;
dsterfriihes is necessary to ehable‘the preparation of financial: statements that are:free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud er erron. I !

i

i preparing ‘the financial statements, Management is- responsnble r'Far assessing the

‘Company’s ability to centinue as:a going concern, disclosing, as appllcabltle matters related.to

going concern and using the going-cdncern basis of accounting unless Management either
intends:to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, of has no realrstlc alternative but
todoiso. i‘j
The Beard of Directors i responsible. ih cveiseeing the Conipany’s!financial reporting.
process. . 1 -

|

i
The Board of Difectors teviews and approves the ﬁnanmai statements: includmg “fhe
schedulesattached therein, and:submits the same to the: stockholders : |

Reyes Tacandong & Co., the independent auditor appmnted by the stockholders, has
audited the financial statements of the-Company in-decordance with: Phshpplne Standards on
Auditing, and in its.report o the stockholders, has expressed its: opmlora on the faipmess of
presenfatlon upon comp[etlon of:such atdit. ® ‘ .

H

Signature:

SUBSCRIBED AND- SWO‘?N TO BEFORE

B nCTiu A

Sighature:

ME THIS . . :
0 .. IN THE CnY op MAKATI,
AFFIANT E)ﬁHEBITING TO: ME HISIHER
VALID 1D WJTH NUMEERS, ,
—HESUED ON L. , 1SSUED

ﬁthony 5. Dizon ' ‘ AT !:

President and Chief Operating Officer T

Sign??ﬁ{e-:%‘

-

. T EfrenkfRealeza In
el OIC Chief Financial Officer

.\-

‘..\.

noe. No, 220 4

-
-
-~

IS

NOT’ARY PUBLICFOR MAKATICITY
UNI'!I.DEC"MSERN 2018
NOLI5APIRIZALEXTN.EOR. TANGUILEST,
COMEMBO,MAKATLCITY
SCRolNe, 62‘[79!0(—26 203
18P NO 022957/01-04,201 8 Pasix City

" PTRNOMKT-661443, 01-03-20 BMAKATI CITY
2nd Flgor Unit 201, W Towsr-Condeminlum, 3 PMCnE Lm‘(ﬂp!i:‘m.’.. N, VOORSI410-3 2014 +
agth-St., Bonlfaclo Glabal Glty- i
Tagulg city. Phitippines 1834 i
Tet No.: (02).864-0734; B854-0736; B40-4338
Fax:Na.1(02) 893.3702,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT a3

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
TKC Metals Corporation

Unit B2-A/C, 2nd Floor

Building B, Karrivin Plaza

2316 Chino Roces Avenue Extension

Makati City

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TKC Metals Corporation and Subsidiaries
(the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2017 and
2016, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolldat'ed statements of changes in
equity and consclidated statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accountlng policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present falrly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and its fmanc:al performance and its
cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 in accordance with Philippine Financial

Reporting Standards (PFRS). i

Basis for Opinion t
We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing {PSA}. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for ’;he Audit of the Consolidated
Financia! Stotements section of our report. We are independent of the Group iniaccordance with the Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines {Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to the audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and tht:a Code of Ethics, We belleve
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provid;e] a basis for our opinion.
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern i

1

The Group’s main steel manufacturing subsidiaries, Treasure Steelworks Corporatlon (Treasure) and
ZhangZhou Stronghold Steel Works Co. Ltd. {ZZ Stronghold) located in lligan City and Xiamen, China,
respectively, have been incurring losses. Consequently, the Group has consol:dated total comprehensive loss
of B728.4 million and R409,2 million for the years ended December 31, 21’.)17i and 2016, respectively and
capital deficiency of 2898.7 million as at December 31, 2017. Moreover the twa subsidiaries had to suspend
its plant construction projects which aggregated P 3,104.6 million and R 3,688.3 million as at

December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, :‘
These events or conditions, along with other mattars as set forth in Notel 1, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to contlnue as a going concern.

!
THE POWER OF REING UNDERSTOOD f K —
: RSM

AUDIT | TAR | CONSULTING i
b
Reyes Tacandong & Co, is a member of tha RSM network, Esch membar of the RSM network Is an Independant sccounting and consulting ﬁ(m. and practices in its own right. The RSM network is

nat itself a separate Jegel entity of any deseription in any judisdiction,
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The Group’s related parties, however, have continued to provide the necessary; financial support to meet the
Group’s maturing obligations. As at December 31, 2017, advances from | related parties aggregated
#3,560.3 million. Moreover, the Group has been :negotiating with prospeéFive investors for additional
financing to complete the Group's construction and resume commercial; operations. The Group's
management plan for Treasure and ZZ Strongheld is di:sclosed in Note 1. i
Accordingly, the Group continues to prepare its acco:mpan'ying consolidated Fhancial statements using the
going concern basis of accounting. Our opinion is not modified in respect to this matter.

|

i
Key Audit Matters :
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our profeésiona! judgment, were ofimost significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated finatcial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinlon on these matters. :
| ;
In addition to the matter described in the Moteriol Uncertainty Related to Go}ng Concern section, we have
determined below as key audit matters to communicate in our report. ‘

|

¥ mpairment of Property, Plunt and Equipment ;
i i
N I
i i
As at December 31, 2017, the Group has propert l, plant and equipment an;hounting to B3,404.9 million,
representing 73% of the total assets. ; 4 )
i i
\ I
The Graup is required to perform an impairment assessment of its property, plant and equipment at
each reporting date whenever there is any indication of impairment loss. f;Where the carrying amount
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, the ‘asset or cash-generatingi‘unit is written down to its
recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable :amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs

to sell and value in use. ; ‘

Determining the recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment using fair value requires
significant judgment and estimation, particularly in selecting the appropriate valuation methodology and
In determining the underiying assumgtions. The fl'air value of property, plant and equipment are subject
to significant variability because of changing market conditions. Moreov».:e‘r, the impairment review is
significant to our audit because the carrying amc::unt of the Group’s prop;érty, plant and equipment is
material to the consolidated financial statements; Any resulting impairmelnt loss could have a material
adverse impact on the Group’s financial position aflmd financial performa nce.;‘
[ b
The fair values of the Group’s property, plant a‘ndI equipment were assesse:d by the management based
on independent valuations prepared by independent property valuers. Our audit procedures included,
among others, evaluating the qualifications, experience and competence jof the independent property
valuers engaged by management, understanding and reviewing the valuation methods and the
assumptions applied, evaluating the valuation m:ethodology used and asgessing the key assumptions
adopted In the valuations. We reviewed the, adequacy of the Group's disclasures about those
assumptions, the outcome of which the impairment test is most sensitive,‘-;that is, those that have the
most significant effect on the determination (:Jf the recoverable amo;unt of property, plant and

eguipment. i

il
|
iw
i
|

N A
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Based on available evidence, the Group has assessed that the fair value of p:jroperty, plant and equipment
is lower than its carrying amount. Consequently, provision for impairment loss of R683.5 million an
property, plant and equipment was recognized in 2017 (see Note 9). i

»  Net Realizable Value of lnventorles H

The Group's inventories, which represents 8% of the Group's total ag-‘.;sets, are accounted for in
accordance with PAS 2, Inventories. As a result of the suspension of the Group's operations in lligan City,
there has been ne significant movement of its inventories in stack pile sifw‘ce 2013. The volume of the
Group's inventories changes significantly through time and the impact of tﬁe market price of the finished
goods due to changing economic trends can be material and as such the inventories require significant
amount of estimation and judgment in its determination. f

E
To validate the management’s assessment on the net realizable value of inventories, we evaluated the
accuracy of historical information and data trends, changing economic trends applied against the current
balances, and the assumptions and estimates used in the managetnent's as;{essment of the net realizable

value of the inventories. I

i
Based on the available evidence, we have reviewad management’s assumptions applied in relation to the

Group’s inventory valuation to be reasonable. f

Cther Information t

|
|
Management is responsible for the other information. The other informatio;rj comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-1S {Definitive Information Statement}, SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the
year ended December 31, 2017, but does not include the consalidated financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon. The SEC Form 20-1S {Definitive Information Statement), SEC Fi(:rm 17-A and Annual Report
for the year ended December 31, 2017 are expected to be made availableito us after the date of this
auditors’ report. i

I
Our oplnion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the othefr] information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. =

R
In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
Information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, g{:onsider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge cbtained

i

in the audits or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. !

b
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for' the Consolidated Financial
Stutements i

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the cansolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free lf‘rc\m material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error. ij

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsii::y]e for assessing the Group’s

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, a5 applicable, matters relate:d to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless managemenit either intends to qu:ejjidate the Group or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. ‘|
/

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's finar:fcia[ reporting process.
I

LT E I
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i
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consoifdoted Finoncial Statementsi
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidﬁted financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted In accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, in&ividually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of use?ﬁs taken on the basis of these

consalidated financial statements. ;!
b
4
As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exerclse professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: i
1
il
= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinign. The risk of nat detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane resultjpg from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
i

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order tufidesign audit procedures that

are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of exf pressing an opinfon on the
i

effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 1

i
» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the réésonableness, of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management. |

[

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertaintv;jexists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to contin:ue as a going concern, if we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's repaort to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements of, If such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence ob:talned up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern, I

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consoiidated financkzl staiements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consclidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. i

I

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financlal information of the entities or

business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We

are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the gr;{:up audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion, {

i
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
il
that we identify during our audits. g

I
li
|
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we h’ave complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them:;all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. I ’
0

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we d:étermine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements :of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, [n extremely rare circun{étances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public interest henefits of such commu réication.

The engagement partner on the audits resulting in this independent auditor's re@ort is Emmanuel V., Clarino.

|
REYES TACANDONG & CO. i
L
!

EMMANUEL V. CLARINO

Partner
CPA Certificate No. 27455
Tax identification No. 102-084-004-000
BOA Accreditation No. 4782; Valid until December 31, 2018
SEC Acereditation No. 1021-AR-2 Group A
valid untll March 27, 2020
BIR Accreditation No. 08-005144-005-2017 ;
valid until January 13, 2020 }
PTR No. 66073954
lssued January 3, 2018, Makati City

May 11, 2018
Makati City, Metro Manila
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Note TR 2017 2016
ASSETS }
Current Assets . - i '
Cash and cash equivalents 4 34,381,047 1 R31,061,816
Trade and other receivables 5 265,935,192 " 210,547,633
Inventories : 6 350,835 597 380,418,762,
Due from related. partles 14 39,976,535 : 38,976,535
Creditable withhdlding tax (CWT) and input value-
addad] tax (VAT) 7 294 575 115 295,388,370‘, '
Other currentassets 8, 25, 518,652 i 29,848,638
"~ Total Current Assets 1,0"1 224,038 - 987,241,754,
ﬂéhcurrent Assets |‘ . L
Property, plant and equipment -~ g 3, 404 944,583 4,012,508,653
Leasehold rights 10 230 807 585 225,953,272
Other noncurrent assets 1% 31 031,205 18,415,580
Total Noncurrent Assets 3,666,783,773 _ 4,256,877,505
- 1 ' "
R4, Bé‘ 007,811 '$5,244,119,259
T : ot
[
LIABILITIES AND _CAP!TAL DEFICIENCY !
Current Liabilities . ) i : .
Trade and other payables 12 ~ PBSS 146,381  P850,456,373
Loans payable 13 1,048,287 715 1,009;951,173
Due to related parties . 14 3,560,205,233 3,522,827,405
Total Current Liabilities 5,563,739,329 5,383,234,951
Noncurrent Liabilities i
Retirement liabillty 20 7,753 612 9,107,262
Deferred tay liabillties 25 15,227 983 22,100,732
Total Noncurren: Liabilities . 22,991,595 31,207,954
Total Llab:lltlcs 5,586,730,924 __ 5,414,442,945
—r
Capital Deﬁaency Attnbutable to Equity Holders of :
i
the Parent Company Lo .
: 15 ;940 000,000 940,000,000

Capital stock
Additionat paid-in capital
s Peficiy ks

983,047,906 1, 983,047,506
{ 130 508,313} (3 3,292,266,675)
264,897,139 144,356,792

‘Other equity reserves

[042.568,268)  (224,861,977)
43,840,155 54,538,291

Non-cantrolling Interest

/{858,723,118)¢ ;(170,323,686] ¥ Al

TotalCamtal‘Def’mency* S e

"y

p4,688,007,811  B5,244,119,259

See occompanying Notes to Consoifdated £inancial Statements.
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TKC METALS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIA&%IES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL P@SIT]ON
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|

f December 31
Note P 2017 2016
ASSETS 1
Current Assets ‘i
Cash and cash equivalents 4 234,381,997  £31,061,816
Trade and other receivables S 265';,935,3.92 210,547,633
Inventories 6 36{?:,836,597 380,418,762
Due from related parties 14 39,976,535 39,976,535
Creditable withholding tax (CWT) and input value- i
added tax (VAT) 7 29{,5?5‘,115 295,388,370
Other current assets 8 25,518,652 29,848,638
Total Current Assets 1,021,224,038 987,241,754
i
Noncurrent Assets ‘
Property, plant and equipment 9 3,404,944,583  4,012,508,653
Leasehold rights 10 23d,807,935 225,953,272
Other noncurrent assets i1 315,031,205 18,415,580
Total Noncurrent Assets 3,666,783,773  4,256,877,505
P4,688,007,811  £5,244,119,259
I
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL DEFICIENCY %
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 12 R955,146,381  P850,456,373
Loans payable 13 1,0431,287,715 1,009,951,173
Due to related parties 14 3,560,305,233  3,522,827,405
Total Current Liabilities 5,563,739,329  5,383,234,951
i
Noncurrent Liabllities "
Retirement liability 20 7,763,612 9,107,262
Deferred tax liabillties 25 15227,983 22,100,732
Total Noncuwrrent Liabilities 22.991,595 31,207,994
Total Liabilities 5,586,730,924 5,414,442,945
i
Capital Deficiency Attributable to Equity Holders of i
the Parent Company |
Capital stock 15 940}000,000 940,000,000
Additional paid-In capital 1,983/047,906  1,983,047,906
Deficit (4,1395508,313] (3,292,266,675)
Other equity reserves 264,897,139 144,356,792
{942;563,268)  (224,861,977)
Non-controlling [nterest 43,840,155 54,538,291
Total Capital Deficiency {gagl723,113}  {170,323,586)
R4,688,007,811 £5,244,119,259

I

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financfal Statements.
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TKC METALS CORPORATION AND SU_BSIDIA_ER!ES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENS!\@E INCOME

i

Years Erided December 31
Note 2017 i 2016 2015
REVENUE R363,589,343 ﬁ272;,381,278 E380,549,749
COSTS OF GOODS SOLD 17 (341,240,630) (328,906,407}  (298,509,776)
{
GROSS INCOME [LOSS) 22,348,713 [5@,525,129) 82,039,973
OPERATING EXPENSES 18 (183,857,335} [168;814,567) (156,481,109}
PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT LOS5 15 (683,665,830} (152‘-,630,932) -
INTEREST EXPENSE 13 {63,899,500) (57;185,057) (71,895,339)
OTHER INCOME — Net 24 42,203,285 16‘,459,773 48,867,177
1.0SS BEFORE INCOME TAX {866,870,667)  (418,695,962) (97,469,298}
PROVISION FOR {BENEFIT FROM}
INCOME TAX 25
Current 603,793 1661,657 654,443
Deferred (6,872,749} i - -
(6,268,556} 661,657 654,443
NET LOS5 (860,601,711} (419,357,619} [98,123,741)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME :
To be reclassified to profit or loss In !
subsequent periods :
Exchange differences on translation ;
of foreign operations 129,577,081 9,838,724 12,562,541
Not to be reclassified to profit or loss in |
subseguent periods i
Remeasurement galn on retirement I
liability, net of deferred tax 20 2,625,203 321,971 -
132,202,284 16,160,695 12,562,541
|
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (37-28,399,427) (R409,196,924) (285,561,200}
NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO: |
Equity holders of the Parent Company R838,241,638 9397;,238,327 R396,560,406
Non-cantrolling interests 22,360,073 22,118,792 1,563,335
RR60,601,711 R419,357,618 R98,123,741
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS :
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: :
Equity holders of the Parent Company ®717,701,291 R387,963,618 £85,128,4%4
Non-controlling interests 10,698,136 21,233,306 432,706
R728,399,427 R409,196,924 £85,561,200
i
BASIC LOSS PER SHARE 27 RO.B9 R0O.A2 RO.10

See accomponying Notes to Consolidated Finonclal Statements.
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TKC METALS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FI.O:WS

!
i
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!
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|

Year:é Ended December 31

Note

2017

i 2016

2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax
Adjustments for:

i
152,630,982

{R866,870,667) (94;8.695,962} {P97,469,298)

Provision for impairment tosses 19 683,665,330 -
Interast expense 13 63,859,500 557,185,057 71,895,339
Depreciation and amortization 40,625,417 [56,238,062 61,194,615
Write off of receivables 5 17,701,158 ;29,142,842 1,474,653
Unrealized foreign exchange loss [gain} 24 {12,654,988} 122,235,725 (6,143,623}
Loss (gain) on sale of transportation equipment 24 (2,406,779) | -~ 17,751
Interest income 4 (87,916) ! (124,372) (866,785)
Gain on reversal of inventory write-down [ - i - (131,338}
Operating income (loss) before working capital ¥
changes (76,128,445) (101,387,666} 29,971,314
Decrease (Increase) in: ||
Trade and other receivables (119,381,662} 135,520,376 (10,028,318)
Inventories 116,558,792 31,016,131 23,054,061
CWT and input VAT 813,255 | | 104,880 (669,227)
Due from related parties - i {9,399) -
Cther current assets {83,340,764) !53,386,8?2 8,985,682
Increase (decrease) in: ;
Trade and other payables 188,684,064 144,445,404 (80,412,511)
Retirement lability 1,281,553 i 692,468 994,026
Net cash generated from (used for) operations 28,486,793 i?3,769,056 (28,104,973)
Interest paid (64,759,150) (5?,185,057} (71,737,6%4)
Income tax paid (603,793) | (661,657 (654,443)
Interest received 87,916 i 124,372 866,785
Net cash provided by (used in} operating activities (36,788,234) 116,046,724 {99,630,325)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 4
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment 9 {490,686)  (10,411,640)  (11,129,877)
Decrease (increase) in other noncurrent assets {12,615,625}) : 11,797,484 (3,160,865)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant i
and equipment 2,446,429 i:3,152,989 99,199
Net cash used in investing activities (10,659,882) 1{5,461,167)  {14,191,543)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES E :
Proceeds from: Iy
Availment of loans payable 13,984,534 472,348,731 515,385,757
Due to related parties 114,227,794 §26,890,605 53,514,533
Payments to related parties (76,749,966) (;5,338,520) (184,489}
Payments of loans payable — (523,939,143) (483,355,178}
. Net cash provided by (used in} financing activities 51,462,362 (40,038,327) 85,360,623
1

{Forward)
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Years Ended December 31
Note 2017 1 2018 2015
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (694,115)  {13,470,657)  (5,164,018)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH i
EQUIVALENTS 3,320,131  (42,923427)  (33,625,263)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING ;
OF YEAR 31,061,816 173,985,243 107,610,506
J
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR R34,381,947  R31,061,816  R73,985,243
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1
Cash on hand R19,506  iR6,000,409 R41,731
Cash in banks 29,706,098 124,185,629 73,930,734
Cash equivalents 4,656,253 | 875,778 12,778
34,381,947  ¥31,061,816  P73,985,243

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financlaf Stotements.
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TKC METALS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016: AND

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2016 AND 2015
! ;

1. Corporate Information : ;

General Information .

TKC Metals Corporation, formerly TKC Steel Corporation (the Parent Company or TKC) was
organized and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on
November 28, 1996. TKC’s shares of stock were listed for trading in the Philippine Stock Exchange
(PSE} on July 20, 2001. The Parent Company is primarily a holding company and is also engaged in
marketing and selling of purlins and galvanized iron (G} sheets, ‘

|
The following are the subsidiaries of the Parent Company: | |
i

Country of i Percentage of Ownershlp

Name of Subsldiaries Incorparation Nature of Business i 2017 2016
Billions Steel International Limited I

{Billions) Hong Kong Investment holdings ! 100% 100%
Zhangzhou Stronghold Steel Works People’s Republic of Manufacture of steel |

Co, ktd, {ZZ Stronghold}** China or PRC pipes 91% 91%
Treasure Steelworks Corporation Manufacture of steel |

{Treasure) Philippines . products | 98% 98%
Campanilla Mineral Resources, Ihe. i

{Campanilia}* Philippines Mineral production ! 70% 0%
*  Hes ot commenced commerdal operations os at December 31, 2017 f !
** Thraugh Billans i

The Parent Company and Its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as "tHe Group”.
H

Star Equitles, Inc. (SEI) owns 70.96% of the Parent Company. The ultumate parent company of TKC is
JTKC Equities, Inc. {JEl}. Both companies were incorporated in the thpplnes

The principal office address of the Group is 2nd Floor W Tower CondomEnium 39th St., North
Bonifacio Triangle, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City. 1

The registered office address of the Group is Unit B1-A/C, 2nd Floor, Buil@ing B, Karrivin Plaza, 2316
Chino Roces Avenue Extension, Makati City. !

Avnproval of Consolidated Financial Statements |

The consolidated financlal statements of the Group as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 and for the
years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 were authorized and approved for issuance by the

Board of Directors on May 11, 2018,

Status of Operations of the Parent Company

In 2015, the Parent Company stopped marketing and selling of purlins and gelvanized iron sheets, its
main business activity cother than as a holding company. The Parent Company has total
comprehensive loss of R281.1 million, R21.5 million and R23.6 rmlllon for the years ended

P
i
l ;



December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, The Parent Company |s actively negotiating with
potential investors to resume operations of Treasure, i

Status of Operations of Main Steel Subsidiaries

Freasure |

As at December 31, 2017, Treasure has not resumed operations. Treasure s total comprehensive
loss for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 amounted to B732.7 million,
2178.2 million, and R42.4 million respectively, resulting to a capital defumency of £2,527.3 million
and 21,794.6 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. ||

In 2013, Treasure suspended its plant operations {production of steei billets) in liigan City and
terminated its contract with plant employees due to shortage in power supply in Mindanao.
Treasure, however, is planning to produce nickel concentrate and mckel pig iron instead to lessen
the plant’s power supply requirement. By shifting to nickel concentrate and nickel plg Iron, the
power supply requirement will drop to 5 megawatts per hour (MWPH) as compared to producing

steel billets at 15 to 20 MWPH. i

Treasure has almost completed the refurbishment and upgrade of the b:!let manufacturing plant
and the installation of the iron ore beneficlating plant, sintering plant and the first blast furnace
plant. An investment from a prospective investor will be used to complete the plant facilities. These
facilities can also be used to produce nickel concentrate and nickel pig |ron

l
There has been a long delay in getting a potential investor to complete | rT reasure’s construction and
for it to resume operations. Management has decided to obtain an mdependent property valuation
to determine the fair value of s property, plant and equrpment' Based on this valuation,

impairment loss amounting to 683,5 million was recognized in 2017 {see Note 9).

27 Stronghold
ZZ Stronghold has a capital deficiency of R866.5 million and R903.1 mrlllon as at December 31, 2017

and 2016, respectively, ZZ Stronghold has been intensifying its marketimg efforts, increased sales,
generated positive results and reduced capital deficlency in 2017, i
The market value of praperty, plant and equipment and leasehold righf§ of ZZ Stronghold is higher
than the recorded net carrying amount of 81,914.7 milllion as at December 31, 2017 based on a
latest independent assessment of the fair value of these assets (see Note 9}

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation 1

The consclidated financial statements have been prepared in compllance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financial Reportmg Standards Council {FRSC)
and adopted by the SEC including SEC pronouncements, This financial reporting framework includes
PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine lnterpretations from Internatienal

Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), and SEC prowslons

Measurement Bases
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (PHP) the Group's functional

and presentation currency. All values represent absolute amounts except when otherwise stated.



{
¥
The functional currency of ZZ Stronghold is Chinese Renminbi (RMB). :
The financial statements of the Group have been prepared on the historzit:al cost basis of accounting,
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the conssderatlon given in exchange for an
asset. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paud to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the transaction datel 1
5
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate In the mrcumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs

and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. P
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed inithe financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level Input
thatis mgntiant to the fair value measurement as a whole: | ‘
l !

e Level 1 - Quoted (unadfusted) market prices in active markets for |dent|cal assets or liabilities.

o Level 2~ Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that isisigniﬁcant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable. P
b

n

e Level 3~ Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that i IS 5|gn|f|cant to the fair value
measurement Is unchservable. H

i
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Ievels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is sugmf icant to the falr value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. ; ‘
§

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or Ilablllty and the level of the fair

value hierarchy as explained above, ! !

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair value is included In the following
notes to the financial statements. -

Adoption of New and Amended PFRS { |
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the prewous financial year, except for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Company adopted effective for

i

annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017: i
i
I

» Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows - Disclosure lmtmt:ue —~ The amendments
require entities to provide information that enable the users of fi nanmal statements to evaluate

changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. '

¢ Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses
- The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax assets related to unrealized losses on

debt instruments measured at fair value, to address diversity in praqtlce
P



Amendments to PFRS 12, Disclosures of Interests in Other Entilles - Clarf_ﬁcat:on of the Scope of
the Standard -~ The amendments are part of the Annual Improvemen ts to PFRS 2014-2016 Cycle
and clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12 apply to interests in entities within the
scope of PERS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Dlscontlr!'nued Operations except for
summarized financial information for those interests {i.e. paragraphs B10-B16 of PFRS 12).

The adoption of the foregaing new and amended PFRS did not have) ény matenrial effect on the
financial statements. Adgditional disclosures have been included in the nzotes to financial statements,

as applicable,

New and Amended PFRS Not Yet Adopted

Relevant new and amended PFRS which are not yet effective for the yee:{ ended December 31, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing the financial statements are sunimarized below.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018:

PERS 9, Financial Instruments — This standard will replace PAS 38 (aqd all the previous versions
of PFRS 9). It contains requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets

and financial kiabilities, impairment, hedge accounting and derecognition.

PFRS 9 requires all recognized financizal assets to be subsequently meizésured at amortized cost or
fair value (through profit or loss or through other comprehensive mcome} depending on their
classification by reference to the business model within which ‘they are held and their

contractual cash flow characteristics. : !

For financial liabilities, the most significant effect of PFRS 9 relates fo cases where the fair value
option is taken: the amount of change in falr value of a financial llablhty designated as at feir

value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes In the credlt risk of that liability is

recognized in other comprehensive income (rather than in profit or Ioss), unless this ¢reates an

accounting mismatch, : |

For the impairment of financial assets, PFRS & introduces an expected credit Joss” model based

on the concept of providing for expected losses at inception of a contract, it will no longer be

necessary for there to be objective evidence of impairment before a; credlt loss is recognized,

For hedge accounting, PFRS 9 introduces a substantial overhaul ailoiumg financial statements to

better reflect how risk management activities are undertaken when hedgmg financial and non-

financial risk exposures. ; ‘

i

The derecognition provisions are carried over almost unchanged frorfnj PAS 39,
f ;

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers — The new 5tandard replaces PAS 11,
Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue and related mterpretat'ons It establishes a single
comprehensive framework for revenue recognition to apply cons stently across transactions,
industries and capital markets, with a core principle (basedona five;step model to be applied to
all contracts with customers), enhanced disclosures, and new or l'nproved guidance (e.g. the
point at which revenue is recognized, accounting for variable considerations, costs of fulfilling

and obtaining a contract, etc.). 1
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» Amendment to PFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers - r.EIbr{ﬁcation to PFRS 15 - The
amendments provide clarifications on the following topics: (a) identifying performance
obligations; (b) principal versus agent considerations; and (c) licensing. The amendments also
provide some transition relief for modified contracts and completed contracts,

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 - | :

i
I

s PFRS 16, Leases — The biggest change introduced by the new standard is that almost all leases
will be brought onto lessees’ halance sheets under a single model [except leases of less than
12 months and leases of low-value asseis}, eliminating the dlstmctmn between operating and
finance leases. Lessor accounting, however, remains largely unchanged and the distinction
hetween operating and finance lease is retained, 5 |

i

. . Ll .

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and Ire\ﬂsed PFRS is not expected

to have any material effect on the financial statements of the Group. Addltlonai disclosures wil! be

included in the financial statements, as applicable. ; 3

i !

The Group anticipates that the application of PFRS 15 might have a srgmflcant effect on amounts

reparted in respect of the Group’s revenue. However, it is not practlcable to provide a reasonable

estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been completed. !

l
Basis of Consolidatian !

| H

i

Subsidiaries - Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Parent Company The consoiidated financial
statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and its submdlartes The Parent Company
has contro] when It is exposed, ot has right, to variable returas from its mvestment with the investee
and it has the ability to affect those returns through its powers over the lua.westee

|
; !

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition or mcorporatlon being the date on which
the Parent Company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated; until the date such control
ceases. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquwed or disposed of during the
year are Included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control
unti! the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. E ‘

Changes in the controlling equity ownership {i.e., acquisition of non-controlllng interest or partial
disposal of interest over a subsidiary) that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as

equity transactions. 5 ;

When the Parent Company has less than a majority of the voting or simllar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances In assessing whether it has power over an

investee, including:

» The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the mvestee,
s Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; or 1
¢ The Parent Company's voting rights and potentlal voting rights.

i i
The Parent Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an Investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control
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The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the sa%ﬁe reporting period as the
Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies. Al intra-group balances, transactions,
unrealized gains and losses resulting from Intra-group transactions anf{ dividends are eliminated in

full. i

|
Non-controlling interests represent the portion of net results and net assets not heid by the Parent
Company. They are presented in the consolidated statements of financial position within equity,
apart from equity attributable to equity holders of the parent and are separately disclosed in the

consolidated statement of camprehensive income. i

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling Interé-.jst even if that results in a

deficit balance. i
if the Parent Company loses control over a subsidiary, it:

» Derecognizes the assets (excluding any goodwill) and lfabilities of th ;jformer subsidiary from the
consolidated statements of financial position; !
¢ Recognizes any investment retained in the former subsidiary when control is lost and
subsequently accounts for it and for any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary in
accordance with relevant PFRS. That retained Interest is remeasure:d and the remeasured value
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset in accordance with PFRS 9
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an Investment in an associate or joint

venture; |

s Recognizes the gain or loss associated with the loss of control |attributable to the former
contralling interest, ;

Business Combinations and Goodwill - Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition

method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of thgj consideration transferred,

measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non:-‘controiling interest in the

acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the

acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acqui%ée‘s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition costs incurred are recognized as expense,

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assetsiand liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the centractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. Thiéiincludes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree. |

If the business combination is achleved in stages, the acquisition date|fair value of the acquirer's

previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair vé}ue at the acquisition date
through profit or loss. :

il
Any contingent consideration to.be tra nsferred by the acquirer will be re!r,ognized at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the continé#nt consideration which is
deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognized in accordance wifh PAS 39 either in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration Is classified as
equity, it should not be remeasured. Subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. In

instance where the contingent consideration does not fall within the scope of PAS 39, it is measured
in accordance with the appropriate PFRS. i
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Goodwill |s initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognized for non-controliing interest over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the falr value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in profit or loss. § If the initial accounting for
business combination can be determined only provisionally by the end 'of the period by which the
combination is effected because either the fair values to be assigned fb the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities or contingent liabilities or the cost of the combination can be determined only
provisionally, the Group accounts the combination using provisional vdlues. Adjustments to these
provisional values as a result of completing the initlal accounting shatl be made within 12 months
from the acquisition date. The carrying amount of an identlflable asset liability or contingent
liability that is recognized as a result of completing the initial accounting shall be calculated as if its
fair value at the acquisition date had been recognized from that date and goodwill or any gain
recognized shall be adjusted from the acquisition date by an amount equal to the adjustment to the
fair value at the acquisition date of the identifiable asset, liability or contingent liability being

recognized or adjusted. )
i

After Initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumu!ated impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a busmess combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned

to those units. i ‘
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the cf\peration within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwll] associated with the operation disposed of:is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the refative va]ues of the operation disposed
of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained, | 3

K
Transactions Elfiminated on Consclidation - All intra-group balances; transactions, income and
expenses and unrealized gains and losses are eliminated in full. ' i

i‘
Accounting Policies of Subsidiaries - The financial statements of subStdlarres are prepared for the

same reporting year using uniform accounting policies as that of the Parent Company.

Financial Assets and Liabilities

| \
Date of Recognition. The Group recognizes a financial asset ora flnancrall ‘!zabllity in the consolidated
statement of financial positicn when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 2 financial
instrument. All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase the asset. Regular; way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of the assetslw[thln the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place. ; |

Initial Recognition of Financial Instruments. Financial instruments aré: recoghized Initially at fair
value of the consideration given (in the case of an asset) or recewed (in the case of a liability}.
Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of all i nancial! assets and liabilities, excent
for financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or Ioss {(FVPL). Fair vaiue is
determined by reference to the transaction price or other market pruces If such market prices are
not readily determinable, the fair value of the consideration is estimated as the sum of all future
cash payments or receipts, discounted using the prevalling market rate of interest for simllar

instruments with similar maturities. E‘
I B
i
1!
I
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“Day 1” Differences. Where the transaction in a non-active market is different from the fair value
of other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the
difference between the transaction price and fair value (a "Day 17 différence) in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive Income. In cases where there Is no ob':;‘ervab!e data on inception,
the Group deemed the transactions price as the best estimate of fair vaEue and recognizes “Day 1"
difference in profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is
derecognized. For each transaction, the Group determines the appropnate method of recognizing
the “Day 1" difference. i

I
Classificetion of Financiol Instruments. The Group classifies its financial assets into the following
categories: financial assets at FVPL, held-to-maturity (HTM) lrlvestments, available-for-sale (AFS)
financial assets, and loans and receivables. The Group classifies its fina nclal liahilities into financial

liabilities at FYPL and other financial fiabillties. 3

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets on iniltﬁaf recognition and, where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each fi nancia‘liyear—end.

The Group does not have financial instruments classified as financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVYPL and HTM investments. |

AFS Financial Assets. AFS financial assets are those ncm-deri\sfaﬂti\.réei financial assets that are
designated as such or are not classified as another category of f’nanclal assets, After inijtial
measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently carried at fair va I,ue with unrealized gains or
losses recognized in other comprehensive Income. These fair valuewhanges are recognized In
other comprehensive income until the investment is derecognized ior until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or Ioss previously recognized in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss. Investment in equity instrurnents
that do not have a quoted market price and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are

carried at cost.

The Group’s investment in club shares is classified under this category.and Is carried at cost since

it does not have available quoted market price. :

Loans ond Receivables. Loans and recelvables are non-derivative fm;‘anmal assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. ﬂn‘terl initial measurement, loans
and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective; mterest method less any
allowance for impalrment. The calculation takes into account any premium or discount on
acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an mtegral part of the effective
interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in consolidated statements of comprehensive

income when the loans and receivables are derecognized or :mpaired as well as through the
amortization process. ;

l
Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity l,s within 12 months from

reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets. |
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, trade and other recelvabies {excluding advances to

officers and employees), due from related parties and refundable deposlts {presented under
“Other noncurrent assets”) are classifled under this category.

H
'

1
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Other Financial Ligbilities. Other financial liabilities at amortized cost pertain to issued financial
instruments or their components that are not classified or desigriated at FVPL and contain
obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder as to settie the obligation other
than by the exchange of fixed amount cf cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own

equity.

The Group’s trade and other payables {excluding accruals for dccumentary stamp tax (D5T), real
property tax, and statutory payables), loans payable and due to retated parties are classified

under this category. g‘
I’i

The amortized cost of a financial liability is the amount at which the fm;nmal liability is measured at
initial recognition minus the principal repayments plus or minus the cumulatwe accretion using the
effective interest method of any difference hatween that initial arnount and the maturity amount.
Interest expense, including premiums payable on settlement or redem ptlon and direct Issue costs, is
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on an accrual basis using the
effective Interest method. Interest expense is added to the carrying amount of the instrument to
the extent that they are not settled in the perlod in which they arise,

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, when applicable a part of a fmancml asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is derecognized when: ;3

a. the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; Il

b. the Group retazins the right to receive cash flows from the asset but has assumed an
obligation to pay them In full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’
arrangement; or |

Ii

¢. the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, ori{b) has neither transferred

nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, bt,it has transferred contral of
the asset. U

When the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s contmumg involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset an‘d the maximum amount of

consideration that the Group could be required to pay, i:

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obllgation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled or has expired. {\

When an existing financial liability Is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modlﬂed such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original lability and the recognition of a new
liabifity, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is reccgnlzed in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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|

i:
Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities. Financial assets and finanqal liakilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consclidated statement of financial posntion if, and only if, there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, ar to realize the assets and settle the liabilities s:multaneously This is not
generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are
presented gross in the consolidated statements of financial position. |

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial or
group of financial assets is impaired. Objective evidence includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about loss events such as but not I|m|tec[ to significant financial
difficulty of the counterparty, a breach of contract, such as a default ar delinquency in interest or
principal payments, probability that borrower will enter hankruptcy or other financial
reorganization. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at
amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrylng amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the asset’s ariginal effective interest rate. Time value is generally not consmered when the effect
of discounting is not materfal. The amount of the loss shall be recogmzed in the statement of

comprehensive income. 51

|\
The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exlsts individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively 1 for financial assets that are

not individually significant. !
il
i
[f it is determined that no obfective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in th!e group of financial assets
with similar credit risk and characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
|
If, in a subsequent periad, the amount of the estimated impairment !oss decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognlzed impairment loss
is reduced by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss s
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income, to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. i
i
Inventories i
Inventories consist of materials and supplias that will be used in rendermg the Group’s services to [ts

customers. These are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV}, Cost is determined
using the moving average method. NRV Is the estimated selling prtce in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of marketing and distribution and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. In determining the NRV, the Group considers any adjustment necessary for

obsolescence,

CWT and (nput VAT

CWT. CWT represents the amount withheld by the Group’s customers in relation to its income.
CWT can be utilized as payment for income taxes provided that these are properly supported by
certificates of creditable tax withheld at source subject to the rules on Phlhpplne income taxation.
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VAT. Revenue, expenses and assets (excluding accounts and other reciewab!es) are recognized net

of the amount of VAT, i

Deferred Input VAT, In accordance with the Revenue Regulation (RR)Ki No. 16-2005, input VAT on
purchases or imperts of the Group of capital goods {depreciable assets for income tax purposes)
with an aggregate acquisition cost (exclusive of VAT) in each of the| calendar month exceeding
#1.0 milllon are claimed as credit against output VAT over 60 months or-the estimated useful lives of
capital goods, whichever is shorter, i*

Wheare the aggregate acquisition cost (exciusive of VAT) of the e}ustmg or finished depreciable
capital goods purchased or imported during any calendar month doeslnot exceed R1.0 millicn, the
total input VAT will be allowable as credit against output VAT in the month of acquisition.

Deferred input VAT represents the unamortized amount of input VAT;on capital goods and input
VAT on the unpaid portion of availed services, Including the use or lease of properties.
|

Deferred input VAT on capital goods is classified as cufrent assets if t is expected to be claimed
against output VAT no more than 12 months after the reporting date. Otherwise, these are
classifled as noncurrent assets. ;

Other Current Assets !
Other current assets consist of advances to suppliers and prepayments. f

Advances to Suppliers, Advances to suppliers are amounts paid in advance for the purchase of
goods and services, These are carried at the amount of cash paid in the statement of consalidated
financial position and are recognized to the corresponding asset account when the goods or services
for which the advances were made are received. ‘
|
Prepayments. Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred ! but already paid in cash.
Prepayments are initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid,
Subsequently, these are charged to expense as these are consumed in operations or expire with the
passage of time. Prepayments are classified as current asset when the cost of goods or services
related to the prepayment are expected to be incurred within one vear or the Group's normal
operating cycle, whichever is longer. Ctherwise, prepayments are classnf" ed as noncurrent assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciatuon and any

accumulated impairment value. h

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase prlce, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates, and any directly attributable costs of brmgmg the asset to Its working
condition and location for its intended use. The cost of self—constructed assets includes the cost of
materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to brmglng the assets to a working
condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removmg 'the items and restoring the
site on which they are located and capitalized borrowing casts.
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Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been 'but into operation, such as
repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally recognized in prof‘ t or loss in the year the
costs are incurred, In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have
resufted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be 1obtamed from the use of an
item of property and eguipment beyond its originally assessed sta‘hdard of performance, the
expenditures are capitalized as additional costs of property and eqmpment The cost of replacing a
component of an item of property and equipment is recoghized if it}is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied within the component will flow to theiGroup, and its cost can be
measured rellably. The carrying amount of the replaced component is dierecogmzed

When significant parts of an item of proparty and equipment have dlfferent usefu lives, these are
accounted for as separale items (major components) of property and equgpment

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line !method over the following
estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment: ;w

Number of ‘fe,ars
Machinery and equipment 51010 )
Buildings and leasehold improvements 20and 3 or térm of the lease,

whlchever Is sharter,
respet‘:tlvelv

Dffice equipment, furniture and fixtures 3tn5 i
Tools 3to5 i
Transportation equipment 5 to 10 i‘

The estimated usefu! lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed periodically to
ensure that these are consistent with the expected pattern of economlc benefits from items of
property, plant and equipment. ;1

i
When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated
depreciation, amortization and any impairment in value are removed from the accounts. Any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or [oss. ;
Construction in progress (CIP} represents properties under constructlon and is stated at cost,
including costs of construction and other direct costs. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the construction of the property, plant and equipment are capstahzed during the construction
period. CIP is not depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are completed and available

l \
|

for operational use. i

Lteasehold Rights i
The leasehold rights of Treasure and ZZ Stronghold are stated at cost Iess accumulated amortization

and any impairment in value. Leasehold rights are measured on mltaal recognition at cost which
includes purchase price and other direct costs. Subsequent to initial recogmtlon, leasehold rights
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any |mpa|rment losses. The amortization
of the leasehold rights is computed on a straight line basis over 25 yealrs and 42 years for Treasure
and 2Z Stronghold, respectively, which are the terms of the lease agreement

The estimated usefu! lives and amortization method are reviewed perlod;cally to ensure that these
are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from the Ieasehold rights.
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When leasehold rights are retired or disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated amortization
and any Impairment in value are removed from the accounts. Any resultmg gain or loss is recognized
in profit or |oss. E‘

i
Borrowing Costs ;*
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction of a qualifying asset,
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to prepare for its mtended use are included in
the cost of that asset. Such borrowing costs are capitelized as part of the cost of the asset when it is
probable that these will result in future economic benefits to the (:‘,ljoup and the costs can be

measured reliably. Other borrowing costs are recognized as expense. ”

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during extended period i m whlch the Group suspends
active development of a qualifying asset and ceases when substantiaily aH the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use are complete. An asset is normally ready for its
intended use when the physical construction of the asset is complete even though routine
administrative work might still continue. |

1
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets I
Nonfinancial assets consisting of property, plant and equipment, Ieasehold rights and other

nonfinancial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes In circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. |lf any such indication exists
and where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverahle amount the asset or cash-
generating unit Is written down to its recoverable amount. The est|mated recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Jn assessing value in use, the
astimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value usmg;a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of time value of money and the nsks specific to the asset, For
an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset beiongs Impairment losses are
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. !
1
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment Josses may no longer exist or may have decreased if such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recoghized |mpa|rment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrvmg amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no Impalrment loss been recognized for
the asset in prior years. After such a reversal the depreciation charge i |s adjusted In future periods
1o allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value,‘on a systematic basis over

remaining useful life, !

l

i
Equity i
Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital. Capital stock is measured‘ at par value for all shares
issued. Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received in excess of par value, if any, are
recognized as additional paid-in capital. Incremental costs incurred d:rect!v attributable to the
issuance of new shares are recognized in equity as deductlon from proceeds net of tax. Unpaid
subseriptions are recognized as a reduction aof subscribed capital shares

Deficit. Deficit represents the cumulative balance of net income or loss, _net of dividend declaration.
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Other Equity Reserve. Other equity reserve comprises of items of i |ncome and expense that are not
recagnized in profit or loss for the year in accordance with PFRS. Other equity reserve of the Group
pertains to remeasurement gains and losses on retirement Ilablhty and cumulative translation
adjustment. 51

i

Revenue Recognition |
Revenue is recognized to the extent that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the

amount of the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue s measqred at the fair value of the
consideration received, excluding discounts and rebates. The Group has concluded that it is the
principal in all of its revenue arrangements. The following specific recognltlon criteria must also be

met before revenue is recognized. ;;

Sale of Goods. Revenue is recognized when the risk and rewards of ownershlp of the goods have

passed to the buyer and the amount of revenue can be measured rellably
\

I
Interest Income. Income is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the effective yield
on the assets, net of final tax. ;

, . i .
Other Income. Income from other sources is recognized when earned during the period.

Costs and Expense Recognition |
Costs and expenses are recognized in profit or loss when a decrease in future economic benefits
related to a decrease In an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen thlat can be measured reliably.
b
1

Cost of Goods Sold. Cost of goods sold is recognized as expense when th‘é refated goods are sold.

Operating Expenses. Operating expenses constitute costs of admlnlstenng the business and costs
incurred to seil and market the goods. These are expensed when Incurred

Interest Expense. Interest expense is recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Basic and Diluted Earnings {Loss) per Share ij
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings (loss} per share. BasIc:earmngs {loss) per share is

calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Grqnp by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the year, excluding common shares purchased by the
Group and held as treasury shares. Diluted earnings (loss} per sharé; is calculated in the same
manner, adjusted for the effects of all the dilutive potential common sha':lfes.

Leases i
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease i lS ‘based on the substance of

the arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement Is dependent on

the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement convevsi a right to use the asset.

A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the followung applies:

a. thereis a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extenszon of the arrangement;

b. arenewal option is exerclsed or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term; I\

c. there is a change in the determination of whether fuifillment is dependent on a specified asset;

I

or
d. there is a substantial change to the asset.

il
!
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Where reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in clrcumsiances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios [a]f,f (c} or (d) and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario (b). I

Group as a lessee. leases where the lessor retains substantially aIE the risks and benefits of
ownership are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an

expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basls over the
lease term. ;1
Employee Benefits §
'
Short-term Benefits. The Group provides short-term benefits to its em"ployees in the form cf basic
pay, 13th month pay, bonuses, employer’s share on-govemment cuntrlbution, and other short-term
i\

benefits. H
!:

Retirement Benefits, TKC and Treasure has unfunded, noncontnbutory retirament plan covering
their qualified employees while ZZ Stronghold maintains a-state ma naged social security contribution
plan for the retirement benefits of its employees. Costs of retirement benefits are actuarially
determined using the projected unit credit method. This method reflects service rendered by
employees to the date of valuation and incorparates assumptions concemlng employees’ projected

salaries. i

The Group recognizes service costs, comprising of current service costs, Ipast service costs, gains and
losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and net mterest expense or income in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 3

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan amendment

or curtailment; and the date that the Group recognizes restructuring—re!'ated costs.
i

Net interest on the net retirement liability or assat is the change dunng the period in the net
retirement liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determmed by applying the
discount rate based on government bonds to the net retirement Ilablhty or asset. Net interest is
calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit habtl::w or asset.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan éssets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined beneft liability) are recognized
immediately in OC! in the period in which they arise. Remeasurementsiare not reclassified to profit

or loss in subsequent periods. 5‘

1

The present value of the defined benefit liability is determined by dlscountmg the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rate on government bonds that have terms to maturity approximating

the terms of the related retirement liability. :;
i

Actuarial valuations are made with sufficient regularity that the chﬂounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements do not differ materially from the amounts that would be

determined at the reporting date.

Ihcome Taxes

Current Tax. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable inc.:jome for the yaar, using tax
rate enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. i
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Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for fi nancnal reporting purposes,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary dlfferences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences, and carry forward benefits of the excess of
minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate mcome tax and net operating loss
carryover (NOLCO}, to the extent that it Is probabie that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, excess MCIT and NOLCO can be utilized,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reportmg date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable prof‘t wnl! be available to allow all
or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. !1

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that alrfe expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rate (and tax laws) in effect
at the reporting date. !

i
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable righ't‘ exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the

same taxation authority. i

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation i‘

The Group determines its own functional currency and items included |n the consolidated financial
statements are measured using that functional currency. Transactlons in foreign currencies are
initially recorded in the functional currency rate ruling at the transactmn| date,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retrans[ated at the functional
currency rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. All differences are taken to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost fn a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as‘ at the dates of the initial
transactions. Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign cprrency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. ||

The results and financial position of an entity whose functicnal currerfjcy is not the currency of a

hyperinflationary economy are translated into a different presentation currency using the following

procedures: i

s assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translatzlad at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet. This would include any goodwill arlsmg on the acquisition of a
foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on the acquisition of that foreign operation are treated as part of the assets and liabilities

of the foreign operation; “

¢ income and expenses for each income statement are translated at exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions; and

swe jncome.

= B

e all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehen




-17- i

Related Parties |

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control directly, or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, or exercise significant influence oqer the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between andfor among entities
which are under common control with the reporting entity, or between andfor among the
reporting entity and its key management personne), directors or its stockholders. In considering
each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship,

and not merely to the legal form.

Provisions and Cantingencies !

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a prasent legal or constructwe obligation as a result
of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources Wl" be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated. ‘

|
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
meney and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the prowslon due to passage of time
is recognized as interest expense, |
|
|
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting year and adjusted to reflect the current best

estimate. ;}
!

Contingent liabllities are not recognized in the consolidated ﬁnanciél statements. These are
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the;possablhty of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the
consolldated financial statements but disclosed in the notes to consol:dated financial statements

when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. !‘
il
i

Segment Reporting i
Operating segments are components of the Group: (a) that engage in business activities from which

they may earn revenue and incur expenses {including revenues and expenses relating to
transactions with other components of the Group); (b) whose operatmg results are regularly
reviewed by the Group’s senior management, its chief operating decrsnon maker, to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its perfo rmance, and {c) for which
discrete financial information is available. i

For purposes of management reporting, the Group's operating buslinesses are organized and
managed separately based on.the nature of the business segment, with! each business representing

a strategic business segment. i

Events After the Reporting Date |
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group s financial position at the

end of reporting year (adjusting events) are reflected in the cnnsolldated financial statements when
material. Post year-end events that are non-adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to

consolidated financial statements when material. Ei
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3. Significant Judgment, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions '

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgment,
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. The judgment and estimates used in the financlal statemenrs are based upon
management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as at the lie porting date.

While the Group believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant
differences in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumpt:ons may materially affect

the estimated amounts. Actual results could differ from such estirmates. E‘
!\

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 0n going basis. Changes in
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estlmate is revised if the change
affects only that period or in the period of the change and future penods if the revision affects both

current and future periods, ]

'\
The following are the significant judgment, accounting estimates and assumptions made by the
Group:

i\

Determining Functional Currency. Based on management’s assessment the functional currency of
the Group has been determined to be the Philippine Peso. The Phlllpp:ne Peso is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Group operates. It IS the currency that mainly
influences the operations of the Group. :;
Determining Operating Segments. Determination of operating segments is based on the
information about components of the Group that management uses to make decisions about the
operating matters. Operating segments use internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the
Group's chief operating decision maker, which Is defined to be the Group s BOD, in order to allocate
resources to the segment and assess its performance. The Group reports separate information
about an operating segment that meets any of the following quantztatwe thresholds: {a) its reported
revenue, including both sales to external customers and intersegment sa!es or transfers, is 10% or
more of the combined revenue, internal and external, of all operatmg segments; {b) the absolute
amount of its reported prefit or loss is 10% or more of the greater, |n| absoiute amount, of (i} the
combined reported profit of all operating segments that did not report 3 loss and (il} the combined
reported loss of all operating segments that reported a loss; and (¢) the assets of the segment are

10% or more of the combined assets of all operating segments. ;5

The Group has three reportable operating segments and generates revenues from two geographical
segments, Philippines and China. i

Classifying Leases - Group as a Lessee. The Group has entered into offlce property leases. The
Group has determined that the risks and benefits of ownership related to the leased properties are

retained by the lessor. Accordingly, the leases are accounted for as ope atmg leases,

Rental expense amounted to 5.4 million, B5.5 million and R5.2 mllllon in 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively {see Note 23), :‘
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Assessing for Impairment Loss on Trade and Other Recelvables and Due from Related Parties, The
Group maintains allowance for doubtful accounts at a level conmdered adequate to provide for
potential uncollectible receivables, The level of this allowance is evaluated by management on the
basis of factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts. These fac.tors include, but are not
limited to, significant financlal difficulties or bankruptey, the length of the Group's relationship with
the customer and the counterparty, the payment behavior, and known"market factors. The Group
identifies and provides for specific accounts that are doubtful of collectlon and reviews the age and
status of the remaining receivables and establishes a provision consldenng, among others, historical
collection and write-off experience. i‘

Receivables amounting to R17.7 million, 829.1 million and R1.5 million \were directly written off by
ZZ Stranghold in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 18). 1
Trade and other receivables amounted to #265.9 million and P2105mllllon as at December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectivaly (see Note 5). Due from related pariies amounted to 40.0 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016 (see Note 14). §

t
Determining NRV of Inventories. The Group, in determining the NRV o!f inventories, considers any
adjustments for obsolescence. The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period wouid
differ if different jJudgment were made or different estimates were used An increase in allowance
for inventory obsolescence and market decline would increase recorcled operating expense and
decrease current assets. i
{n 2016, Treasure recognized provision for inventory write-down amouﬂting to R106.0 million. As at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, inventories carrled at the lower of cost and NRV amounted to
R360.8 million and R380.4 million, respectively. Allowance for inventory write-down amotinted to
R149.5 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 (see Note &). ?;

Estimating Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and Leaseho.'d Rights. The Group
estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and lea]sehoid rights based on the
period over which the assets are expected to be avaflable for use. The estimates are based on a
collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation} and experience with similar
assets. The estimated useful lives of property and equipment and :ntanglble assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and are updated if expectations differ from pre\nous estimates due to physical
wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or uther limits on the use of the
assets. Future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought
about by changes in the factors mentioned above. The amount and timing of recording of
depreciation expense for any period would be affected by changes in these factors and

circumstances. i
i

There were no changes in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and leasehold
rights in 2017, 2016 and 2015. i

Depreciation and amortization are as follows:

Note 2017 12016 2015
Property and equipment 9 PR34,185,379 R51,86§,330 R54,172,182
Leasehold rights i0 6,440,038 8,70%,029 8,473,684

i
1
{
|
I
i
i
4
i
:
i
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:

The carrying amounts of property and equipment and leaseheld rights a:i:‘e as follows:

a,

Note 2017 2016

Property and equipment 9 R3,404,944,583  B4,012,508,653

teasehold rights 10 230,80?,985 225,953,272
I

Assessing for impairment of Nonfinancial Assets h

H
Property, Plant and Equipment and Leasehold Rights |

i
The Group assesses impairment on property, plant and equipment and leasehold rights
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may
not be recoverable. The factors that the Group considered impo:itant which could trigger an
impairment review include the following: i

it

s significant underperformance relative to expected historical oni‘ projected future operating
resulis; k

e significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assetfs or the strategy for overall
business; or }

+ significant negative industry or economic trends. ;1

Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairmént loss

is recognized. Recoverable amounts are estimated for Individual a:sjsets or, If it is not possible,

for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Il

In 2017, Treasure recognized provision for impairment loss on pro:berty, plant and equipment

amounting to R683.5 million {see Note 9). As at December 31, 2|[}17 and 2016, the carrying

amount of property, plant and equipment amounted to R3,404.9 million and R4,012.5 million,
L

respectively. i

Goodwill |

The Group’s management conducts an annual review for any ix:hpairment in value of the
goodwill. Goodwill is written down for impalrment where the net present value of the
forecasted future cash flows from the business is insufficient to support its carrying amount. The
impairment on goodwill is determined by comparing (a} the carryingiamount of goodwill plus the
net tangible assets of the merged entity and (b) the present value 6f the annual projected cash
flows for five years computed under the discounted cash flow met:hod. Goedwill amounted to
£11.8 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, Goodwill is presented fas part of “Other noncurrent
assets” in the consolidated statements of financial position {see Note 11).

No impairment on goodwill was recognized in 2017, 2016 and 2015.

CWT and Input VAT

i
The carrying amounts of the CWT and input VAT are adjusted to ép extent that it is probable
that sufficient taxable profit and revenue subject to output VAT, resg')‘ectively, will be available to
allow all or part of the CWT and input VAT to be utilized. Any allowance for unrecoverable
portion of CWT and input VAT Is maintained at a fevel considen:a:d adequate to provide for

-potentially unrecoverable portion. The level of allowance Is based on past application

experience and other factors that may affect realizability. l
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In 2017, 2016 and 2015, no impairment |osses have been recogmzeél} for the CWT and input VAT.
The carrying amounts of CWT and input VAT aggregated to 294.6 mllllon and B295.4 million as
at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 7).

Estimating Retirement Benefit Costs. The determination of the obhgatlon and costs of retirement
benefits is dependent on the assumptions used by the actuary in calculatmg such amounts. These
assumptions are described in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and include, among

others, discount rates and salary increase rates. "

Retirement expense amounted 1o #1.3 million, R1.0 million and 1.3 mllllon in 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.  The retirement liability amounted to #7.8 mdhon and #8.1million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 20). |‘

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets. The carrying amount of deferred "tax assets at each reporting
date are reviewed and reduced to the extent that it is nc longer probable that sufficienit taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. The Group’s
assassment on the recoghition of deferred tax assets on deductible tempurary differences is based
on the forecasted taxable income of the subsequent reporting periods. lTh:s forecast is based on the
Group's past results and future expectations on revenue and expenses. i‘

|
The Group did not recognize deferred tax assets amounting to R330.6 rmlllon and #139.4 million as
at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Management belleves' that it may not be able to
utilize these deferred tax assets against future tax liabilities (see Note 25|).

Ii
|
i

Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

2017 2016
Cash on hand R19,596 R6,000,409
Cash in banks 29,706,098 24,185,629
Cash eqguivalents 4,656,253/ 875,778

234,381, 947 £31,061,816

Cash in bank earns interest at prevailing bank deposit rates. 5
1
il

Cash eguivalents pertain to short-term placements and earn interest at the respective short-term

I‘
i
Interest income earned on cash in banks and cash equivalents amounted to R17,916, 124,372 and
R866,785 in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 24). |

deposit rates.




@,

O

-22- }

Trade and Other Receivables 1

i

This aceount consists of: i‘

1
Note 2017 2016

Trade:
Third partles R215,058,044  R159,818,489
Related parties 13 47,794,666 47,794,666
Advances to officers and employees 2,468,722;§ 2,394,198
Qthers 613,760, 540,280

#265,935,192, £210,547,633
i

Trade receivables are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and are generaiily on a 30 to 20-day credit
term.

|\
|
Advances to officers and employees are noninterest-bearing and are subject to liquidation
within a year. L
!

Long outstanding receivables amounting to £17.7 million, R29.1 mllilon and 1.5 million were
directly written off by ZZ Stronghold in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectwely {see Note 18}.

11
4

i
Inventories i |

I

|

This account consists of: |

2017 i 2016
Lower of v Lower of
At Cost Costand NRV I At Cost  Cost and NRY
Raw materials and spare parts R408,035,248  R259,729,793  #434, 052,677  R286,647,222
Finished goods 654,520,940 64,489,360 44, 639 785 44,608,205
Factory supplies 33,174,271 33,174,271 45; '720 162 45,720,162
Scrap metals 4,588,769 3,443,173 4,388,769 3,443,173

2510,319,228  #360,836,597  R529,901,393  P380,418,762

I
i

Movements in the allowance for inventory write-down are as follows: 3

Note 2017 ;; 2016
Balance at beginning of year R149,482,631 5; R43,502,605
Provision for inventory write-down 19 - 105,879,936
Balance at end of year R149,482,631 i: £149,482,631

' i
Inventories charged to operations amounted to #280.7 million, #262.0 mllllon and £218.5 million in
2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 17). i
’\
Inventories held by ZZ Stronghold amounting to R121.2 million and #1115 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively are pledged as collateral on Ioans {see Note 13},
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7. CWT and Input VAT i

f

This account consists of:
2017 2016

Input VAT: {
Current R224,144,122 R223,930,566
Deferred 1,381,178 1,841,564
CWT 69,049,815 659,616,240
#294,575,115 R295,388,370

]

8, Other Current Assets I

i

This account consists of: i

;|
2017 2016
Advances to suppliers P24,738,324 £29,028,368
Prepayments 995,111 820,270
25,733‘,1435 29,848,638
Provision for impairment (224.783) -

R25,518,652 R29,848,638

i
Advances to suppliers are advance payments for purchase of scrap andijother raw materials. These
advances are subsequently recognized as inventory upon delivery of materials,

i

i
In 2016, long outstanding advances to suppliers of #0.2 million of the Parent Company was provided
with allowance for impairment {(see Note 19). j‘

il
1
il

9. Property, Plant and Equipment i

The balances and movements of this account are as follows:

2007 !
Oifice i
Buildings and Equipment, i
Constructionin ~ Machinecyand Leaszhold Furnliure and : | Transgortation
Nete Progress Equipment  Jmprovements Fietures ' Tools Equipment Tokal
Cast : i
Balances at beglhning i
of year P3,688,261,796 745,550,041 R274,510,829 P15,558,352 FS.?’{I],,’&? P10,384,683  R4,730,007,437
Additians - 279,394 - 216,792 | - - 430,686
Dispasal - 13,000,000} - - 1l - {2,255,561) |5,255,562)
Excharge realignment 95,739,685 20,734,993 14,500,853 430,845 i - 248,748 135,755,098
Balances at end of year 3,788,001,485 764,564,928 285,151,682 16,193,938 3,743,137 £.372,339 4.810,037,655
Accumulated Depreclatlon, il
Amortization and i
Impakrment loss i‘
Balances at beginning il
of year - 545,674,357 152,396,796 14,936,834 3,741,737 8,743,060 725,498,784
Impabtment 1 683,451,047 - - - b - 683,451,047
Depreciation and i
amortization 22 - 21,789,387 12,038,936 169,138 I - 187,418 34,185,379
Blsposal - {3,000,000} - - ‘ - (2,215,512} {5,215,913)
Exchange rezlignment - 19,157,768 5,420,980 389,438 i - 205,592 26,173,778
Halances at end of year £283,451,037 583,621,512 170,856,712 15,895,410 3,7]'41,7!? 71,926,658 1,465,093,076

Carrylng Amount #3,104,550438 #180,943,416 118,294,970 2T04,578 e PAS1,181  P2.404,084,583

f
'
i%
i
!
!
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|
2016 i
Office ;
Buitdings and Equipment, :
Constructionin  Machinery and Leasehold Furniture and i Transportation
Nete Progress Equipment  Improvements Fxtures . Tools Equipment Total
Cost !
Balances at beginning |
of year F3,709,517,925 #1738,542,137 R277,A23,580 17,428,074 PBI,?ED,SII 10,434,165  P4,763,876,792
Additions 1,350,250 8,830,372 - 230,578 : - - 10,411,640
Disposal {3,151,548) - - (28,804) bo- - 13,178,453}
Exchange realignment 19,854,770) {B22,468) (2,812,751} {2,473,397) i - {49,482} {26,123,368}
Balances at end of year 3,688,261,785 746,550,041 274,510,879 15,558,351 5,730,911 10,384,683 4,744,996,611
Accumulated Depreciation i
and Amerization |
Ralancas at baginning l i
of year - A83,382,590 165,923,852 17,132,220 9,730,911 9,611,603 685,781,182
Depreciation and i
amprtzatlon 2 - 39,745,657 11,704,721 233,284 ! | - 182,788 51,266,530
Dispasal - - - (25,454) ) - - |25,454]
Exchange reali 13 = 22,546,210 {25,231,777) (2,403,186) ) - (45,337} {5,134,030}
Balances at end of yea - 545,674,357 153,395,796 14,536,834 9,730,931 9,749,060 732,487,958
Carrylng Amount #3,688,261,756 $200,875,684 F122,114,033 #621,517 I fi= #5635,623 R, 012,508,653

[
Construction in progress pertains to Treasure’s and ZZ Stronghold’é} plant expansion projects.
These projects include the construction of new beneficiating plant, t:sjuo blast furnace, sintering
plant, refurbishment and upgrade of billet manufacturing plant of Treasure in lligan City and the
construction of building and plant facllities for the stretch reducer mfi‘l! of ZZ Stronghold in PRC,
These projects, except the second blast furnace of Treasure, were :almost completed and are
1

subject to final stage of testing. ;

As discussed in Note 1, ZZ Stronghold has been recurring losses in previous years but was able to
increase sales and generated positive results of operations in 2017 The market value of the
property, plant and equipment and leasehold rights of ZZ Stronghold s higher than the recorded
net carrying amount of R1,914.7 million (including leasehold rights discussed in Note 10) as at
December 31, 2017 based on a latest independent assessment of the fair value. The fair value was
determined using Jevel 2 in the fair value hierarchy. |

Completion of the construction of Treasure has been long delayed beéhuse the Company has not
been able to get potential investors not only to fund the completion but to resume operations
(see Note 1). Treasure has decided to revlew the recoverability ofi?’reasure’s assets using an
independent valuation rather than value in use not only because of the delay but also considering
the significant downturn In the industry because of the declining prices of steel and demand level.
As at December 31, 2017, the carrying amount of the Treasure's pro‘pekty, plant and equipment is
lower than its current depreciated replacement cost as determined by an independent appraiser
based on its report dated April 10, 2018. n

in this approach, an estimate Is made of the current replacement cost of the replaceable property
based on prevailing market prices for materials, labor, and overhead ass:bciated with its acquisition,
installation and construction in place, but without provision for overtinﬁ:e or bonuses for (abor and
premiums for materials. Adjustments were made to reflect depfnfeciaﬁon due to physical
deterioration and any functional and economic cbsolescence that fimay exist to arrive at a
reasonable valuation. The fair value of the property, plant and equipment, which is also equal to its
depreciated replacement cost, is based on the “highest and best use” talking into account the use of
the assets that is physically possible, legally permissible and financiaihj feasible, Consequently, a
provision for Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment amou’hting to £683,5 million was
recognized in 2017 in the consolidated staterents of comprehensive Incbme {see Note 19). The fair
value was determined using level 2 in the fair vaiue hierarchy.
|
|
|
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There was no capitalization of barrowing costs in 2017 because the! Ective development of the
plant was stopped. :;
In 2017, Treasure wrote off fully depreciated machinery and ' equment amounting to
£3.0 million. Treasure also sold a fully depreciated transportation equment resulting to a gain on
sale amounting to #2.4 million in 2017 (see Note 24). h

[
Property, plant and equipment of ZZ Stronghold with carrying amount of B1,914.7 million and
£114.3 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, were pfeclged to secure the loans
payable of ZZ Stronghold (see Note 13), ,]
7Z Stronghold recorded a loss on disposal of transportation equ:pmen'f amounting to 39,650, nil
and R17,751 in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. I

Construction Commitments
The Group has several construction contracts on its plant expansion prcajects covering mainly the

beneficiating plant, blast furnace, power plant and the liquid gas storagq projects.

10.

Leasehcld Rights

The balances and movements of this account are as foilows:

2017
Note Z2 Stranghold Treasure Total
Cost it
Balances at beginning of year R252,408,329 R46,000;000 R298,408,320
Exchange realignment 20,362,675 io- 20,362,675
Balances at end of year 272,771,004 46,000,000 318,771,004
Accumulated Amortization i
Balances at beginning of year 50,681,724 21, 773'333 72,455,057
Amortization 22 4,600,038 1, 840 GDO 6,440,038
Exchange reallgnment 9,067,924 9,067,924
Balances at end of year 64,345,686 23.613.333 £7,963,019
Carrying Amount #208,421,318 R22,386/667 R230,807,985
2016 |
Note Z2 Stranghold Treasure Total
Cost B
Balances at beginning of year R253,190,856 F4E,OOD,EOUO £299,190,856
Exchange realignment (782,527} i - (782,527}
Balances at end of year 252,408,325 46,000,000 298,408,329
Accumulated Amortization i i
#alances at beginning of year 42,104,767 19,933,333 62,038,100
Amartization 22 6,863,029 1,840,000 8,703,029
Exchange realighment 1,713,928 I 1,713,928
Balances at end of year 50,681,724 21,773,333 72,455,057
Carrying Amount R201,726,605 P24,225;667 R225,953,272

ZZ Stronghold
On December 8, 2005, 72 Stronghold has a contractual agreement {the Agreement} with China

Merchants Zhangzhou Development Zone Co. Ltd. (China Merchants) for the right to use the land
located in 1M2-05 Zone |, China Merchants Development Zone for a }CJGI’lOl:l of 42 years. Thelandis

where the 22 Stronghold steel plant is [ocated. ”

|x
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The leasehold rights with carrying amount of 208.4 million and R201. 7 m:i!ion as at December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively, were pledged to secure the loans payable of ZZ Stronghold
{see Note 13}, i |
Treasure :

Treasure (lessee) has a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with Global Ispat Holdings, Ltd. and
Global Steelworks International, Inc. {lessors, both of whom are nonrelated parties) for the lease of a
steel billet making plant located in lligan City, Lanao def Norte, Phlllppmes far a period of 25 years

from 2006. A

The MOA provides among others, that Treasure shall:

 Fully settle the claims, liens and encumbrances in the property; a‘ndi |
e Rehabilitate and commercially operate the steel billet making plant;,
i

Settlements pald by Treasure amounting to R46.0 million were recorded las “Leasehold rights” in the
consclidated statements of financial position. I

11,

Other Noncurrent Assets i

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016
Advances to contractors r46,651, 046 P46,651,046
Goodwill 16 11,803, 406 11,803,406
Refundable deposits 1,987, 1(.‘15 1,987,105
Prepaid rent 1,458,608 1,507,688
AFS financial asset - at cost 500,000 500,000
Defarred input VAT - net of current 1
portion ;— 1,381,178
Others 15,282,086 1,236,203
' 77,682,251 65,066,626

Allowance for impairment on advances {
to contractors 19 46,651,046 46,651,046

R31,031,205 P18,415,580
I
Advances to contractors pertain to funds advanced by Treasure to its éontractors in relation to its
plant expansion projects. These were fully provided for in 2016.

Refundable deposits pertain mainly to the Parent Company’s five-year; off' ce lease contract with a

third party which commenced in September 2014 (see Note 23}, ia
I

Others pertain mainly to prepayments and construction bond of the Partie‘nt Company.
I
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12. Trade and Other Payables ;
|

This account consists of: . I ;
il

Note 2017 2016

Trade payables: H
Third parties R807,706,679  ®758,795,215
Related parties 14 10,148,770 10,148,770

Accruals for: {|
DST 21,426,349 22,846,221
Real property tax 14,803,232 -
Others 78,059,107 23,955,865
Deposits ‘- 18,356,687
Salaries payable 15,169,845 9,856,199
Statutory payables 4,118,7354 2,562,131
Others 3,713,665 3,895,285

R955,146,381  R8S50,456,373

Trade and other payables are unsecured, noninterest-bearing :!a!nd are normally settled
throughout the year. : |

Accrued others include provision for contingencies to cover claim by a‘ third party.

i
Deposits pertain to ZZ Stronghold’s advances from custamers for ordered items which were not
yet delivered as at reporting date. H

13. Loans Payable

This account represents loans availed by the Group from commercial banks maturing within one (1)
year from the reporting date, renewable upon mutual agreement of the pqﬁties.
I
Details are as follows: 1
|
2017 ;
Amount of Loan Amount of i
Original Currency  {original currency) Loan {in Peso) Spurce of Loan Interest Rate
TKC PHP 337,602,442 R337,602,442 | Local bank 6.0%
Treasure PHP 200,000,000 200,000,000 | Local bank 6.0%
ZZ Stronghold RMB 66,822,756 510,685,273 Forelgn bank 7.84% to 8.4%
#1,048,287,715 i
|
2016 )
Amount of Loan Amount of i }
Original Currency {orginal currency) Loan (in Peso} Source of Loan Interest Rate
TXC PHP 337,602,442 R337,502,442 '1 Local bank 6.0%
Treasure PHP 200,000,000 200,000,000 | Local hank 6.0%
ZZ Stronghold RMB 55,000,000 472,348,731 {Forelgn bank 7.84% to B.4%

®1,008,951,173 {
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As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, certaln assets of ZZ Stronghold were pledged as collateral to
secure its loans, Leasehold rights with carrying amount of R208.4 lmulhon and B201.7 million,
respectively; property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of #1,914.7 million and
R114.3 million, respectively; and inventories amounting to R121. 2| million and #111.5 million
were pledged as collateral of loans payable of R510.7 million ano‘ R472.3 million as at
Decernber 31, 2017 and 20186, respectively (see Notes 6, 9 and-‘lﬂ) There are no other
caovenants that the Group must comply with, ; 1

Loans payable of the Parent Company and Treasure are unsecured,

Details of interest expense follows:

2017 2016 2015
Loans payable R63,899,500 R57,135, 057 ®£71,814,666
Bills payable - i 80,673

#63,899,500 R57,185,057 R71,895,339
? |
The changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2017 are
as follows: |

Balanceat  Changes from |

beginning of  financing cash Exchange Balance at end

Note year flows reahgnment of year

Loans payable 13 R1,009,951,173 F13,584,534 P24,$§2,008 R1,048,287,715
Due to related parties 14 3,522,827,405 37,477,828 g - 3,560,305,233

R4,532,778,578 R51,462,362 £24,352,008 P4,608,592,948

14,

Related Party Transactions ‘
l

The Group has transactions with its related parties in the ordinary cours? of business as follows:
Trade and Qther Receivables i 3

Trade and other receivables are from sale of inventories and are unsecured noninterest-hearing
and are generally on a 30 to 90-day credit (see Note 5).. No impalrment was recognized in 2017,

2016 and 2015. ,_ 3

Transactions and outstanding balance arising from sale of inventories as follows
i \

Amount of Transactions i Outstanding Balance
2017 2016 i 2017 2016
Under commen contral: i
Goodyear Steel Plpe Corporation : }
{Goodyear} R R~ ?43,;539,292 £43,639,292
British Wire Industries, inc. ;‘
(British} - - 4,155,374 4,155,374

R47,794,666 R47,794,666
1

[ !




0

-29-

Trade and Other Pavables

Trade and other payables are from inventory purchases &nd avallment of manufacturing services.

These are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and payable in cash (see Note 12}

summarized as follows:

These are

Amount of Transactions QOutstanding Balance
2017 2016 2007 2016

Under common control: ;
Goodyear P P P5;013,082 R5,013,082
British - - 4i385,346 4,385,346
Others - - 1750,342 750,342
210}148,770  P10,148,770

Due from Related Parties

Due from related parties are unsecured, noninterest-bearing advances for working capital

requirements,
recognized in 2017, 2016 and 2015.

Summarized below are the outstanding accounts arising from these tran ctions.

Amount of Transactions

These are normally settled in cash throughout the year No Impairment was

}
{1 Outstanding Balance
i

2017 2016 ' 2017 2016
Stockhoider R- P— 211,:838,673 £11,838,673
Under comimon control: . i
Goodyear - - 24,758,753 24,758,753
stronghold Steel Corporation - - 2,'118,850 2,118,850
British - - 1 059,802 1,058,802
Cthers - 9,399 _200,457 200,457
B39,976,535 #39,976,535

Due to Related Parties

Due to related partles are unsecured, noninterest-bearing advéljces for working capital
requirements. These are payable on demand and to be settled in cash. Ii

I
- . i
Summarized below are the outstanding accounts arising from these tran; actions.
1
1
L
8

Amount of Transactions Cutstanding Balance
2017 2016 2017 2016
Stockholders R24,677,259 £150,000 F2,905,917,700 £2,894,536,329
Ultimate Parent - E ‘
JTKC Equities, Inc. - - 433,691,362 437,691,362
Under commaon control: £
Quad Quality Management, H
itd. - - 93,509,804 93,609,804
Oakridge Properties, Inc. 23,174,155 22,536,895 79 030,991 55,856,836
I-Remit, Inc, - - 16 ,900,000 16,800,000
JTKC Land, Inc. 1,500,000 1,500,000 3,000,000 1,500,000
Stronghold Steel Corporation - - 1 000,000 1,000,000
Goodyear - - 1 000,000 1,000,000
Others 4,000,000 2,703,710 22 155,376 20,733,074
RB,SGb,BOB,ZBS P3,522,827,405
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\

|
Summarized below are the receivables from related parties which ére eliminated during the
consclidation. ;

2017, 2016
Subsidiaries: ‘
Treasure:
Due from related partles 71,018,434,744 R1,022,374,927
Trade receivables 2,176, 670‘ 2,175,670
Billicns -
Due from related parties 303,233, 653\ 322,802,277
Campanilla -
Due from related parties 753.,146‘ 731,152

R1,322,596,213] P1,348,085,026
l:

Compensation of key management personne! of the Group follows: i |
|

2017 2016 2015

Short-term benefits 15,004,318 97,809,484; £8,124,471
Post-employment benefits 140,328 411,561 134,262
£238,144,646 £8,221 ,045 | £8,258,733

15, Equity

!
i
H
T
l

Capital Stock |
Details of the common stock as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 follows

Shajres Amount

Authorized - 21 Par Value 1,000,000,000  #1,000,000,000
[l
Issued and outstanding 940,000,000  £940,000,000

H
The detalls and movements of the shares listed with PSE follow: ;1
| \

No. of Shares

Date of SEC Approval Type of Issuance Issued lssue/Offer Price
November 28, 2006 Acqulsition by SEI 25,000,000 R1.00
April 13, 2007 Subscription of additional 240,000,000 £1.00
shares by SE} ¥
April 16, 2007 Subscription of additional {
shares by SEI 440, UOD 000 #1.00
November 23, 2007 Follow-On-Offering {(FOO) 235,000, 000 R9.68
940,000,000

i
On June 27, 2014, the BOD and stockholders representing two-thirds (2/3) of its outstanding capital
stock approved to the following changes: li

a. Increase in the authorized capital stock from #1,000,000,000 to F3 000 000,000, equivalent to
3,000,000,000 common shares at 1.0 par vaiue a share
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b. Capital restructuring plan, which involves a rights offer based on the ratio of 1.38 rights share ’
for every common share presently held. The offer price is at 2. O;per rights share with bonus
warrants to be given at the ratio of 1 warrant for every 3 rights shares Based on these ratios,
1,300,000,000 new shares will be issued. f

|

As at December 31, 2017, the application to the SEC for the increase injéuthorized capital stock and

capital restructuring is still pending. f

s

16.

Adjustments to Equity L

The adjustments to equity were results of the following: w
I

TKC’s Acquisition of Bilfions. The acquisition of Billlons in 2007 resulted to a goodwill of P11.8 million
and an adjustment to equity of R8.1 million. The goodwill is presented | m Note 11 as pari of “Other
noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financtal pc?‘mtlon

|
TKC's Additional fnvestment in Treosure, The increase In ownership in Treasure from 96% to 98% in
2011 resulted to an equity adjustment of B6.6 million to reflect & change in ownership of

non-controlling interest.

TKC’s Increase in nvestment of 22 Stronghold. The increase in ownershlp in ZZ Stronghold from 90%
to 919% in 2013 resulted to an equity adjustment of R31.7 million to reflecl: a change in ownership of

non-controlling interest. | |

17.

Costs of Goods Sold

This account consists of:

Note 2017 12016 2015
Direct materials 6 #280,661,887 B261, 980 403 B218,528,285
Manufacturing supplies 37,787,997 4, 015 821 3,493,376
Depreciation and amortization 22 15,908,125 34,065 086 34,116,763
Salaries, wages and other : ‘
employese benefits 21 5,653,597 6,18§,694 8,578,137
Indirect labor 47,421 4,324,471 6,885,584
Utilities and rental 17,457 3,552,418 5,170,735
Others 1,164,146 14,780,516 21,736,896

R341,240,630 P328,906 407 R298,509,776

i
I i
i
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18. Operating Expenses |

|

This account cansists of

i
Note 2017 12018 2015

Salaries, wages and cther i
employee benefits 21 R45,308,745 351,901:3;598 ¥48,633,834
Depreciation and amortization 22 24,100,074 22,17"3}976 27,077,852
Taxes and licenses 28,239,806 13,78?,715 12,357,267
Professional fees 18,845,841 2,141,721 1,090,595
Receivable write-off 5 17,701,158 29,147,842 1,474,653
Freight and handling 14,056,624 8,58()1;982 12,615,661
Utilities and rental 10,589,769 7,730,126 8,522,133
Repairs and maintenance 8,128,667 11,-879}839 11,528,371
Qutside services 7,129,312 7,13-:].;448 7,481,617
Representation 1,707,567 2,210,315 6,700,685
Travel and transportation 2,052,428 2,381,522 2,838,196
Office supplies 230,354 19?‘,405 316,367
Commission 7,016 ?;890 124,707
Insurance - 51}7,346 93,258
Provisian for contingencies - - 325,129
Inventories written-off - T 7,674,054
Others 5,759,874 9,5121742 7,626,726
#183,857,335 R168,314,567 R156,481,109

¥

Others mainly include ZZ Stronghold’s registration, bank charges, postag:és among others.

H

i

19, Provision for Impairment Loss :\

il

This account consists of provision for impairment loss on; i

I

! i
Note 2017 2016 2015
Property and equipment 8 P683,451,047 R £
Advances to suppliers 8 214,783 1 -
Inventories 6 - 105,97‘3&,;’936 -
Advances to contractors 11 - 46,651,046 -
R683,665,830 P152_.6302,1982 -

1
i
H
'

20. Retirement Benefits

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, ZZ Stronghold maintains a stat:éa managed social security
conitribution plan for the retirement benefits of its employees. Parent Campany and Treasure has an
unfunded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering all its regular, full time

employees, 1

! . _
An independent actuary of TKC and TSC conducted an actuarial valuatio;n of the retirement liakility
for the years ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respe:ctive[y, using the projected

unit credit methad. !

|
|
il
'
|
'

i
|
i
H
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The components of retirement expense (income} recognized as part of “Salaries, wages and other
employee benefits” under “Operating expenses” account in the consolldated statements of
comprehensive income are as follows {see Note 21): , ‘

2016

2017 2015
Current service cost ®B851,887 R558,562 R736,079
interest cost 429,666 418 905 36,479
Curtailment loss - Po- 251,925
£1,281,553 P977',4_68 81,024,433
H
Changes in the present value of retirement liability {PVRL) are as foliowsé ‘
2017 2026
Balance at beginning of year 9,107,262 £8,874,752
Current service cost 851‘,887 558,562
Interest cost 429,666 418,906
Benefits paid T (285,000)
Remeasurement loss: i }
Experience adjustments (1,817,612} (423,977)
Change in assumptions (807,591} {35,081}
Balance at end of year R7,763,612 £9,107,262
|
Movements in the retirement liability are as follows: ' ‘
| |
2017 2016
Balance at beginning of the year 9,107,262 8,874,752
Retirement expense [income) during the year 1,281,553 977,468
Remeasurement gain recognized in other ‘
comprehensive income {2,625,203) {459,958)
Benefits paid - (285,000)
Balance at end of year p7,763,612 £O,107,262
Cumulative amount of remeasurement (loss) gain recognized to OCl are ;qg follows:
2017 2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year {R326,385) {R648,356) (R648,355)
Remeasurement gain, net of '
deferred tax 2,625,203 321,971 -
Balance at end of year R2,298,818 {R326,385) (R648,356)

i

i
The principal actuarial assumptions used to determine retirement benefit for 2017 and 2016 are as

follows: i |
Ll
2017 i 2016
Treasure TKC Treasure TKC
Discount rate 5.71% 4.38% f;.ss% 4.94%
Salary increase rate 5.00% 2.00% 5 00% 2.00%
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Sensitivity analysis on defined benefit lfability are as follnws:_

Basis Points 2017 2016
Discount rate +1.00% (R7,602,977) (R6,764,525)
-1.00% 7,948,208 6,825,157

Salary increase rate +1.00% 7 983,254 6,740,475
-1.00% (7, 564,53%) {6,856,548)

|
The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on the m'éthod that extrapolates the
impact of retirement liability as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions accurring at end

of the reporting pericd.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, maturity analysis of undiscountéd benefit payments are as

follows: | ‘

I !
Plan Year 2017 2016
Less than one year R6,180,670 £3,182,832
Mare than one to five years 927,058 5,454,958
More than five to 10 years 724 987 2,055,980
More than 10 to 15 years 2 529,637 6,014,256
More than 15 to 20 years 519, 806 4,600,389
More than 20 years 2 507,526 11,076,456
913,394',‘584 £32,384,871

As at December 31, 2017, the average duration of retirement liability at the end of the reporting

period Is 13 years and 10.50 years for the Parent Company and Treasure,\ respectively.

21. Salaries, Wages and Other Employee Benefits

This account consists of:

016

Note 2017 2015
Salaries and wages R49,608,789 R52, 435 629 R50,485,446
Other employee benefits 72,000 4, 676 295 5,702,042
Retirement expense 20 1,281,553 97'_] 468 1,024,483
R50,962,342 R58,089,392 857,211,971

Salaries, wages and other employee benefits are classified as follows: i
Note 2017 12016 2015
Costs of goods sold 17 R5,653,597 6,188,694 p8,578,137
Operating expenses 18 45,308,745 51,500,698 48,633,834
R50,962,342 £58,085,392 R57,211,971

b

i
!
|
i
i
l
f
|
i
i
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22, Depreciation and Amortization

Details of depreciation’and amortization follows:

Note 2017 12016 2015
Property, plant and equipment 9 R34,185,379 #51,866,330 R54,172,182
Leasehold rights 10 6,440,038 8,703,029 8,473,684
R40,625,417 260,568,359 R62,645,866
I
Depreciation and amortization are distributed as follows: ¥
i
Note 2017 12016 2015
Costs of goods sold 17 #15,908,125 R34,064,086 34,116,763
Operating expensas 18 24,100,074 22,173,976 27,077,852
Finished goods inventorles 617,218 4,331,297 1,451,251
P40,625,417 P60,569,359 R62,645,866

I
1
|

23,

Leases

The Parent Company leases its office space from a third party. The ieasé%has a term of five (5} years,
which commenced in September 2014 and will end in September 20:1‘9. The lease obligatlon is

H
H
i

i

subject to an annual escalation of 3% beginning an the third year of the |ease term.

Prior to this, the Parent Company entered into a lease agreement wit'ﬁ a term of three {3} years,

which commenced in March 2012 and which ended in March 2015, The‘iease obligation was subject

to an annual escalation of 2% in the second year and 5% in the third ",reaxl'L

l.
Rental expense included In. the “Utilitles and rental” under ”Opferating expenses” account
amounted to £5.4 miilion, R5.5 million and #5.2 million in 2037, 2016 anﬁ 2015, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under noncancellable operating leasc:afs as at December 31, 2017

are as follows:

Within one year
After one year but hot more than five years

i
il
i
I
Ii

#5,352,606

4,237,480

R3,550,086
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24, Other I[ncome - Net i
\
This account consists of: :
|
Note 2017 12016 2015
Gain (loss) on sale of raw materlals P19,658,274 {3,355,054) B-
Foreign exchange gain {loss) 12,654,988  (22,235,725) 6,142,279
Rental income 7,395,328 8,160,798 7,819,593
Gain (loss) on sale of transportation { 1
equipment S 2,406,779 i - {17,751)
Interest income 4 87,916 : i124'372 866,785
Administrative fee - 13,602,586 15,262,711
Wharfage income - 19,000,000 16,000,000
Reversal of Inventory write-down - E ‘ - 131,338
Others - 1,162,796 2,662,222

R42,203,285 PR16,459,773 R48,867,177

. . I
Wharfage income pertains to the lease of Treasure’s wharf to a third panty.

I P
Administrative fee refers to the consideration received from third, parties in return for the
assignment of its power allocation from NAPOCOR lligan City. i

I

|
25. Income Tax :
|

The components of provision for income tax as reported in the cHnsoIEdated statements of
1

comprehensive income are as follows: 1

2017 2016 2015
Reported in Profit or Loss .
Current tax expense - i
MCIT R503,793 REGIE,ES? R654,443
Deferred tax expense - t
Prepaid rent 31,838 i P - -
Remeasurement gain on {
retirement {iability {137,987) ; - -
Impairment loss on property, 3
plant and equipment (6,766,795} i
Unrealized foreign exchange gain 195 o= -
(R6,268,956) R661,657 £654,443
| |
2017 2016 2015
Reported in OCI :‘
Deferred tax expense on i
remeasurement gain on |
retirement liability [ R137.987 R-

I
The Parent Company is subject to income taxes under the Philippine tax Ia{h{s.
i

Treasure is registered with the Board of Investments {BOT} for-its 'Modernizl%ation of Steel Billets
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Production Plant and for being a New Producer of Pig Iron andi |Beneficiated Iron Ore on
September 14, 2007 and May 12, 2008, respectively. As a registered enterprise, Treasure is entitled to
tax Incentives from July 2012, which among others, include Income Tax Hollday {ITH) for a pericd of
three years for Modernization of Steel Billets Production Plant and six years for being a New Producer
of Pig Iron and Beneficiated Iron Ore. The ITH incentive is limited only to the revenues generated from
the new activities registered. | |

On February 20, 2015, the BO! issued a Certification to Treasure pursu!ant to the Guidelines in the
issuance of BO) Certification per Revenue Memorandum Order Ne. 9—2(;)00 entitled “Tax Treatment
of Sales of Good, Propertles and Services made by VAT-registered Suppliers to BOI- registered
Manufacturers-Exporters with 100% Export Sales” dated February iz, 2000 and would cover
Treasure’s production of Nickel Pig lron anly. !

L
No tax benefit was claimed by Treasure from these incentives in 2017, 2016 and 2015 because there

were no revenue derived yet from the registered activities, I :

1
In 2017, 20156 and 2015, Blllions had no Enterprise Income Tax because It has no taxable income in
those years. Under the PRC’s Law on Enterprise Income Tax enacted on March 16, 2007,
72 Stronghold is subject to a tax rate of 25% beginning January 1, 200!} However, ZZ Stronghold
was granted by the government of PRC tax exemption in 2008 and 2009 and a 50% discount on
income tax starting 2030 to 2012. In 2017, 2016 and 2015, ZZ Stronghold is in a net taxable loss

position. 4
LI

]
Campanilla has no current income tax in 2017, 2016 and 2015 due to its Eaxable loss position.

The Group did not recognize the following deferred tax assets of the Parent Company, Treasure and
Campanilla as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 because management has assessed that the Group
may not have sufficient future taxable profit against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

2017 2016
Allowance for impairment loss on property, plant and I
equipment #198,268]519 -
NOLCO 69,173,802 75,574,364
Allowance for inventory write-down a4, 3445‘789 44,844,789
Allowance for impairment losses on advances to
contractors and suppliers 14,059, 749 13,995,314
Retirement liability 2,329 084 2,870,166
Excess of MCIT over RCIT 1,919 893 2,084,534
Accrued rental .‘ - 21,418
i 744

Unrealized foreign exchange loss

!!330,595,836 #139,391,330
;\
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, Billions and ZZ Stronghold have ‘no taxable and deductible
temporary differences arising from its operations. i‘
i!
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The Group’s deferred tax liabilities pertain to the following:

i
I
2017 2016

Capitalized borrowing cast R15,195,950 R21,962,745
Prepaid rent 31,838 -
Unrealized foreign exchange gain 1195 -
Remeasurement gain on retirement Hability : - 137,687

#15,227,083 _ R22,100,732
|
Details of the Parent Company, Treasure and Campanilla’s NOLCO are asifoEIDWS:

Parent Company '

b
Year Balance at iBaIance at Year of
Incurred Beginning of Year Additions Expired End of Year Expiration
2017 B-  B32,427,822 R 232,427,822 2020
2016 34,393,462 - - 34,393,462 201%
2015 46,912,547 - - 4};6,912,547 2018
2014 47,524,670 - 47,524,670 H - 2017

£128,830,679 R32,427,822 B47,524,670 £113,733,831

B B!

|

Treasure | ‘

| i
Year Balance at ;Balance at Year of
Incurred Beginning of Year Additlons Expired End of Year Expiration
2017 p-  P56,812,135 R~ k56,811,135 2020
2016 23,727,697 - - %3,727,597 2019
2015 32,408,687 - - 32,408,687 2018
2014 63,658,431 - 63,658,431 {. - 2017

R119,794,815 £56,811,135 P63,658,431 £112,947,519

Componilla :

|
Year Balance at :Balance at Year of
Incurred Beginning of Year Additions Expired End of Year Expiration
2017 P R608,936 R- | RG0B,936 2022
2016 47,085 - - i 47,095 2021
2015 455,957 - - | 485,957 2020
2014 2,731,585 - - . 12,731,585 2019
2013 54,416 - - ' 54,416 2018

£3,289,053 R608,936 R £3,897,989
i !

Details of the Parent Company’s MCIT follow: it

Year Balance at ‘Balance at Year of

Incurred. Beginning of Year Additions Expired End of Year Expiration

2017 L] #155,748 R 'R155,748 202D

2016 9,605 - - | 9,605 2019

2014 103,820 - 103,820 i - 2017
113,425 R155,748 £103,820 'R165,353
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Details of the Treasure’s MCIT follow: i
Year Balance at 'Balance at Yaar of
Incurred Beginning of Year Incurred Expired End of Year Expiration
2017 R— B448,045 R ‘ {R448,045 2020
2016 652,052 - - ! 652,052 2019
2015 654,443 - - | 654,443 2018
2014 664,614 - 664,614 ! - 2017
£1,971,109 R448,045 R664,614 £1,754,540

The reconciliation between the income tax benefit {expense) basednon statutory tax rate and

effective tax rate on loss before income tax follows:

i

2017 2016 2015

At statutory tax rate 30.00% 30.00% 30.00%
Tax effects of: |

Expired MOLCO and MCIT {3.94) (30.85) (157.22)
Change in unrecognized deferred tax I ‘

assets {22.33}) 15.55I i 131.88

Nendeductible expense {2.92} {14.54) (5.37)
Remeasurement gain on retirement :

liability (0.09) - -
Interest income subjected to final !

tax 0.01 0.01 0.01

At effective tax rate (0.72%) {D.16%} (0.70%)
1

E;

26. Contingencies i

The Group is either a defendant or plaintiff in several litigations, clalms and disputes which are
normal to its business. Management believes that the ultimate !|abrl|ty, |f any, with respect to such

litigations, claims and disputes will not materially affect the fmancial position and results of
|\

operation of the Group. It

I

27. Basic Loss Per Share |‘
,\

i
I
I

Basic loss per share is computed as follows;

2017 2_016 2015
Net loss attributable to equity ”
holders of the Parent Company %
{a) 838,241,638 R357, 238 827 RY96,560,406
Weighted average number of shares
outstanding {b) 540,000,000 940,000; coe 940,000,000
Loss per share (a/b) R0.89 R0.42 R0.10

i
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group has no potential dilutive common shares.
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28. Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organized into three operat;ng segments jocated in the
Philippines and China. Management monitors the operating results jof Its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources to be\ allocated and of assessing
performance, Segment performance is evaluated based on operatmg results in the consolidated

financial statements.

The Group’s reportable segments follows:

Parent Company - an operating and holding company located in the Ph|f|ppmes engaged in the sale

of steel products.

| ;

Treasure - engaged in the manufacturing of billets, The plant facility |5 located in the lligan City,

Lanao del Norte, Philippines. As disclosed in Note 1, Treasure has su

2013.

|

spended its operations since

7z Stronghold - engaged In the manufacturing and distribution of steel pipes products sold in China
and other export markets. The plant facility is located in Xiamen, China. | |

Included in the revenues generated by the Group are revenues almountmg to B30.2 million

arising from sales to the Group's largest customer.
10.00% or more of the Group’s total revenues,

No other smgle customer constitutes to

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those descrlbed in the summary
of significant accounting policies.

The following table presents the financial information in respect of the Group 5 operating segments:

i

2017 il
Philippines ! f China
TKC Treasure ZZ Stronghold Total
Results of operations: i
Revenue R351,491 R- p363,237,852 #363,589,343
Cost of goods sold 607,170 - 340,623,460 341,240,630
Gross loss {255,679) - 22,604,392 22,348,713
QOperating expenses {239,859,349) {66,320,250) (97,303,780} (403,483,379)
Interest expense {21,049,721) (13,982,247) (28,867,532} {63,899,500)
impairment joss {214,783) {683,451,047) il - {683,665,830)
Interest income 4,939,631 8,969 I 77,518 5,026,118
Other income {loss} {26,507,711} 22,105,352 19,911,568 15,509,309
Loss before income tax (282,947,612} {741,639,223) (83,577,734)  (1,108,164,569)
Income tax benefit 1,876,230 6,318,555 b - 8,194,785
Segment net loss (R281,071,382} (R735,320,668) (R83;577,734} {R1,099,969,784)
Sepment assets #3,190,216,599 #2,248,815,485 £2,303,196,802 #7,742,228,886
Segment liabilities R2954,010,068 »4,776,093,206 P3,1G§}742,965 #3,899,846,239
Capital expenditures R47,500 %!443,186 R490,686
Depreciation and i}
amortization £992,014 R15,667,060 R23,966,343 #40,625,417
'\
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) |

2016 i

Philippines ' China

TKC Treasure ZZ Stronghold Total

Results of operations: |
Revenue R428,933 R~ R271,052,345 R272,381,278
Cost of goods sold 528,799 - 328‘;377,608 328,906,407
Gross loss {99,866) - (56,425,263} {56,525,129)
Operating expenses (22,698,779) (40,547,077} (10'5?,521.617) {168,767,473)
Impairment Joss - (152,630,982) ! } - {152,630,982)
Interest expense (12,898,342} (13,593,446) (306,693,269) (57,185,057)
Interest income 3,034 4,716 i 116,570 124,320
Dther income 580,140 28,245,051 I13L489,790) 16,335,401
Loss before income tax (35,113,813) (177,521,738} {205;013,369) {418,648,920)
Income tax expense {3,605) {652,052} 1 - {661,657)
Segment net loss (R35,123,418}) {R178,173,790) {r206,013,359) {#419,310,577}
Segment assets £3,437,322,651 R2,971,700,569 £2,135,006,299 R8,544,029,519
Segment liabilities R920,044,738 P4,766,282,825 93,03éi059,671 B8,724,397,234

E
Capital expenditures £- - 8,645,821 F8,645,821

Depreciation and :
amortization £997,909 £20,822,990 R253,077 p22,173,976

|

2015 I}

Philippines ' China

TKC Treasure ZZ Stronghold Total

Results of operations: {
Revenue §5,758,877 R- 9374,1790,872 £380,549,749
Cost of goods sold 6,643,931 - 291,865,845 298,509,776
Gross profit {loss) {885,054) - 81,925,027 82,039,973
Operating expenses (27,196,001) (60,678,843} IGBI,‘153,059} (186,027,903)
Interest expense (20,963,743) (13,838,006} (37,093,590} (71,895,339)
Interest income 74,225 8,315 | 782,758 865,298
Othear income 131,338 32,722,131 15,164,674 48,018,143
Lcss before Income tax (48,839,235} {41,786,403) (6,374,190} (96,999,828}
Income tax expense - (654,443) I - 654,443
Segment net loss {r48,839,235]) {R42,440,846) (R6,374,190) (R97,654,271)
Segment assets £1,346,425,536 £3,153,139,887 22,381’,3387,665 R6,880,953,088

i;
Segment liabilities £904,036,684 £4,769,548,353 £2,966,408,289 £8,639,993,326

[
Capital expenditures £295,322 R P10;834,555 k11,129,877

il

Depreciation and i
amortization ®1,440,113 p25,443,918 216,525,939 £43,408,870




The following are the reconcillations of the seégment information to

consalidated statements of financial position and consolidated stat

income:

Reconciliation of Assets

reported amounts In the
ements of comprehensive

2017‘ 2016
Assets of all reportable segments R7,742,228,886 R8,544,029,519
Intercompany eliminations (3,054,363,327} (3,300,052,470)
Assets of nopreportable segment 142,252 142,210
Group assets R4,688,007,811 P5,244,119,259
Reconciliation of Liabilities !
2017\ 2016
Liabilities of all reportable segments ¥8,899,845,239‘ £8,724,397,234
Intercompany eliminations (3, 315,635,571} (3,211,860,709)
Liabilities of nonreportable segment 2,520, 356/ 1,906,420
Group liabilities B5,586,730,924 #5,414,442,945
h
Reconciliation of Loss ;‘
I
2017 201.6 2015

Net loss of all reportable segments R1,093,969,784 9419,310,57? R97,654,272,

Intercompany elfiminations (239,981,967} ._ -
Net loss of nonreportable segment 613,894 47,042 469,470
Group net loss R860,601,711 2419,357,619 #£08,123,741

The following information relate to geographical segments: i‘

Revenues from External Customers I

2017 2016 2015
Philippines R351,491 R428,933 5,758,877
China 363,237,852 271,952,345 374,790,872

R363,589,343 £272,381,278 £380,549,749
1

The revenues are based on revenues generated from the respective operatlons in the Philippines
and China. Revenues are derived mainly from sale of steel products to external customers.
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| I

il

Nancurrent Assets ‘

1
2017 2016

Philippines: 1
Property, plant and equipment R1,698,636,839 R2,396,859,460
Leasehold rights 22,386,667 24,226,667
Others 15,990,694 2,888,866
1,737,014,200 2,423,974,993

China: h
Property, plant and equipment 1,706,307,744 1,615,649,193
Leasehold rights 208,421,318 201,726,605
1,914,729,062  1,817,375,798
R3,651,743,262  R4,241,350,791

I

The financial information presented above is consistent with the Groups consolidated financial

statements.

29. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments consist of cash and cash e
receivables, refundable deposits, due from/ to related parties, trade any

statutory liakilities) and loans payable.

The main risks arising from financial instruments are market risks, credi

|
&uivaients, trade and other
d other payables {excluding

|
t risk and liquidity risk. The

BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized as

follows:

Market Risks

The Group is exposed to market risks, primarily those related to foreign
risks. Management actively monitors these exposures, as follows:

Foreign Currency Risk. Foreign currency risk arises as a result of change

i
currency and interest rate
|
I

ln exchange rates between

the Philippine Peso and foreign currencies, Any change will affect the Groups foreign currency-

denominated accounts and transactions.

Currently, the Group’s foreign currency exposure covers operations in !RC Any fluctuation in the
exchange rate between the PHP and the RMB will impact the amount oF its investment and related

accounts.

I I

The Group regularly monitors foreign exchange rates, and any trends and changes. Measures are
adopted to protect its investment in the event there would be 5|gnn‘“ cant fluctuations in the

exchange rate,

]

The Group’s financial monetary assets denominated in US dollar {USD} mc[ude cash in banks which

camprised only 0.11% and 0.04% of the total financial monetary assets as
2016, respectively. Accordingly, exposure of the Group to USD foreign c rrency risk is minimal.

: at December 31, 2017 and
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The following table shows the Group’s RMB-denominated monetary fi am:ia[ assets and liabilities

and their Philippine Peso equivalent:

' | 2017
PH'P RMB
Financial Assets: i
Cash and cash equivalents 27,491, 856 3,597,287
Trade and other recelvables 203,726,188 26,657,407
Total financial assets 231,218,044 30,254,694
Financial Liabilities: l‘
Trade and other payables 371,555,307 48,637,712
Loans payable 510,685,273 66,822,756
Total financial liabilities 882,240,580 115,440,468
Net financial liabilities (651,022,536) {85,185,774)
|
!;2015
PHP RMB
Financia! Assets: 4
Cash and cash equivalents 23,973, 780 3,349,470
Trade and other receivables 147,378, 379 20,618,714
Total financial assets 171,352,159 23,968,184
Financial Liabilities: ]
Trade and other payables 269,103, 932 37,648,514
Loans payable 472,348, 731 66,000,000
Tota! financial liabilities 741,452,663 103,648,514
Net financial liabilities (570,100,50:4) (79,630,330)

I
For purposes of restating the outstanding balances of the Group’s forelgn currency-denominated
financial assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, thelexchange rate applied was
£7.64 and R7.16 per RMB, respectively. |‘

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably pt:lésible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 (due to changes in the fair value of financlal assets). There is

no other impact on the Group’s equity other than those already affecting profit or loss.
i
\

Increase/Decrease Ef'fect on Loss

in Exchange Rate before Income Tax
December 31, 2017 +1.21 (E103,074,787)
-1.21 1103,074,787
December 31, 2016 +0.08 i(R4,780,820)
-0.06 f 4,780,820

Interest Rote Risk. The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises from unfavorable changes in
interest rates related primarily to outstanding debt obligations. As at Dt=cember 31, 2017 and 2018,
there are no floating rate financlal assets and financial liabilities. Thus, the Group has minimal
exposure to interest rate risk since its fi nancial assets and financial liabilities have fixed interest rates

and are usually shori-term. }




The table below shows the maturity profile of the Group’s
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financlal liabilities as at

December 31, 2017 and 2016 based on contractual undiscounted paymelr;ItS:

2017 1
On Demand  UptolMonth 1to3 Months  3to6Months 16to 12 Months Total
Other financial abilities at H
amortized cost: ! |
Trade and other i |
payables® k314,798,066 = B- - = RD14,798,066
Loans payabl** - - - 111,211,889 | - 1,311,211.849
Bue to related parties 3,560,305,233 - — - | , - 3,560,305,233
#4,A475,103,19% B R~ R1,111,211,849 | B~ R5,586,315,148
*Exelutting nonfinaaciol llabllitles. ! !
**Incliding future interest poyments, i
|
2016 |
OnDemand  Upto L Month  1to3 Months 3t 6 Months | 610 12 Months Tatal
Othar financial iabilitles at il
amprtized cost i!
Trade and other il
payables* £825,048,02), [ - e i | B~ PB2%,048,021
Leans payable** - - - - 1 1,070,548,243  1,070,548,243
Due to related parties 3,522,827,405 - - - I -~  3,522,827,405
£4,547,875426 R- P B~ |B1,070,548,243 P5,418,423,669

*Exeluding nonfinancial ubilities.
*¥Including future Interest payments.

Fair Value Measurement

The following table presents the fair values of the financial assets and Hiabilities of the Group with
carrying amounts that differ from their fair values: '

|
}
|

I '
Fair Value

Quoted prices in SignHicant Significant
active markets  observable inputs unobservable
Carrying Amount {Level 1) |' {Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
Loans and recelvables: o
Refundable deposits E ;
2017 R1,260,000 R- #1,183,085 p—
I
Loans and receivables: %
Refundable deposits i
2016 £3,260,000 P R1,135,789 B

b

|
Refundable Deposits. The fair value of refundable deposit using level 2 !\]Nas determined as the sum
of all future cash flows, discounted using the prevailing market rates of interest for instruments with

similar maturities. The discount rates used are 3.8% and 3.5% in 2017 an;d 2016, respectively,

li
The carrying amounts of the following financial assets and liabilities of tpe Group approximate their
fair values as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 due to the short-term natt;lire of these transactions:

|
2017

Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables*

Due from related parties
AFS financial assets

§338,324,952

2016

i

l
#34,381,947  P31,061,816
263,466,470 208,153,435
39,976,535 39,976,535
500,000 500,000
P279,691,786

1
I
|
|
i
i
!
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2017 2016
Financial Liabilities !\
Other financial iabilities at amortized cost: ! ‘

Trade and other payables** R914, 793 066 R825,048,021
Due to related parties 3,560,305,233  3,522,827,405
Loans payable 1,048,287,715  1,009,951,173

®5,523,391,014  #5,357,826,593

*Excluding nonfinanciol receivebles. i \
**eycluding nonfinanciof Habilities. i
|

Cash ond Cosh Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables, Due from Re!ated Parties, Trade and Other
Payables, Loans Payable, and Due to Related Parties. Due 1o the short- term nature of transactions,
the fair volues of these financial assets and liabilitles approximate thew carrying amounts at the

reporting date. i ‘

AFS Financial Asset. The fair value of the unquoted shares of stock cannot be determined reliably
and, therefore, is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if alqy

Capital Management Policy ‘

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure tﬁat i maintains a strong and
healthy financial position to support its current business operations iand maximize shareholder

value, |‘
|

The Group’s considers its capital stock amounting to 940,000,000 as!at December 31, 2017 and
20186, respectively, as capital employed.

The Group’s manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it :when there are changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, | the Group may adjust its
borrowings or raise capital. No changes were made in the objectives, poluzles or processes in 2017

and 2016, :1

i
The Group Is committed to maintain adequate capital at all times to meet shareholders'
expectations, withstand adverse business conditions and take advantage of business opportunities.

The Group regularly monitors its capital position and assesses busmess conditions to ensure early
detection and determination of risks, and its consequent adverse impact The Group adopts

measures, as Is deemed necessary and appropriate, to mitigate risks. }
|

The Group will access the capital market when it is considered necessaly As the Group sustains Its
business, it will retain sufficient flexibility to raise capital to support hew business opportunities and
will be prudent in its capital management. 5;




BOAPRC Acreiin No, 4782 | Chbask Tower

£131,2013 | B74LPajeo de Rones
Jicoupsy | Makatl Ciy 1226 Phippines

EEH R_]: T . Q & C Recember 79, 2015, vl un [
! ! -Y—E S ACA-NI NG O &plen\!fff%?g:féwv’ﬁg mlu:;‘?'rmé:zr, 209 Phone T $532 992 9100

FIRM PRINCIPLES. WISE SOLUTIONS.

Faot : #632982 9111
1 Website @ wwwreypesiacandong.com
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TO ACCOMPANY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR EILING WITH THE

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
TKC Metals Corporation
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We have zudited the accompanying consolidated financial statements Bf TKC Metals Corporation
{the Company)} and Subsidiaries as at and for the year ended December 3;1, 2017, on which we have

rendered our report dated May 11, 2018.

i
In compliance with the Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, as amended, we are stating that the

Company has twenty-nine (29) stockhalders owning one hundred (100} or
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Partner
CPA Cartificate No, 27455
Tax Identiflcation No, 102-084-004-000
BOA Accreditation No. 4782; Valid until December 31, 2018
SEC Accreditation No. 1021-AR-Z Group A
valld until March 27, 2020
BIR Accreditation No, 08-005144-005-2017
Valid until January 13, 2020
PTR No. 6607959
Issued January 3, 2018, Makati City

May 11, 2018
Makati City, Metro Manila

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
AUDIT PIAX | CONSULTING

Reyes Tacandong B Co. Is a mamber of the RSM network, Each member of the RSM netwask s an Independent aounting and consulting

not itsell a separate leget entity of any description in any Jurlsdistion,

m:qre shares each.
I

RSM

fierm, and practices In Its own right. The RSM network it

I|[Ii|lil\llﬁlllﬂlllilﬂll]ﬂlfﬂlﬂllIﬂll!lﬁllﬁﬁllilll



‘. 1
- RN BOAPRC Acpion o, 4762 | Cifloank Tower
£ Decermber 20, 2015, vefduntd, 34,2018 | 6741 Paseo e Rows
H K YES 1 ACA [\TMNG & CO o S Reitaton Mo 032 (Groap ) | Makall City 1226 Phiizpines
" . o embier 27, 2016, valld will Sepiember 7, Phone :
FIRM PRINCIPLES, WISE SOLUTIONS, 7o o7 ol Sesenieean 2009 | o ; v632 1

[ Webtite t wivwWIyestazandong com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
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The Stockholders and the Board of Directars :
TKC Metals Corporation |
Unit B1-A/C, 2nd Floor :
Building B, Karrivin Plaza !
2316 Chino Roces Avenue Extension :
Makati City i

|

|

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial statements
of TKC Metals Corporation {the Parent Company) and Subsidiaries (the Group) as at December 31, 2017 and
2016 and for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 and have iss!ied our report thereon dated
May 11, 2018. Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the cansolidated financial
statements taken as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules 'r—j.\re the responsibility of the
Group's management. These supplementary schedules include the following:

« Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Divitend Declaration
» Financiat Soundness Indicators *
» Conglomerate Map
« Adoptlon of Effective Accounting Standards and Interpretations |
« Supplementary Schedules.as Required by Part Il of SRC Rule 68, as Amen#ed

These schedules are presented for purposes of complying with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, as
amended, and are not part of the consolidated financial statements. This information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial staqéments, including comparing
such infermation directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves. In our opinion, the informatlon
Is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.
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O ) 02,

EMMANUEL V. CLARINO

Partner

CPA Certificate No, 27455 !

Tax Identification No, 102-084-004-000 !
I
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BOA Accreditation No. 4782; Valid until December 31, 2018
SEC Accreditation No, 1021-AR-2 Group A
Valid until March 27, 2020
BIR Accreditation No. 08-005144-005-2027
Valid until January 13, 2020
FTR No. 6607854
Issuad January 3, 2018, Makati Clty
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TKC METALS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION QF

EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPR:ETATIONS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 !
1
|
. i‘ Not Not
Title Adqr}:ted Adopted | Applicable
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements \
v
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics I
PFRS Practice Statement Management Commentary v
Philippine Financial Reparting Standards (PFRS) [
li
I
i Not Not
PFRS Title Adcwted Adopted | Applicable
PERS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting i‘ v
Standards 1
Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for First- " v
time Adopters 3
Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemnption from v
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1; Severe Hyperinflation and ‘ v
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters |
Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans v
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment j v
Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditlons and v
Cancellations
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based : v
Payment Transactions ‘
PFRS 3 (Revised) | Business Combinations \’
Amendment to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent i‘ v
Consideration in a Business Combination i
Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for Joint i‘ v
Ventures i
I
PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts ) v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee | v

Contracts




o
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PFRS

Title

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

PFRS 5

Non-~current Assets Held for Sale and Piscontinued
Operations

v

PFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7

Financlal Instruments; Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial
Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial
Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabtlities

Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition

Amendment to PFRS 7: Servicing Contracts

Amendment to PERS 7: Applicability of the Amendments
to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial Statements

PFRS 8

Operating Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of Operating
Segments

Amendments to PERS 8: Reconciliation of the Total of
the Repartable Segments’ Assets to the Entity's Assets

PFRS 9

Financial instruments: Classification and Measurement
of Einancial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

PFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities: Applying
the Consclidation Exception

PFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 11; Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations




C‘> {/ \.
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i
i
i Not Not
PFRS Title
Adﬂpted Adopted | Applicable
PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities '~j/
Amendments te PFRS 12: Transition Guidance ; j v
Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entities : N
Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entlties: Applying : v
the Consolidation Exception il
PFRS13 | Fair Value Measurement v
Amendment to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception '\;/
PERS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts ; v
}
Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) ‘
i
! Not Not
PAS Title Adapted | adopted | Applicable
PAS 1 {Revised) | Presentation of Financial Statements :v’
|t
Amendments to PAS 1 (Revised): Puttable Financlal I v
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation ! :
Amendments to PAS 1 (Revised}: Presentation of Items ;‘/
of Other Comprehensive Income 1
il
Amendment to PAS 1: Clarification of the Requirements U/
for Comparative Presentation il
Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure lnitiative I\‘/
PAS 2 Inventorias i/
PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows 4
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates |
PAS 8 v
and Errors [
PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period *'/
PAS 11 Construction Contracts ‘ v
PAS 12 Income Taxes «'f’
|
Amendments to PAS 12 - Deferrad Tax: Recovery of | v
Underlying Assets
L]
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment Y
o
Amendment to PAS 16: Classification of Servicing 1 v

Equipment
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. ' Not Not
PAS Title t
Adﬂp ed Adopted | Applicable
Amendment to PAS 16: Revaluation Method - ! v
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Depreciation _' :
Amendment to PAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment - .}
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and i\;/
Amortizatian |
Amendment to PAS 16: Agriculture: Bearer Plants i w e
PAS 17 Leases !f
PAS 18 Revenue ’J/
i
PAS 19 . L
v
(Revised) Employee Benefits :
Amendmant to PAS 19 (Revised): Defined Benefit Plans: i‘/
Employee Contributions Ik
Amendment to PAS 19: Discount Rate: Regional Market L‘/
Issue !
A i Gover, i !
PAS 20 ccounting for ‘ove nment Grants and Disclosure of i v
Government Assistance I
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates +’
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation {/
1
PAS 23 (Revised) | Borrowing Costs \:/
PAS 24 [Revised) | Related Party Disclosures 1'(
Amendment to PAS 24: Related Party Disclosures - Key ‘,‘
Management Personnel i
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans ! v
PAS 27 . 3
ial Stat t v
(Amended) Separate Financial Statements f
Amendments to PAS 27: Investment Entities v
|
Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate . v
Financial Statements |‘
|
PAS 28 Investments in Assoclates and Joint Ventures v
{Amended) ;
Amendments to PAS 28: Investment Entities: Applying ! v
the Consolidation Exception f
PAS 25 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflaticnary Economies | v
PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation \I/

Financial Instruments: Presentation
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_ I Not Not
PAS Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable

Amendments to PAS 32: Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising an Liquidation

v

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues I } v

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and i
Financial Liabillties

Amendments to PAS 32; Tax Effect of Distribution to il v
Holders of Equity Instruments |

PAS 33 Earnings per Share ' v

PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting W

Amendment to PAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting and E
Segment Information for Total Assets and Liabilities i

Amendment to PAS 34: Disclosure of Information
‘Elsewhere in the Interim Financial Report’

PAS 36 Impairment of Assets

4‘\‘ s

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

PAS 38 Intangible Assets

Amendment to PAS 38: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Amortization

AN

\4 =

Amendment to PAS 38: Clarification of Acceptabile
Metheds of Depreciation and Amortization

4*‘;

PAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

\4_ -

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of ‘ v
Forecast Intragroup Transactions 3

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option i v

Amendments to PAS 39: Financial Guarantee Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of Financial
Assets

S e

Amendments ta PAS 39: Reclassification of Financlal
Assets - Effective Date and Transition ‘

==

Amendments PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

Amendment to PAS 38 Eligible Hedged items




O S

|
|
I
1
L Not Not
PAS Title A
d?;p ted Adopted | Applicable
Amendments to PAS 39: Novation of Derlvatives and i ‘ v
Continuation of Hedge Accounting i i
PAS 40 Investment Propetty ! | v
Amendment to PAS 40: Investment Praperty — Clarifying | ;
the Interrefationship between PFRS 3, Business | | v
Combination and PAS 40 when Classifying Property as ¥
Investment Property or Owner-occupied Property i
PAS 41 Agriculture | | v
Amendment to PAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer Plants ; ‘ v
|
|
Philippine Interpretations l |
i
[l
. I Not Not
i
Interpretations Title Adci)?:ted Adopted | Applicable
IFRIC 1 C_hapges_in F?cs‘stmg Decommissioning, Restoration and i v
Sirnilar Liabilities I
t
IFRIC 2 Members’ Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar ; v
Instruments :
IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease ‘ v
IERIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, | ‘ v
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds | !
IERIC 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market - i‘ v
Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment 1
Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 v
IFRIC7 L L P \
financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies |
IFRICS Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives v
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-S: ‘ v
Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment : v
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements ‘ v
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes } v
|
IFRIC 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding v
Requirements and their Interaction 1
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, | v
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement .i§
|
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation ! v
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners | v




. . Not Not
in tions
terpreta Title Adﬁpted Adopted | Appllcable
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers : i v
1FRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments i \ v
L . . !
ERIC 20 Sﬂ:tpplng Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface l v
Mine b :
(FRIC21 | Levies | v
I
i
PHILIPPINE INTERPRETATIONS - S/C :. |
} !
:3
E |
§ Not Not
tati
Interpretations Title Ad??ted Adopted | Applicable
SIC-7 Introduction of the Buro ‘ v
|
Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to |
SIC-10 . A : v
Operating Actlvities :
SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives i v
_ . . i
SIC-25 !ncome Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or | v
its Shareholders |
: - . y
SIc27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the i v
Legal Form of a Lease !
Stc-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures " v
sic-31 Reve.nue - Rarter Transactions Involving Advertising { v
Services !
sic-32 intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v
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TKC METALS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARI ES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
DECEMBER 21, 2017

Below is a schedule showing financial soundness indicators of the Group |

2015, |

1
2017 Il 2016 2015

CURRENT/LIQUIDITY RATIO 1
Current assets F1,021,224,038 . 2987,241,754 £1,309,131,494
Current liabilities 5,563,739,329 5‘,383,;234,951 5,421,533,235
Current Ratio 0.18 i 018 0.24

SOLVENCY RATIO |
Net loss before depreciation and amortization (R826,743,089)  (R363, 119 ,557) (R35,929,126)
Total liabilities 5,586,730,924 5,414, 442 945 5,452,370,732
Solvency Ratio (0.15) I (0.07) {0.01)

|

DEBT-TO-EQUITY RATIO |
Total liabilities #5,586,730,924 85,414,/ 442 945 R5,452,370,732
Total equity (capital deficiency) {898,723,113) (170, 323 ,626) 238,873,238
Debt-to-Equity Ratio {6.22} {31.79) 2283

ASSET-TO-EQUITY RATIO 1
Total assets R4,688,007,811 F!5,244,'7119,259 £5,691,243,970
Total equity {capital deficiency) {898,723,113}) {170,323,686) 238,873,238
Asset-to-Equity Ratio (5.22) 1(30.79) 23.83

Ii

INTEREST-COVERAGE RATIO |
Earnings (loss} before interest and taxes (#802,971,167) (PBSI,% 10,905) (R25,553,324)
Interest expense 63,899,500 57,185,057 71,895,339
Interest-Coverage Ratio {12.57) | (6.32) {0.36}

1

PROFITABILITY RATIO |‘
Net loss R860,601,711  (R419, 357,619) {P98,123,741)
Average eguity (534,523,400} (85,151 843) 281,653,838
Return on Equity {1.61) 4.52 (34.84%)
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TKC METALS CORPORATION

"\

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

DECEMBER 31, 2017

Unappropriated retained earnings (deficit), beginning (R406,266,840)
Adjustments: f
Unrealized foreign exchange gain | (17,227,871}
Accretion of interest on long-term loan receivable i (4,760,584}
Unrealized actuarial gain ‘ (321,971)
Unappropriated retained earnings, as adjusted, beglnnmg i (428,577,266)
Net [oss based on the face of AFS i {281,071,382)
Less: Non-actual/unrealized income net of tax :
+ “Day 1” loss on loan receivable i 28,131,374
+ Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net (except those !
attributable to cash and cash equivalents) | (1,624,507}
e Accretion of interest on Jong-term loan receivable i {4,938,243)
Net loss actually earned/realized during the year i (259,502,758)
Unappropriated retained earnings, as adjusted, ending i {P688,080,024)
| ‘




) W
}

TKC METALS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDFAEIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES AS REQUIRED BY PART Il of SRC R”LE 68 AS AMENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2017 : !
1
0
I
Table of Contents !
1l
¥
y
Schedule Description L Page
[
|
A financial Assets ! i N/A
[
I |
3 Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and Principal
Stockholders {Other than Related Partles)* i i N/A
i
C Amounts Recelvable from Related Parties which are Eliminated During the Consolidation of
the Financial Statements | 1
\
D intangible Assets - Other Assets ; 2
\
£ Long-Term Debt w N/A
|
F Indebtedness to Related Parties** : N/A
|
G Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers | N/A
H Capital Stack 3

¥There are no amounts to whom the aggregate indebtedness is 100,000 or 1% of total assets. in gddition, the

advances were made to the empioyees to carry out the ordinary course of business. |
**ndebtedness to related parties are classified as current. ‘
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4, Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter TKC METALS CORIPORATION

. For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2018

TKC METALS CORPORATION |

SEC FORM 17-Q |

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2)(b) THEREUNDER ’
!

Commission identification number A1996-10620 3, BIR TIN: 005—038-162-000
|

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization Philippines

5.

6. Industry Classification Code: (SEC Use Onjly)

7. Address of issuer's principal office Postal Code: 1&34 !
2% F Unit 201, W Tower Condominium, 39" St., Bonifacio leobal City, Taguig City, !
Philippines | !

8. Issuer's telephone number, including area code (02) 864-07-36 !

9. Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since%last report !
TKC Steel Corporation, Unit BI-A&C, 2™ Floor, Bldg. B Karrivin Plaza, 2316 Chino Roces |
Ave, Ext., Makati City, Philippines | !i

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code, or Secjtions 4 and 8 of the RSA
Title of each Class Number of shares of comnf'lon stock

outstanding and amount of debt outstanding
Common 940,000,600 ‘
11. Are any or all of the securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes [#] No [ ]
If yes, state the name of such Stock Exchange and the class/es of securities listed therein:
Philippine Stock Exchange - 940,000,000 Common
12. Indicate by check mark whether the regisirant: |

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule 17 1

thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(z)-1 thercunder, and Sections 26
and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the preceding twelve (12)
months (or for such shorter periad the registrant was required to file such reports)

Yes [¢] No [ ] |

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.
Yes [e] No [ ] |
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TKC METALS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES |
(Formerly: TKC Steel Corporation) ‘
UNAUDITED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2018 }
(With Comparative Figures for December 31, 2017) i
\
 June 30 December 31
| 2018 2017
ASSETS ‘
Current Assets |
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6) £80,630,113 234,381,947
Trade and other receivables (Note 7) 18$,642,258 265,935,192
Inventories (Note 8) 540,211,379 360,836,597
Creditable withholding and input value-added tax (Note 9) 289,940,260 294,575,115
Due from related parties (Note 14) 79,162,944 39,976,535
Other current assets (Note 10) 66,461,108 25,518,652
Total Current Assets 1,243,048,062  1,021,224,038
Noncurrent Assets |
Property, plant and equipment 3,625315,352  3,404,944,583
Leaschold rights (Note 11) 166,719,971 230,807,985
Other noncurrent assets 9,442,847 31,031,205
Total Noncurrent Assets 3,301,478,170  3,666,783,773
P5,044,526,232  P4,688,007,811
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities |
Trade and other payables (Note 12) £1,056,078,584 £955,146,381
Loans payable (Note 13) 1,069,005,819  1,048,287,715
Due to related parties (Note 14) 3,566,384,515  3,560,305,233
Total Current Liabilities 5,691.468,918  5,563,739,329
Noncurrent Liabilities ‘
Deferred tax liabilities-net 19,013,549 15,227,983
Deferred liability j 0 0
Retirement benefit liability 6,913,414 7,763,612
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 25,926,963 22,991,595
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent }
Capital stock (Notes 2 and 15) 940,000,000 940,000,000
Additional paid-in capital (Note 2) 1,983,047,906  1,983,047,906
Retained Earnings/(Deficit) (4,197,327,958)  (4,130,508,313)
Other equity reserves 532,061,001 264,897,139
Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the |
Parent (742,219,051)  (942,563,268)
Minority interest 69,349,402 43,840,155
Total Equity (672,869,649)  (898,723,113)
P5,044,526,232  P4,688,007,811
|

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Fi

hancial Statements.
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TKC METALS CORPORATION AND
SUBSIDIARIES

(Formerly: TKC Steel Corporatllm)

UNAUDXTED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDL‘D JUNE 30, 2018

(With Comparative Figures for tl:le Six Months Ended June 30, 2017)

\
i
2018

2017 |
SALES OF STEEL PRODUCTS; $390,290,774 P47,688,118
COST OF STEEL PRODUCTS SOLD (Note 16) 319,133,784 38,253,242 |
GROSS PROFIT 71,156,990 9,434,876
OTHER EXPENSES i 104,318,417 49,056,999 |
FINANCE COST ! 38,082,509 40,667,019
I 142,400,926 89,724,018
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX (71,243,936) (80,289,142
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX.
Current | 4,893 398
Deferred |
I | 4,893 398
NET INCOME | (71,248,829) (80,289,540) |
Attributable To | | |
Equity holder of Parent (66,819,645) (76,142,356)
Minority interest (4,429,184) (4,147,184)
(71,248,829) (80,289,540) |
Basic Earnings Per Share \ 0.07) {0.08)




TKC METALS CORPORATION AND

SUBSIDIARIES

(Formerly: TKC Steel Corporation)

UNAUDITED INTERIM CONS¢
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDE
{With Comparative Figures for €

OLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

i
|
|
\
|
|
\
f
I
|
\

D JUNE 30,2018

te Six Months Ended June 30, 2017)

2018 2017
NET INCOME (971,548,829) (£80,289,540)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME: 1
Exchange differences on translating foreign }
operations i 299,384,309 247,637,537
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOBdE FOR THE
PERIOD 228,135,480 167,347,997
Attributable To |
Equity holder of Parent 202,626,233 146,731,427
Minority interest 25,509,247 20,616,570
228,135,480 167,347,997
|
Basic Earnings Per Share | 0.24 0.18




TKC METALS CORPORATION AND
SUBSIDIARIES

{Formerly: TKC Steel Corporation)
UNAUDITED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOM]]
FOR THE SECOND QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 |

(With Comparative Figures for the Second Quarter Ended June 30, j2017)

2018 2017

SALES OF STEEL PRODUCTS P194,316,036 18,456,884

COST OF STEEL PRODUCTS SOLD (Note 16) 157,834,384 16,648,635

GROSS PROFIT 36,481,652 1,808,249

OTHER EXPENSES 65,123,877 24,001,292

FINANCE COST 19,652,834 16,254,806

84,776,711 40,256,098

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX (48295,059)  (38,447,849)
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX

Current . 2,620 190

Deferred | - -

2,620 190

NET INCOME {481297,679)  (38,448,039)
Attributable To |

Equity holder of Parent (45220,645) (35,888,351

Minority interest (3.,077,034) (2,559,688)

(48,297,679) _ (38,448,039)

Basic Earnings Per Share j (0.05) (0.04)




TKC METALS CORPORATION AND
SUBSIDIARIES

(Formerly: TE.C Steel Corporation)

UNAUDITED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE SECOND QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

(With Comparative Figures for the Second Quarter Ended June 30,3 2017)

2018 2017
i
NET INCOME (P48,297,679) (238,448,039)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME: ; !
Exchange differences on translating foreign ! ;
operations (49.,786,181) 31,836,649 |
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE | !
PERIOD {98,083,860) {6,611,390) !
Attributable To !
Equity holder of Parent (90,028,208) (7,235,367)
|
Minority interest (8,055,652) 623,977
(98,083,860) (6,611,390)
Basic Earnings Per Share (_0.10) ( 0.01)




TKC METALS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
{Formeddy: TKC Stecl Corporation)

UNAUDITED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

TFOR THE S1X MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Equity Atuributable to Equity Holders of the Parent

Additional Retained Cumulative
Capital Stock Paid-in Earnings/ Trarslation  Adjustinent to
Noie 2 and 15} Capital (Nole 2 Deficit Adjustments Equil

Jssuance duing the period
Translation adjustments during

| Total Mingrity Intcrest  Total Eequi
Balance at Janvary 0T, T018  BSAD,000,000 R1,983,047,306 (F4,130,508,313) PB11MI528  (Fd6A44,389) FOALS03268) Fad,40,(55 F(898,723,113)
- - - - - Lo 0 0

- 267, 1163,861 29,938,431 297,102,292

the period - - - 267,163,861
Business combination - - - - - - - -
Net income far the period = - (66,819,G45) - - (66,819,645) (4,420,184) {71,248 .829)
Balance at June 30= 2018 £940,000,000 #1,983,047,906 R(4,197,327,958 578 29 (46,444,389) ?(742,219!052! R65.349.402 I'(6121869,650!

Equity Attributallc to Equity Holders of the Parent

Additional Retained Cumulative
Capital Stock Paid-in Emmings/ Trongladon
(Note 2 and 15) Capital (Nete 2) (Deficil) Adjusuments

Adjustment to

Equily

| Total Minority Interest _ Total Equity

Balance at January 1, 2017 F940,000,000 P1,983,047,906 (P3,202,266,675) RI90,801,180  (P46,444,389) P(224,261,977)
- - - 0

Issupnce during the period
Translation adjustments during

|
- 223216969

the period - - - 223,216,969
Business combination - - - - -
Net income for the period - {76,142,356) -

{76, I¢112.356)

Balange at_June 30, 2017 R940,000,000 B1,983,047,906 P(3.368.409,031) F414,018,150

P46,444,389)

P(77,787,364)

54,535,201  B(170,323,686)
0 1]

24,763,753 247,980,722

(4,147,184) _ (80,289,540)
¥15,154,860 __ P(2,632,504)




TKC METALS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIAR[ES |

(Formerly: TXC Stecl Corporation)

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax (B71,243,936)  (R80,289,142)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 17,504,974 12,760,945
Interest expense 38,082,509 40,667,019
Interest income | {24,482) (2,020}
Operating income before working capital changes | (15,680,935) (26,863,198}
Decrease (increase) in: ?
Trade and other receivables | 102,263,621 41,843,911
Inventories | (96,013,222)  (96,193,235)
Input value-added tax ! 4,634,855 (44,094)
Prepayments and other current assets | (30,482,451 (17,530,166)
Other non-current assets | 24,343,403 (31,344,431)
Increase (decrease) in: {
Trade and other current liabilities | (31,324,431} 15,045,533
Accrued retirement expense | 0 0
Net cash used in operations (42,259,160  (115,085,680)
Interest paid (38,082,509) (40,667,019)
Interest received 24,482 2,020
Income tax paid 21,795,819 903,429
Net cash used in operating activities | (58,521,368)  (154,847,250)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES |
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment 212,059,880 192,812,623
. Advances to related party (28,768,128) (9,496,971}
Leasehold rights 74,958,647 70,007,046
Decrease (increase) in.other noncurrent agsets 0
Net cash used in investing activilies | 258,250,399 253,322,698
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES i
Proceeds from: -
Increase {decrease) in due to stockholders (79,834,902)  (68,099,168)
Increase(decrease) in advances from related parties 0 0
Increase{decrease) in Deferred liability 2,767,731 2,755,548
Increase(decrease) in long-term liabilily 0 0
Increase(decrease) in due to related parties 6,079,282 24,567,319
Increase({decrease) in loans payable {95,986,190) (77,416,712)
" Proceeds from issuance of capital stocks 0 0
Net cash provided by financing activities 1(166,974,079)  (118,193,013)
NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE DIFFERENCE | 13,493,214 5,654,442
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS | 46,248,166 (14,063,123)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIGD | 34,381,947 31,061,816
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD | £80,630,113 16,998,693

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




Aging of Trade Receivables

As of June 30, 2018 i
‘ Past Duc
3 61 - 90
Description Amount Current | 1-30Days 31 - 60 Days Dgxys
Trade receivables: |
Export Sales 31,048,152 20,552,851 ‘ 0 0 10,495,301
Domestic Sales 152,348,440 38,583,395 16,125,649 3,927,549 93,711,846
1
Total 183,396,592 59,136,246 16,i25,649 3,927,549 104,207,147
Less aHowance for doubtfil accounts - - | - - | -
i |
Net Trade and Other Receivables 183,396,592 59,136,246 72,982,407 3,927,549 73,733,238




TKC METALS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES |
(Formerly: TKC Steel Corporation) !

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEHTS

1
i
1. Corporate Information |

TK.C Metals Corporation {the Parent Company or TKC, formerly TKC Stecl Corporation) was
organized and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on
November 28, 1996. SQL was originally incorporated to engage in computer training,
consulting services and selling of software licenses. :

|
SQL was acquired by Star Equities, Inc. (SEI), a company incorporated in the Philippines on
September 13, 2006, SEI, which now owns 70.96% of the Parent Company, intended TKC to
be a backdoor listing vehicle for its investment in the steel business, ]In line with this
objective, the board of directars (BOD) and stockholders of SQL approved a resolution to (2)
change the primary purpose of business from that of engaging in computer training, consulting
services and selling of software licenses to marketing and selling of \jrarious stee! products,
principally, but not limited to billets and, investment holdings, and (b} the corporate name
from SQL to TKC Steel Corporation. 1

On June 22, 2007, the SEC approved the amendments in Article IT Primary Purpose of the
Parent Company’s Arsticles of Incorporation. Under the amended article, the Parent
Company’s primary purpose is to invest, operate, own, hold, use, dcvj'elop, lease, trade, sell,
exchange, deal in, on its own behalf or as agent or commission merchant, assign, transfer,
encumber, and engage in the business of, either directly or indirectly, smelting, fusing,
shaping, rolling, casting, fabricating, extruding or otherwise developing or processing metals,
steel or other alloys of metallic, non-metallic or other compounds, substances and raw
materials of every nature, kind or description, and to invest in stocks, bonds, or other
evidences of indebtedness or securities of any other corporation, domestic or foreign, whether
engaged in the steel business. ‘

As part of the business restructuring, SEI transferred its business to the Parent Company. The
Parent Company’s consolidated financial statements now include the; following subsidiaries:

|

Country of ‘ Percentage Ownership

Name of Subsidiary Incorporation Nature of Business Direct  Indirect
Treasure Steel Corporation Manufacture of

(']‘reasurc)" Philippines steel products 98% -
Billions Stee] International Limited |

(Bi]lions)b Hong Kong Investment hpldin 25 160% -
Campanilla Miaeral Resources, Philippines Mineral production 70% --

Inc, (Campanilla)d | -
ZhangZhou Stronghold Steel People’s Republic of  Manufacture of

Works Co. Lid. (ZZ China or PRC steel pipes | - 91%c

Stronghold} ‘

A Acquired on June 29, 2007 (see Note 2)
bAcquired on April 30, 2007 (see Note 2)

¢ Through Billions Steel

|
i
i
d Has not commenced commereial operationt 1

TKC and its subsidiaries (the Group) are engaged in the operation ofi a smelting, melt.ing and
rolling plant. Its main products are billets, steel bars, rods, plates, sh“eets, pipes and similar

items.
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The details of the change in the capital structure and ownership of thej, Parent Company as well
as the accounting for the foregoing transactions are discussed further in Note 2.

|
The ultimate parent company of TKC is JTKC Equities, Inc., a domesr.tic corporation.

|
The registered office address of the Parent Company is 2™ Floor W Tower Condominium 39™
St., North Bonifacio Triangle, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City, |

|
|
1
Business Reorganization |
|
I

The following transactions were consemmated from a legal staudpoir%t:

a. Acquisition of Interest in TKC by SEI |
On February 9, 2007, in addition to the change in the corporate name from SQL to TKC
Steel Corparation, the legal Parent Company (see Note 1), TKC’$ shareholders and BOD
also approved the increase in authorized capital stock from 40,0 million divided into
40 million common shares, with par value of 21.00 a share to £1.0 billion divided into
1.0 billion common shares, with the same par value, Such increase in authorized capital
stock was approved by the SEC on April 13, 2007. : ‘

|
Upon the change in capital structure of TKC on April 13, 2007, SEI subscribed 240.0
million shares of common stock at #1.00 a share for a total of 9240.0 million, out of the
increased authorized capital stock, Such subscription increased the outstanding number of
common shares to 265.0 million with SEI owning 90.57% of the Fquity of TKC.

On April 16, 2007, SEI subscribed to an additional 440.0 millionfcommon stock at#1.00 a
share for a total of R440.0 million, increasing its holdings to a tot}al of 680.0 million shares
out of the total outstanding capital stock of 705.0 million shares representing 96.45%
ownership interest in TKC. |

On November 23, 2007, additional 235.0 million common stocksi were issued by TKC as a
follow-on offering. Such issuance decreased the percentage ownership of SE1in TKC to
72.32%. |

|
The movements of shares of stocks are as follows \
Additional Paid

WNumber of Shares | Par -in Capital
Balance at beginning of period 25,000,000 | B25,000,000 £3,000,000
Subscriptions during the perfod; |
April 13, 2007 240,000,000 | 240,000,000
. April 16, 2007 440,000,000 | 440,000,000
November 23, 2007 235,000,000 | 235,000,000 1,980,047,906
Total subscriptions during the period 915,000,000 | 915,000,000 1,980,047,906
Balance at end of period 940,000,000 £940,000,000 £1,983,047,906

|
|
b. Transfer of SEI Subsidiaries to TKC : .
As discussed in Note 1, SEI had intended the acquisition of the Parent Company as its
vehicle for a backdoor listing for its holdings in the steel business. In |ine with this, SEI
consclidated its interests in Treasure and Billions (fogether with t‘he latter’s 90% interest in
Z7Z Stronghold) as follows: i




) Acquisition by TKC of Billions

On April 30, 2007, a Deed of Sale was executed whereby thc? majority shareholder
group, SEI, sold and transferred all of its interest in Billions to the Parent Company for
P594,056,700. Billions has a 90% direct interest in ZZ Stronghold. Billions is a
limited liability company incorporated under the laws of the Republic of Mauritius.

Z7Z Stronghold was incorporated on July 13, 2005 and began construction of its
facilities thereafter. lts first batch of manufactured steel pipes was completed and sold
in June 2007. Commercial operations of ZZ Stronghold began officially after
acceptance by the customer of the first batch of steel pipes mjanufacmred and
delivered. ‘

|
ii) Acquisition by TKC of Treasure ;
On June 29, 2007, SYL Holdings, Inc. and Billions (in-trust for the controlling
shareholder group of SEI) each owning 48% in Treasure, collectively transferred their
holdings consisting of 479,998 shares and 479,997 shares, respectively, with total par
value of 295,999,500 to TKC on account. After execution of the Deed of Sale, TKC
had 96% direct interest in Treasure (see Note 1). ;
\
Accounting for the Business Combination. In accordance with the provisions of Philippine
Financial Reporting Standard (PFRS) 3, the acquisition of Treasure and Billions was
accounted for as a reverse acquisition as the arrangement was for the two subsidiaries to be
“acquired” by a smaller public entity as a means of obtaining a stock exchange listing. Legally
however, TKC, as the issuing public entity, is regarded as the Parent pompmy. From an
accounting perspective, Treasure and Billions ate considered the “acquirer” since they have
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of TKC.
In accordance with the reverse acquisition provisions of PFRS 3, the Grcup reflected the fair
value of the net assets of TKC (the “acquiree” for financial accounting purposes) totaling to
£696.2 million, TKC also determined the cost of business combination to be
$708.0 million which is the fair value of the Parent Company’s capital stock. The difference
between the cost of combination and the fair values of assets and liabilities amounting to
£11.8 million was accounted for as goodwill and was evaluated for p:ossible impairment.

Goodwill was computed as follows:

Amount
Cost of business combination | £708,000,000
T ess fair value of net assets of TKC i 696,196,597
Goodwill | £11,803,403
"The cash inflow related to the reverse acquisition is as follows: w
Amount
Cash from stock issvance SEI } £650,000,000
Less cash outflow for the purchase of interest of Billions ! (594,056,700)
Net cash inflow | 285,943,300
|
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The following is a summary of the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as

of the date of the acquisition: |
|

Fair Value

Reco gniz:ed

on Acquisition  Carrying Value

Assets }
Cash and cash ecquivalents P103,864,584 £103,864,584

Creditable withholding and input }
value-added taxes 11,019,765 11,019,765
Investment in subsidiaries 820,372,022 829,372,022
Other assets 10,405,863 10,405,863
954,662,234 954,662,234

Liabilities |
Trade and other payables 1,466,137 1,466,137
Loans payable 161,000,000 161,000,000
Advances from stockholders and subsidiaries 95,999,500 95,999,500
258,465,637 258,465,637
Net assets P696,196,597 696,196,597

Group Reorganization ‘

On January 9, 2009, Billions Steel International Limited (BSIL Maur&tius), a company
incorporated in Mauritius, sold its entire interest in ZZ Stronghold to Billions HK, a company
registered in Hong Kong. Both companies are wholly owned subsidiéries of the Parent
Company. The sale was made in line with the group reorganization of Billicns for the purpose
of rationalizing its group structure. The group reorganization was acéounted using pooling of
interests method classified as uniting of interests in consideration of the substance of the
transaction and since the entities in the transaction are under common control of the Parent

Company. 1
|

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies |

Basis of Preparation ‘
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost basis.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Pmb which is the functional
and presentation currency of the Parent Company. All values are rounded to the nearest peso

unless otherwise stated. 3
i

Statemeqt of Compliance |
The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance with PFRS.

Basis of Consolidation

The Group’s financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and

its subsidiaries: Billions, ZZ Stronghold and Treasure. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent Company using consistent

accounting policies. i
|

|
The functional currency of Treasure is the Philippine Peso, while tha‘t of Billions and ZZ
Stronghold is the Renminbi (RMB, currency of PRC). The accounts of Billions and ZZ
Stronghold have been translated into Philippine Peso at the rate of exjchange prevailing at the

reporting date, 1
i

All inter-company balances, transactions, income and expenses and Proﬁts :'m:_i lossefs resulting
from inter-company transactions that are recognized in assets, if any, are eliminated in full.
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Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Parent
Company. Control is achieved where the Parent Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits fr;om its activities.
Consolidation of subsidiaries ceases when control is transferred out of the Parent Company.
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of income from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal, as
appropriate. '

|
Minority interest represents the portion of net assets and profit or loss not held by the Parent
Company and is presented separately in the Group’s statement of income and within equity in
the Group’s statement of financial position, separate from equity attributable to equity holders
of the Parent Company, ‘

\
Changes in Accounting Policies |
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous year except for the
following new and amended PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards|(PAS) and Philippine
Interpretations which are adopted beginning January 1, 2010. The adoption of these new and
armended PFRS, PAS and Philippine Interpretations did not have a significant impact to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. :

PFRS 2 Amendments - Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transaction
PFRS 3, Business Combinations (Revised) |

PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Amended}

PAS 39 Amendment - Eligible Hedged Items o

Philippine Interpretation International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee
(IFRIC) 17, Distributions of Non-Cash Assets lo Owhers |

The Group conducted an evaluation of the possible impact of the adoption of PFRS 9 and
decided that the Group will not early adopt PFRS 9. ;

|
The following new and amended standards are applicable to the Company:

PAS 27 (Amended)
Amendments to PFRS 7
PFRS 10

PFRS 12

PFRS 13

The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the applicable new and amended standards
based on the financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Improvements to PFRSs ! o )
Improvements to PFRSs, an omnibus of amendments to standards, dea] primarily with a view

to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. There are separe:xtc transitional provisions
for cach standard. The adoption of the following amendments resulted in changes to
accounting policies but did not have any impact on the financial posit‘ion or petformance of the
Group. !

|

Improvements to PFRSs 2008 - )
The amendment arising from the 2008 Improvements to PFRSs is efﬁectwe for annual periods

beginning on or after July 1, 2009. i

| .
» PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, clarifies t.hat
when a subsidiary is classified as held for sale, all its assets and liabilities are classified as
held for sale, even when the entity remains a non-confrolling interest after the sale

transaction.




|
Improvements to PFRSs 2009 }
. \
» PFRS 5 clarifies that the disclosures required in respect of non-current assets and disposal
groups classified as held for sale or discontinued operations are only those set out in PFRS
5. The disclosure requirements of other PFRSs only apply if speéiﬁcally required for such
non-current assets or discontinued operations. The amendinent has no impact on the
financial position or financial performance of the Group. j

= PFRS 8, Operating Segments, clarifies that segment assets and liajibilities need only be
reported when those assets and liabilities are included in measures that are used by the
chief operating decision maker. The amendment has no impact on the financial position or
financial performance of the Group. ‘

o PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, states that only expenditure that results in recognizing an
asset can be classified as a cash flow from investing activities. This amendment has no
impact on the Group’s statements of cash flows. i

|

o PAS 36, Impairment of Assets, the amendment clarifies that the largest unit permitted for
allocating goodwill, acquired in a business combination, is the oﬁcraﬁng segment as
defined in PFRS 8 before aggregation for reporting purposes. The amendment has no
impact on the Group as the annual impairment test is performed before aggregation.

|

Other amendments resulting from the 2009 Improvements to PFRSs tjo the following standards
did not have any impact on the accounting policies, financial position or performance of the
Group. 1

PFRS 2, Share-based Payment ;

PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statemenis !

PAS 17, Leases ‘

PAS 38, Intangible Assels |

PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement ‘

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9, Reassessment of Embedded Da:zrivatives

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-16, Hedge of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies
Foreign Currency Translation }
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial stateroents of each entity are measured using that ﬁmctional%currcncy. The statement
of income of ZZ Stronghold (a foreign entity) is translated into the Group’s reporting and
functional currency at average exchange rates for the period and the statement of financial
position is translated at exchange rate ruling at period end. 1
Exchange differences arising on monetary jtems that form part of an entity’s net investment in
a foreign operation are reclassified to equity (cumulative translation adjustments) in the
statement of financial position and are only released to the statement of income upon the
disposal of the foreign operation. The individual financial statements of each of the entities
included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional Qunency”).

\
Transaction and balances 1
For financial reporting purposes, the foreign currency-denominated ¢onetaw assets and
ligbilitics are translated in Philippine pesos based on the Philippine Dealing System (PDS)
closing rate prevailing at end of the year and foreign currency-denominated income and
expenses, at the average PDS weighted average rate (PDSWAR) for Fhe year. Foreign

|
|
|
{
|
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exchange differences arising from restatements of foreign currency-denominated assets and
liabilities are etedited to or charged against operations in the period in which the rates change.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. ;

Business Combination 1

The business combination and reorganization of the legal subsidiaries, Treasure and Billions
(together with ZZ Stronghold), were treated as reverse acquisition and reorganization of
companies under common conirol, respectively, and is thus, accounted for in a manuer similar
to the pooling-of-interests method. The reverse acquisition involved the “purchase” by the
legal subsidiaries, of TKC. This was accounted for using the purchas;e method. Under the
purchase method, the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the identified “acquiree”
were measured at fair value with the cost of combination allocated to all identifiable assets and
liabilities. Any difference between the cost of combination and fair value of identifiable assets
were recognized as goodwill, ‘

|
Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement
Date of recognition ;
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized on the settlement
date. |

|

Initial recognition of financial insiruments 1

All financial assets ate initially recognized at fair value. Except for financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL), the initial measurement of financial assets includes
transaction costs. The Group classifies its financial assets in the follojwing categories:
financial assets at FVPL, Held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, Available-for-sale (AFS)
investments, and loans and receivables. Financial liabilities are classified as financial
liabilities at FVPL and financial liabilities carried at cost. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the investments were acquired and whether they are quoted in an active
market, Management determines the classification of its investments 1at initial recognition and,
where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting date. As of
June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Group has no outstanding financial assets or

financial liabilities at FVPL, AFS investments, and HTM investments.

|
Determination of fair value |

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the statement of financial
position date is based on their quoted market price or dealer price qudtations (bid price for
Jong positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
When current bid and asking prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction
provides evidence of the current fair value as Jong as there has not been a significant change in
economic circumstances since the time of the transaction. |
|
For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined
by using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include net present value
techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, option
pricing models, and other relevant valuation models. !
‘Day 1" difference \
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different to the ‘fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based ona valuation
technique whose variables include only data from abservable market, the Group recognizes the
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difference between the transaction price and fair value (a *Day 1° diff;erence) in the

consolidated statement of inceme in “Other income.’ |

|
In cases where use is made of data which is not observable, the difference between the
transaction price and model value is only recognized in the consolidated statement of income
when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each
transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1°
difference amount, }
|
Receivables |
These are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that are
not quoted in an active market. They are not entered into with the intention of immediate or
short-term resale and are not classified as other financia) assets held for trading, designated as
AFS or Financial assets designated at FVPL. i

|
After initial measurement, these financial assets are subsequently mezitsured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment losses. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate (EIR). The amortization is included in ‘Interest
income’ in the consolidated statement of income. The losses arising from impairment of such
receivables are recognized in ‘Provision for impairment losses’ in the consolidated statement
of income. _ |
The Group’s trade and other receivables and due from related parties are classified as
receivables, |

Other financial liabilities !

This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held for trading or not designated as at
FVPL upon the inception of the liability, These include liabilities arising from operations
(e.g., payables, accruals or borrowing). !

The liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequenﬁly carried at amortized

cost, taking into account the impact of applying the effective interest method of amortization

{or accretion) for any related premium, discount and any directly attributable transaction costs.
|

De-recognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities i
Financial asset 3
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of 2 financial assef or part of a group of financial
assets) is derecognized where: |
|
the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or |
the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; or |
« the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from thc1 asset and either
(2) has transferred substantially ali the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) bas neither
transferred nor retained the risk and rewards of the asset but has t:ransfcrred the control of

the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or bas entered
into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes
the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lc;)wer of original carrying
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amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be

required to repay.

Financial lability ‘
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or has expired. :

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the s;tme lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective car:rying amounts fs
recognized in the statement of income. |
|
|

Impairment of Financial Assets |

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more evenis that has
occurred afer the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event?) and that Joss event
(or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the ﬁﬂancial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that
there is measurable decrease in the estimated firture cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults. i

Assets Carried at Amortized Cost w

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on receivables has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financia) asset’s original EIR.
The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through use of an
allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in the: statement of income,

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment e:;cists individualty for
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. Ifit is determined that no objective evidence of

' impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whethefr significant or not, the

asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that
group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are
not incladed in a collective assessment of impairment, ;

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was irecognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subscquent reversal of an impairment
loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income, to the extent that the carrying value

of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. |

|
Assets Carried at Cost \
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative
asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the assels
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows|discounted at the current

market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
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Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amountireported in the
consolidated statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a ¢urrently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. :

|
Inventories ‘
Tnventories are carcied at the lower of cost and net realizable value, Costs incurred in bringing
each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for as follows:

Finished goods — cost includes direct materials and labor,

' determined usi.né the speeific
identification method, and a proportion of
manufacturing overhead costs based on
normal operating capacity excluding
borrowing costs; and

Raw and scrap materials and factory — purchase cost determined on a first-in,
supplies first-out basis.

Net realizable value of finished goods is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Net realizable value of raw and
scrap materials and factory supplies is the current replacement cost. ‘

When the net realizable value of the inventories is lower than its cost; the inventories are
written down to its net realizable value and the difference between the cost and net realizable
value of the inventories is charged to ‘Miscellaneous expense’ account in the statement of
income.

Property, Plant and Equipment ‘
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, excluding costs of da‘y-to-day servicing, less

accumulated depreciation, amortization and any impairment in value.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment consists of its purchase price and any directly
atiributable costs in bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of such property, plant and equipment when
the recognition criteria are met and the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling and
removing the asset and restoring the site where the asset is located. ;

i

Expenditures incurred after the property, plant and equipment have bf:en put into operations,
such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to income in the year thp costs are incurred.
When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the

property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.
|

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line bjasis over the following

estimated useful lives of the assets: |

Building 20 years !

Leasehold improvements 3 years or term of lease, whichever is shorter
Machinery and equipment 5 - 10years ?

Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 3 - 5 years 1

Tools 3 years 1

Transportation equipment 5-10 years

The useful lives and depreciation and amortization method of the assets are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, as of each reporting date, to ensure that the periods and method of
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depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits
from the items of property, plant and equipment. }
When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated
depreciation, amortization and any impairment in value are removed from the accounts and
any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the statement of income in ;the period such is

realized. |
|

Construction in-progress represents plant under constmctioddevelopﬁxent and is stated at cost
which includes cost of construction and other direct costs. Construction in-progress is not

depreciated until such time the relevant assets are substantially available for operational use.
i

Leasehold Rights |
The leasehold rights of Treasure and ZZ Stronghold are stated at cost less accumulated

amortization and any impairment in value. The amortization of the leasehold rights is
computed on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease agreements of 25 years (Treasure)
and 42 years and 50 years (ZZ Stronghold). ;
Borrowing Costs !
Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred. Borrowing costs, including exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they ate regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs, are capitalized if they are directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of a qualifying asset. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the
activities to prepare the asset are in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being
incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized until the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use, If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognized.

For income tax reporting purposes, borrowing costs are treated as deductible expense in the
period such are incurred.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets i
This accounting policy applies primarily to the Group’s property, plant and equipment,

leasehold rights and goodwill.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that its nonfinancial
assets may be impaired. When an indjcator of impairment exists or when an annual
jmpairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes a formal estimate of recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s (or cash-genjerating unit’s) fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is assessed as part of the cash
generating unit to which it belongs. ‘

|
Where the carrying amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset (or cash-generating unit) is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. Tn assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects currez;tt market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or cash-g?nerating unit).

Except for goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as%to whether there is any
indication that previously recognized impairment Josses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If

that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That
!
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increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would haveibeen determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognized in the statement of income. After sucha reversal, the depreciation
expense is adjusted in future years to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any
residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining life. |
|

Goodwill 1

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if évents or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. |

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which the Goodwill relates. Goodwill
sometimes cannot be allocated on a non-arbitrary basis to individual cash-generating units, but
only to the groups of cash-generating units. As a result, the lowest level within the Parent
Company at which the Goodwill is monitored for internal managcmcnjt purposes sometimes
comprises a number of cash-generating units to which the Goodwill relates but cannot be
allocated. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit {or group of cash-
generating units) to which Goodwill has been allocated (or to the aggr‘egate carrying amount of
a group of cash-generating units to which the Goodwill relates but cannot be specifically
allocated), an impairment loss is tecognized. |

Provisions |

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (le‘gal or constructive} as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be zinade of the amount of
the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of the provisions are to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the consolidated statement of
income, net of reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of monéy is material, provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability, Where discounting is used, the increase in the; provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as an interest expense. ‘

Revenue Recognition !
Revemue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

" transaction will flow to the Group and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts,
rebates and other sales taxes or duties. |

T ,
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recoguized:

Sale of goods !
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of

ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually upon delive:ry of the goods o
customers and when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured.

Interest income 1 ]
Interest income is recognized on a time proportionate basis that reflects the effective yicld on

the asset. |

Expense Recognition !
Expenses are recognized when it is probable that decrease in future economic benefits related

to decrease in asset or an increase in liability has occurred and that thc:*. decrease in economic
benefits can be measured reliably. Expenses that may arise in the course of ordinary regular
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|
|
activities of the Group include among others the operating expenses on the Group’s operation.
Expenses are recognized as incurred. |
!
Leases |
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement|conveys a right fo use
the asset. \

i
Operating leases 1
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset
are classificd as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in
the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the ;term of lease.

|
For income tax reporting purposes, expenses under operating lease arrangements are treated as
deductible expenses in conformity with the terms of the lease agreem?nts.

Taxes i
Current tax |

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authority. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted as of the
reporting date. |
Deferred tax |

Deferred income tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary
differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and lifibi]itiﬁ and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. ‘
|

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable tsmporary differ:enc%, except:
|

» where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary; differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. ;

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differt;:ncfﬁ, carry-forward
benefits of unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) for
Philippine-based entities and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the dejductible temporary
differences, and the carry-forward benefits of unused tax credits from excess MCIT over
regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused NOLCO can be utilized and as applicable to
Philippine-based entities, except:
»  where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and }

o inrespect of deductible temparary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assels are récognizcd only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temp?rary differences can be

utilized.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reportijng date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Any unrecognized deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that}it has become probable
that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered. i

|
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
years when the assets are realized or the liabilities are settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted as of the reporting date.

Income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity, if any, is recognized in equity and
not in the statement of income.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to [
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Valued-added tax (VAT)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of V{XT except:

|
e where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax
authority, in which case the input tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and ;
o receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.
' \
Earnings Per Share ;
Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income for the year by the
weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding during the year, after
giving retroactive effect lo any stock dividends or stock splits, if any,ideclared during the year.
Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net income applicable to common stockholders by the
weighted average number of common shares issued and ouistanding during the year afier
giving effect to assumed conversion of diluted potential common shares.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless

the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A
contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of
econoniic benefits is probable.

Segment Reporting ;
The Group's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the
nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic
business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. Financial information
on business segments is presented in Note 6 to the consolidated ﬁnanFial statements.

Standards Tssued but not vet Effective 1 !
Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of th# Group’s consolidated 1
financial statements are listed below. This listing is of standards and interpretations issued,
which the Group reasonably expects to be applicable at a future date.. The Group intends to
adopt those standards when they become effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the Group
does not expect the adoption of these amended PFRS and Philippine Interpretation to have
significant impact on its consolidated financial statement. ; '
PAS 12, Income Taxes (Amendment) - Deferved Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

The amended standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2012.
The amendment provides a practical solution to the problem of asses;sing whether recovery of
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an asset will be through use or sale, Tt introduces a presumption that recovery of the carrying
amount of an asset will, normally, be through sale.

PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures (Amended)
The amended standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011. It
clarified the definition of a related party to simplify the identiﬁcation}of such relationships and
to eliminate inconsistencies in its application. The revised standard introduces a pactia]
exemption of disclosure requirements for government-related entities. Early adoption is
permitted for either the partial exemption for government-related entities or for the entire
standard. :
PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation (Amendment) - Classg“ication of Rights Issues
The amendment to PAS 32 is effective for anneal periods beginning 6{1 or after February 1,
2010 and amended the definition of a financial liability in order to classify rights issues (and
certain options or warrants) as equity instruments in cases where such rights are given pro rata
to all of the existing owners of the same class of an entity’s non-derivative equity instruments,
or to acquire a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments fqr a fixed amount in any
currency. i

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendments) - Transfers of Financial Assets
The amendments to PFRS 7 are effective for annual periods beginnin‘g on or after 1 July 2011.
The amendments will allow users of consolidated financial statements to improve their
understanding of transfer transactions of financial assets (for example, securitizations),
including understanding the possible effects of any risks that may remain with the entity that
transferred the assets. The amendments also require additional disclosures if a disproportionate
amount of transfer transactions are undertaken around the end of a re;j:orting period.

|
PFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

PFRS 9, as issued in 2010, reflects the first phase of the work on the rjeplacement of PAS 39
and applies to classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as
defined in PAS 39. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2013, In subsequent phases, hedge accounting and de-recognition Will be addressed, The
completion of this project was expected in early 2011. |
\
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-14 (Amendment) - Prepayments of aiMinfmum Funding
Requirement 3
The amendment to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-14 is effective for; annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2011, with retrospective application.| The amendment
provides guidance on assessing the recoverable amount of a net pension asset. The
amendment permits an entity to treat the prepayment of a minimum funding requirement as an
|

asset. |

|
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-15, Agreement for Construction of Real Estate
This Interpretation, effective for annual periods beginning on or af’tcr; January 1, 2012, covers
accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that undertake the construction of
real estate directly or through subcontractors, The Interpretation requires that revenue on
construction of real estate be recognized only upon completion, exceflt when such contract
qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under PAS 11, Consiruction Contracts,
or involves rendering of services in which case revenue is recognized based on stage of
completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the construction materials and
whete the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to the buyer on a continuous basis will
also be accounted for based on stage of completion.
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Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilftzfes with Equity
Instruments i
This Interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2010. The
interpretation clarifies that equity instruments issued to a creditor to :jbxtinguish a financial
liability qualify as consideration paid. The equity instruments issued are measured at their fair
value, In case that this cannot be reliably measured, the insiruments are measured at the fair
value of the liability extinguished. Any gain or loss is recognized im}mediately in profit or
loss. |

\
Improvements to PFRSs 2010 i
Tmprovement to IFRSs is an omnibus of amendments to PFRSs. The amendrments have not
heen adopted as they become effective for annual periods on or after either July 1, 2010 or
January 1, 2011. The Group, however, expects nto impact from the adoption of the following
amendments on its financial position or performance: |

PFRS 3, Business Combinations

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures

PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements

PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-13, Customer Loyalty Programs

& 8 5 & &

Sigunificant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The Group’s financial statements prepared in conformity with PFRS require management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the financial
statements and related accompanying notes, In preparing the Group’s financial statements,
management has made its best judgments and estimates of certain amounts, giving due
consideration to materiality. ‘

The estimates and assumptions vsed in the financial statements are b%lsed upon management’s
evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the Group’s financial
statements. Actual results may differ from such estimates. 1

Judgments :

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assels

The Group performs impairment testing of assets when there are indijcations of impairment.
The impairment testing of assets which are not used in operations requires an estimation of its
fair value less cost to sell. Fair value is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset or
cash-generating unit in an arm’s-length transaction between knowledgeable willing partics.
Management estimates the value in use of the cash-generating units in testing impairment of
property, plant and equipment and leasehold rights. Value in use is determined by making an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and to apply a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those r::ash flows.

Operating Leases
The Group has entered into various lease agreements as a lessee. The Group has determined

that the lessor retains all significant risk and rewards of ownership of these properties which
are leased out on operating lease arrangements.
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Estimates

a) Impairment losses of irade and other receivables
The Group reviews its trade and other receivable portfolios to assess impairment at each
financial position date. In determining whether an impairment loss|should be recorded in
the consolidated statement of income, the Group makes judgments as to whether there is any
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a portfolio of trade and receivables before the decrease can be identified with an
individual trade and other receivable in that portfolio. This evidence may include such
observable data as: *

significant financial difficulty of the borrower; i

e breach of credit terms such as a default/delinquency in interest or principal payments;
granting of a concession by the lender to the borrower which the lender would not
otherwise consider; ‘

+ disappearance of an active market because of financial difficulties or significant
market decline for the products of borrowers; and

e adverse changes in the industry or economic conditions.

The Group assessed that there is no impairment on trade and other receivables since there is
no such indication of impairment. }

b) Impairment of nonfinancial assels :
The Group performs impairment testing of assets when therc are indications of impairment.
The impairment testing of assets which are not used in operations requires an estimation of
its fair value less cost to sell. Fair value is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset or
cash-generating unit in an arm’s-length transaction between knowledgeable willing parties.

\
Management estimates the value in use of the cash-generating units in testing impairment of
property, plant and equipment and leasehold rights, Value in use is determined by making
an estimate of the expected fture cash flows from the cash- generaf;;ing unit and to apply a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows,

|

The carrying amounts of the creditable withholding and input taxesj are reduced to the extent
that it available to allow all or part of the creditable withholding and input taxes to be
utilized. |

|
Any allowance for unrecoverable portion of creditable withholding tax is majntained at a
level based on past application experience and other factors that may affect realizability.

As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 creditable withholding taxes amounted to £70
million and R70 million, respectively, while input VAT amounted to £220 million and 224
million, respectively (see Note 9). No allowance for impairment loss was recognized since
the Group believes that the creditable withholding tax and input VﬁkT are recoverable.

d) Net realizable values of inventories ;
The Group carries inventories at net realizable value when it is lower than cost due to

damage, physical deterioration, obsolescence, changes in price levels or other causes. The
net realizable value of inventories is reviewed on an annual basis to reflect the accurate

valuation in the financial records. 1
As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, allowance for inventeriw amounted to 149

million and R149 million respectively. As of June 30, 2018 and December 31,2017, the
i
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carrying valies of inventories amounted to 540 million and £360 million, respectively {see
Note 8). |
\

e) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities |
The determination of fair value of certain financial assets and liabilities requires extensive
use of accounting estimates and judgment. While significant compbnents of fair value
measurement were determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.c., foreign exchange
rates, interest rates, volatility rates), the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the
Group utilized different valuation methodologies. |

\
) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and leasehold rights |
The Group assesses impairment on property, plant and equipment and leasehold rights
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrﬁ‘(ing amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. The factors that the Group considers important which could trigger
an impairment review include the following: |
|
e significant underperformance relative to expected historical or prajected future
operating results; w
e significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for
overall business; and ;
« significant negative industry or economic trends. !
|

The Group recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher between the net selling price
and the value in use. The net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset
in an arm’s length transaction while value in use is the present value of estimated future
cash flows expected to arise from the contimuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the
end of its useful life. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not
possible, for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. !
As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, an allowance for implairment loss remains at
P633 million on the Group’s property, plant and equipment. i
|
g Useful lives of property, plant and equipment |
The Group estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipm;ent based on the period
over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations
differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial
obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets. In addjtion, estimation of the
useful lives of property, plant and equipment is based on collective assessment of industry
practice, internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is passible,
however, that future results of operations could be materially affect‘ed by changes in
estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned in the foregoing. The amounts
and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these
factors and circumstances. :

As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, property, plant and eé[uipmcnt amounted to
£3.6 billion and #3.4 billion, respectively. 1

h) Impairment of goodwill ‘
The Group’s management conducts an annual review for any impairment in value of the
goodwill. Goodwill is written down for impairment where the net present value of the
forecasted future cash flows from the business is insuificient to sul%port its carrying value.‘
The impairment on goodwill is determined by comparing (a) the carrying value of goodwill
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plus the net tangible assets of the merged entity and (b) the presentivalue of the annual
projected cash flows for five years computed under the discounted cash flow method.

As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, there was no impairment on goodwill.
|

i) Estimating reiirement benefils ‘
The determination of the obligation and cost of pension and other retirement benefits is
dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such
amounts. Those assumptions include among others, discount rates, expected returns on plan
assets and future salary increase rates. In accordance with PFRS, actual results that differ
from the Group’s assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and
therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future
periods. While the Group believes that the assumplions are reasonable and appropriate,
significant differences in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions
may materially affect the pension and other retirement obligations, |

J) Realizability of deferred tax assels |
The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at each financial position date a:nd written off the
carrying amount as it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. As of June 30, 2018 aqd December 31, 2017,

deferred tax assets amounted to nil. ‘

5. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies !

|
The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks. The Group’s risk management program
focuses on safeguarding shareholder value to manage unpredictability of risks and minimize
potential adverse impact on the operating performance and financial position,

The BOD is directly responsible for risk management. Management carries out risk
management policies approved by the BOD, The Finance Departmem:: of the Group, in
coordination with the operating units, identifies, evaluates reporis, and monitors significant
risks, and submits appropriate recommendations. The BOD approves formal policies for
overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as market
risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. |

Market Risk |
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of ﬁnan%:ia] instruments will

fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rate, fore;i gn exchange rates and

equity prices. |
Foreign currency risk ‘
Foreign currency risk arises as a result of change in exchange rates between the Philippine
Peso and foreign currencies. Any change will affect the Group’s Toreign currency
denominated accounts and transactions. 1

|
At this time, the Group's foreign currency exposure covers operations jn PRC. Any fluctuation
in the exchange rate between the Philippine Peso and the RMB, PRC’s currency, will impact
the amount of its investment and related accounts. |
\
The Group regularly monitors foreign exchange rates, and any trends and changes. Mea:o,ures
are adopted to protect its investment in the event there would be significant fluctuations in the

exchange rate.
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The table below summarizes the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk. Included in the
table are the Group’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts in forﬁign currency, categorized
by currency. |

UsD RMB

Assets |

Cash and cash equivalents 1,947 8,330,362

Trade and other receivables Lo 15,434,273

Inventories i - 41,376,743

Creditable withholding tax and input value-added i

tax i —_ -

Prepayments and other current assets I~ 5,411,769
Total assets 1,947 70,553,647

Liabilities |

Trade and other payables - 59,819,614

Due to related parties = 0
Total liabilities P~ 59,819,614

Net exposure 1,947 10,734,033

|
Presented below is the sensitivity analysis to demonstrate the impact of assumed changes in
the exchange rate between the Philippine Peso and the USD and RMB with ail other factors
constant: |

June 30, 2018 Effect on Net Income | Effect on Equity
Rate of Change in Exchange Rate (inPHP) | {in PHIP)
+5.0% 5,193 4.321,289
-5.0% (5,193) | (4,321,289)
+2.5% 2,597 2,160,645
-2.5% (2,597) (2,160,645)
Interest Raie Risk

Interest rate risk atises from fluctuations in market interest rates. As of June 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, the Group does not have any re-pricing financial assets or liabilities.

Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Group may encounter difficulties in raising
funds to meet or settle its obligation at a reasonable price.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds through monitoring of financial investments
and financial assets and projected cash flows from operations. The Group’s objectives to
managg its liquidity profile are: a) to ensure that adequate funding is available at all times: b)
to meet commitments as they arise without incurring unnecessary costs; and ¢} to be able to
access funding when needed at the least possible cost. |

The Group also maintains a financial strategy that the scheduled principal and interest
payments are well within the Group’s ability to generate cagh from its business operations.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s fmaﬁcial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments. |

Upto 2103 4106 [T1012 Beyond 1
On demand 1 month months Months months Year Total
:a’;‘,:gli';d other P6,175774 PI0618,637  P96SGH  PSG0182  RI23271476B515063,465 875172008
Loans payable . 337395256 219239013 120,494,099 322966374 PEBBS9SL1 1,097,954,653

£6,175,774 D673,073,293 P220,205,577 £130,054,281 P335,293,850 P603,923 376 P1,973,726,751
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Credit rigk i
With respect to credit risk arising from the financial assets of the Group, the Group's exposure

to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty with a maximum exposure equal to the

carrying amount of these instruments. ;

a. Credit risk exposure ‘
i
The table below shows the gross maxinmum exposurs to credit ris}c of the Group as of June
30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 without considering the effects of collaterals nd other

credit risk mitigation techniques. 1

2018 2017

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6) B80,630,113 $£34,381,947
Trade and other receivables (Note 7) 186,642,258 265,935,192
Due from related parties (Note 14) 79,162,944 39,976,535
Refundable deposits 1,987,105 1,987,105

P345,422,420 342,280,779
|

b. Risk concentrations of the maximum exposure to credit risk 1

|
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engagéd in similar business
activities or activities in the same geographic region or have similar economic features that
would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by
changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative
sensitivity of the Group’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or
geographical location. Such credit risk concentrations, if not properly managed, may
cause significant losses that could threaten the Group’s financial strength and undermine
public confidence. ‘
The Group’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines :to focus on maintaining a
diversified portfolio. Tn order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, identified
concentrations of credil risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

\
i. Concentration by geographical location |

The Group’s credit risk exposures before taking into account any collateral held or
other credit enhancements, is categorized by geographic location as follows:

Philippincs Ching Total
Caslt and eash equivalents (Note 6} R13,553,622 P47,076,491 £80,630,113
Trade and other receivables (Note 7) 62,372,188 124,270,070 186,642,258
Due from related partics (Note 14) 40,414,935 38,748,000 79,162,944
Refundable deposits 1,987,105 ; 0 1,987,105

R1£8,327,850 P230,094,570 £348,422,420
\

ii. Concentration by industry ‘

i
The table below shows the industry sector analysis of the Group’s financial assets as
before taking into account any collateral held or other eredit enhancements.

|

Financial
Intermediaries and
Manulacturing | Qthers Total
Cash and cash equivalents (Nate 6) - 80,630,113 £30,630,113 -
Trade and other reccivables (Note 7) 183,396,592 3,245,666 186,642,258
Due from telated parties {(Notes 14} 36,597,426 42,565,518 7?, ; g?’,?gfsl
| - 1 1]

Refundable deposits 1,987,105
£221,981,123 R126,441,257 R348,422,420




-2
¢. Credit quality per class of financial assets

As of June 30, 2018, all of the Group’s financial assets are neither phst due nor impaired.
The table below shows the credit quality per class of financial assets; that are neither past due

nor impaired, based on the Parent Company’s rating system: |
1

Hirh Grade Stangard Grade Total

Cash and eash equivalenis {Note 6} PB,630,113 ‘ = P80,630,113
Trade and other receivables (Note 7} - 186,642,258 186,642,258
Due fom related partics (Notes14) - 79,162,944 79,162,944
Refundable depaosils - 11,987,105 1,987,105
R80,630,¢13 P267,792,307 R348,422.420

|
Capital Management |
The Group is committed to maintaining adequate capital at all times to meet shareholders’
expectations, withstand adverse business conditions and take advantage of business

opportunities,

The Group regularly monitors its capital position and assesses busmess conditions to ensure
carly detection and determination of risks, and its consequent adverse impact. The Group
adopts measures, as is deemed necessary and appropriate, to mltlgate risks.

It ais to achieve acceptable level of debt-to-equity ratio, This ratlo is calculated as total

liabilities divided by total equity. The Group’s long-term strategy 1s to sustain a healthy debt-
to-equity ratio. On a short-term basis, the Group intends to unprove substantlally this ratio as
reflected, as follows:

! Amount
Total liabilities 5 $£5,717,395,881
Total equity -672,869,649
Debt-to-equity ratio -8.50:1

The Group’s main sources of capital include but are not limited to:

a. Retained earnings, where available

b. Current earnings ‘
c. Debt i
d. Share issues

The Group will seek to generate reasonable rate of return on its capltal Corollary to this, the
Group’s dividend policy will be dictated by the level of retained earnings and ongoing

business earnings.

The Group will access the capital market when it is considered necessary As the Group grows
its business, it will retain sufficient flexibility to raise capital to support new business
opportunities, It will be prudent in its capital management. |
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6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

2017
Cash in banks 280,316,921 B 29,706,098
Cash on hand 311,451 19,596
Short-term deposits 11,741 4,656,253

£80,630,113 P34,381,947
|

Cash in banks earns interest at prevailing bank deposit rates, Short-;:erm deposits

are made for

varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the

Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates. |

7. Trade and Other Receivables

This account consists of:

2017
Trade receivables P183,396,592  $262,852,710
Others 3,245,666 3,082,482

P186,642,258 265,935,192

Treasure and ZZ Stronghold sells to customers on a cash-0n~deliver3‘r basis. The outstanding

balance of the trade receivables account pertains to 2017 and current deliveries settled by

customers with post-dated checks. These checks were subsequently deposited and cieared with
|

the banks.

8. Inventories 1

This account consists of.

2018 2017
AtNet | At Net
Realizable Realizable
At Cost Value At Cost Value
Raw materials, spare parts and

factory supplies 444,945,290  PB444,945290  B441,209,519  B292,904,064
Finished goods 90,677,320 90,677,320 | 64,520,940 64,489,360
Scrap metals 4,588,769 4,588,769 | 4,588,769 3,443,173
Work in progress 0 0 0 0
$540,211,379  $540,211,379  #510,319,228  P360,836,597

Lower of cost and net realizable |
value R540,211,379 360,836,597
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9. Creditable Withholding and Input Value-added Tax (VAT)/Prepayments and Other
|

Current Assets

Creditable Withholding and Input VAT

This account consists of:

! | 2018 2017
Input VAT | P220,028,676  $224,144,122
Creditable withholding tax i 69,451,189 69,049,815
Sub-VAT subsidy check 0 0
. Deferred input VAT —current 460,395 1,381,178
1 £289.940,260  $294,575,115
|
10. Prepayments and Other Current Assets |
This account consists of: :
|
| 2018 2017
Advances to suppliers 261,895,760 B24,523,541
Prepaid expenses 4,565,348 995,111
Refundable deposits i 0 0
i P66,461,108 P25,518,652
Advances to scrap suppliers and raw materials suppliers are applied against the purchases of
the Group when the scrap or other raw materials are received from the supplier which
normally takes five days from the timé the advance payment is made. These advances were
fully liguidated the following month,
11. Leasehold Rights

Treasure

This account consists oft

i ZZ Sironghold Treasure 2018
Cost | ‘
As at January 1 $272,771,004 P46,000,000 £318,771,004
Leaschold adjustment (55,221,839) i 0 (55,221,839)
Exchange realignment 11,062,546 ! 0 11,062,546
As at June 30, 2018 I 228,611,711 | 46,060,000 274,611,711
Accumulated Amortization |
As at January 1 64,349,686 | 23,613,333 87,963,019
Amortization during the period 2,137,698 - 920,000 3,057,698
Exchange realignment 16,871,023 | 0 16,871,023
As at June 30, 2018 i 83,358,407 | 24,533,333 107,891,740
Net book value, June 30, 2013 ! 145,253,304 P21,466,667  #166,719,971

Treasure has a Memorandum of Agrecment (MOAY) with Global Ispat Holdings, Ltd and

Globat Steclworks International, Inc. (lessors, both of whom are unrf}lated parties) whereby the
lessors agree to the complete and absolute surrender of possession of biliet making plant
located in ligan City, Lanao del Norte Philippines for a period of 25 years. The MOA was
originally entered into between a majofr shareholder of SEI (who is also a director of the Parent

|
|
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Company) and the lessors. As part of the reorganization, the major sharcholder assigned the
MOA to Treasure.

Under the terms of the MOA, Treasure shall undertake the following:

o  Fully settle and discharge all the claims, liens and encumbrances;

e Rehabilitate the billet steel making plant to adequate operating cj:ondition at its exclusive
expense; |
Commercially operate such billet steel making plant after the same has been rehabilitated
Construct and erect cost-effective and practicable civil works inj accordance with plant
specifications as may be agreed upon by Treasure and the lessors that will segregate and
isolate the billet steel making plant; and ‘

» Hold the lessors and all its directors, officers, stockholders, employees, agents and
representatives completely free from and clear of any and all real estate taxes, government
fees, levies, imposts or other charges that may be imposabie on the billet steel making
plant or any other taxes, fees, levies, imposts, charges or similar; expenses that may arise
out of or in connection with the agreement. ;

|
Treasure paid the ouistanding liens incurred by the former owners alﬁd inherited by the lessor
pertaining to the billet making plant amounting to £46.0 miltion in 2006. Such amount was
recorded as leasehold rights, ;

ZZ Stronghold |

On December 8, 2005, ZZ Stronghold entered into a contractual agreement (Agreement) with
China Merchants ZhangZhou Development Zone Co. Ltd. (China Merchants) whereby China
Merchants trapsferred the right to use the land located in 1M2-05 Zone I, China Merchants
Development Zone to ZZ Stronghold for a period of 50 years. The land is where the ZZ
Stronghold steel plant is located. ‘

Under the Agreement, ZZ Sironghold has a commitment to the localj government of Fujian
Province to develop the land in three phases, Phase 1, I and III. The total contract price for
the right to use the land totaled to RMB52.3 million which can be paid on an installment basis.

Contract amount and installment payments for each phase are as foll‘bws:
i

Particulars | Contract I* Payment in 2™ Payment in 3 P:jxymcnt in 4™ Payment in
Amount in RVMB | RMB RMB RMB RMB

Phase ] 16,334,133 5,720,000 (within | 5,720,000 (within 1 | 4,894,133
10 days aller year from contvact | (within 2 years
contract signing) | signing) from contract

signing)

Phase 11 17,578,674 1,760,000 (within | 4,390,000 (within 2 6,156,000 (within 3 | 5,278,674 (within
10 days after years from contract yearsifrom contract | 4 years from
contract signing) signing) signing) contract signing)

Phase I 18,353,793* 1,500,000 (within
10 days after
coniract signing)

The contract price for the right to use the land amounting to #318.01
million) was initially recognized at fair value amounting to #234.7 n

million {RMB 52.3
willion (RMB 33.8 million)

and was recorded as ‘leasehold rights’ in the statement of financial position. The fair value
was obtained using discounted cash flow techniques applying the market rate prevailing at the
date of agreement. The remaining liability is carried in the statement of financial position at
amortized cost using the EIR method in amortizing the related discount.

| " ..
During the first semester of 2010, China Merchants, as mandated by the Fujian Provincial
Government, made revisions in the original contract as follows: 1) the term of the lease for
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Phase 1 was reduced to forty two {42) years from fifty (50) years. ZZ Stronghold received a
refund of B9.3 million (RMB 1.4 million) during the first quarter of 2010 to reflect the shorter
lease term; 2) a portion of the land for Phase 2 (55,089.567 square meters out of the original
179,374.822 square meters.) will no longer be delivered; and 3) due to China Merchants’
inability to reclaim the land, Phase 3 land will no longer be deliveredi to ZZ Stronghold, As a
consequence of the non-delivery of a portion of Phase 2 Jand and the entire area of Phase 3, the
cost of leasehold rights was reduced by P114.0 million and the long term debt was reduced to
nil in 2010. ;

As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the land use rights with} carrying value of B 167
million and 2230 million, respectively, were pledged to secure the loans payable of ZZ5
Stronghold. !
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12. Trade and Other Payables
This account consists of:

\
12018 2017

Trade payables $612,732,997 £817,855,449
Advances from officer 0 0
Advances from customers 144,711,325 ]
Accrued Expenses 50,386,127 114,288,688
Withholding taxes payable 22,805,702 4,042,633
Others 225,442,433 18,959,611

£1,056,078,584 P955,146,381
!

13. Loans Payable 1

|
This account represents unsecured loans of the Group from local commercial banks and a local
investment house availed in 2017 maturing within one year. Details are as follow:

Qriginal Amount of Loan Amount of Loan || Source of Interest
Currency | (original currency) (in PHP) ‘ Loan Rate
TKC |PHP 337,602,442 337,602,442 1I.{mal bank | 7.00%
TSC | PHP 200,000,000 200,000,000 || Loeal bank | 7.00%
ZZS | RMB 66,000,000 531,403,377 ||Local bank | 5.16% to
: {{China) 5.43%
1,069,005,819

|
|
i
14. Related Party Fransactions :
\

Related Parties |
Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one orimore intermediaries,
control, or are controlled by, or under common control with the Group, including holding
companies, and fellow subsidiaries are related entities of the Group. IAssociates and
individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting polwer of the Group that
gives them significant influence over the enterprise, key management personnel, including
directors and officers of the Group and close members of the family of these individuals and
companies associated with these individuals also constitute related e:lltities. Transactions
between related parties are based on terms similar of those offered to non-related parties.

|
In considering each possible related entity relationship, attention is dﬁrected to the substance of

the relationship, and not merely the legal form. !
The following table shows the details of advances from/to related parties:
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2018 2017

Due from related parties ‘
Advances-Others P11,838,673 P11,838,673
Affiliates: 67,324,271 28,137,862
B79,162,944 £39,976,535

Due to related parties |
Stockholder $2,605,289,762 $2,908,917,700
Affiliates: 961,094,753 651,387,533
P3,566,384,515 £3,560,305,233

|

15. Capital Stock

Capital stock as of June 30, 2018 consists of:

Common stock - B1 par value

Authorized — 1,000,000,000 shares or £1,000,000,000
Issued and outstanding - 940,000,000 shares (see Note 2)

Capital Management

The Group is committed to maintaining adequate capital at a

$94(,000,000

expectations, withstand adverse business conditions and take advanté ge of business

opportunities.

1l times Eo meet shareholders’

The Group regularly monitors its capital position and assesses businc%ss conditions to ensure
early detection and determination of risks, and its consequent adverse impact. The Group
adopts measures, as is deecmed necessary and appropriate, to mitigate risks.

The Group regards its equity as its capital. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed

capital requirement.

16.

Cost of Sales

This account consists of

2018 2017

Direct materials P273,827,567 $£26,207,799
Energy 0 0
Depreciation and amortization 6,867,326 1,911,392
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 14,288,020 2,382,875
Spare parts and factory supplies used 2,753,623 1,367,623
Qutside services 0 0
Utilities and equipment rental 4,317,653 1,133,512
Freight and handling ¢ | 0
Fuel and ail 0 0
Licenses ] 0
QOthers 17,079,595 5,250,041
$319,133,784 = 38,253,242
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Item 2 — MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OFl RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION |

i

1
The Parent Company completed a corporate restructuring which consisted of the
following: :

1. On April 13, 2007 and June 7, 2007, the primary business pprpose was changed
from providing complete information solutions to operatingjand holding
investments in steel companies; !

2. On April 13, 2007, the SEC approved the increase in authorjzed capital stock from
P40 million to 21 billion; |

3. Capital Stock was increased from £25 million to #705 million;

4. On April 30, 2007, it acquired 90% equity interest in ZZ Str:ongho Id (ZZ8), a
company located in China; i

5. On June 29, 2007, it acquired 96% equity interest in Treasmj‘e, a company located
in the Philippines. }

|
In addition to Steps 1 to 5, above, the SEC approved the change} in the corporate name
from SQL*Wizards, Inc. to TKC Steel Corporation. The Parent Company was originally
registered as SQL*Wizards, Inc. with the primary purpose of providing complete
information solutions, |

As disclosed in Note 1 of the consolidated financial statements, SEll (the immediate parent
company) intended TKC to be a backdoor listing vehicle for its investments in the steel
business. Consistent with the provisions of Philippine Financial Reporting Standard
(PFRS) 3, the acquisition of TKC was accounted for as a reverse acquisition as the
arrangement was for Treasure Steelworks and ZZS to be “acquh¢d” by a smaller public
entity as a means of obtaining a stock exchange listing. Legaily, TKC, as the issuing
public entity is regarded as the parent company. From an accounting perspective,
Treasure and ZZS are considered the “acquirers” since they have the power to govern the
_ financial and operating policies of TKC. The acquisition or transff;;rs of Billions (together
with ZZ Stronghold) and Treasure Steelworks (TSC) were considered business
reorganization of companies under common control. Accordingly, the acquisitions or
transfers were accounted for in a manner similar to the pooling-of-interests method.

|

The Group registered a net loss of 71 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018
versus a net loss of 280 million for the same period last year. The Group however posted
a positive gross profit of 71 million as of the first six months of 2018 compared to the
positive gross profit of 29 million for the same period in 2017. The consolidated sales of
the Group significantly increased by $373 million or 718% from 480 million last year to
_ £390 miltion this year. This was brought about by 7ZS’s increase of 489% in sales

volume to 10,259 metric tons from 1,742 metric tons a year ago, Also ZZ3 production
volume increased by 192% to 10,433 mefric tons as compared to| 3,573 metric tons from
for the same period last year. ZZS’s equivalent sales for the first six months went up also
by 476% to Rmb37 million as compared to Rmb7 million of same period last year. TSC
registered no sales revenue comparable to the same period last ycaii' duc to nil sales volume

and production as a result of the prevailing power shortage in Mindanao
1
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The Group’s financial condition remains stable with a slight increase of 7.6% in the
consolidated total assets from B 4,688 million at year-end 2017 to 5,044 million as of
June 30, 2018. The Company’s property, plant and equipment iﬁcrwsed by 6.47% or B
220 million from B3,405 million at year-end 2017 to 3,625 million. The appreciation in
the balances was primarily due to a favorable effect of the currency translation adjustment.

|
Stockholders® equity improves by 25.13% or B226 million to a deficit of 672 million as
of June 30, 2018 against the level of negative 898 million at year-end 2017. The
appreciation in capital base was primarily attributable to the effect }of a favorable currency
translation adjustment of 8299 million. |
Total liabilities increased by 2130 million from £5,586 million to £5,717 million or 2,34%
higher over the December 31, 2017, The increase in total 1iabi1itie$ was due to renewal in
bank loans, deposit received, accounts payable-others and taxes payable.

|

Causes of major movements in financial statements

|
Balance Sheet Items i
|

(June 2018 vs. December 2017)
\

Cash_and cash equivalents — 134% increased from B34 mil!ioﬂ to P81 million
|

* Cash and cash equivalents went up by #46 million in the normal course of day to day
operation and partial liquidation of trade receivables by 279 million.

|
Trade and other receivables —29% decreased from B266 million to B187 millien
Trade receivables significantly decreased by 279 million that was a;ttributable to ZZ8
improved sales activity and liquidation of trade receivable and collection in the other

receivables account, |
|

Inventories — 49% increased from 2360 million to #540 mil]ion3
\
The level of inventories significantly went up by B179 million atiributable to a combined
increased in factory supplies and finished goods inventory by BI163 million due to
improved sales activity of ZZS. ;

Creditable Withholding/Input VAT —1.57% slightly decreased} from 295 million_to
290 million ‘

The amount represents input vat and tax withheld by our bustomers. Creditable
withholding remains constant at £69 million while Input Vat slightly decreased by B4.0

" million from last year due to the low level of local purchases as 2 :result of slower activity
in operation. ;

Prepayments and other current assets — 160% increased from P26 million to P66
' |

million |
|

The increase was due to prepaid expenses of $62 million but these were slightly offset by
the liquidation of B25 million in other advances from suppliers. |
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|
Property and equipment, net — 6.47% increased from B3.404 million to 3.625
million §

|

The increase of B220 million was primarily attributable to a favorajble currency translation
adjustment. |

Trade and other payables —~10% increased from B955 million t3 B1.056 million

The increase of 8101 million in trade and other payables was attl%ibutable to increases in
deposits received for £144 million and accounts payable-others for 207 million and other
payables however there were significant liquidation in trade payabl‘e and accrued expenses

for #8205 million and £64 million respectively.

Long-term debt — Nil |
Current — Nil \

i
This account pertains to the net present value of the leasehold rigﬂt on the land where the

manufacturing plant of ZZ Stronghold is situated. |

Due to related parties —0.17% inereased from B3.560 to ¥3,566 million

There was no significant activity in the due to related accounts. This account pertains to
funding and advances from affiliates to finance the operating expenses of the group.

Equity ~25% appreciate from (® 898) million to { ROT2) millioﬂ
|

Capital position improves although still in a deficit status recoverjed to a deficit of 2672
million for the first six months of 2018 compared to a deficit of 898 million as at year
end of 2017 as a result of a favorable currency translation adjustment of 299 million.
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Income Statement Items
(YTD June 2018 vs, YTD June 2017)

Revenue/Sales — 718% increased from 47 million to 390 million
Revenue for the first six months of 2018 was significantly higher by P343 million for the
same petiod a year ago due to improved sales and production of ZZS by 489% and 192%

respectively. ‘

Cost of sales —*734% increased from B38 million to 319 millioh

Consolidated cost of sales significantly increased by £280 million that was also
attributable and comparable to ZZS significant increase in productlon and sales revenues.

Qther operating expense —112% increased from P49 million to‘ 104 million

The other operatmg expenses increased by B35 million as a result of improved sales and
operating activities in ZZS. !

Finance cost -6% decreased from P40 million to 38 million

The net decrease in finance charges by B2 million was due to the 3impact of the market to
market conditions of certain accounts.

Income tax expense — 11299 increased from $0.005 million to P nil million

The level of income tax was comparable in terms of nominal valuje both for 2017 and this
year. '




Key Performance Indicators:
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The Group’s key performance indicators (consolidated figures) are as follow:

YTD Jun. 30,2018

Revenue Growth (%) 718 %
Gross Profit Margin (%) 18 %
Basic Earnings per share 1/ -0.07
Asof
Jun. 30, 2018
Current Ratio 2/ 0.22
Debt-to-Equity Ratio 3/ -8.5
Return on Equity (%) 4/ 9.07%

|
XTD Jun. 30, 2017

“72%
20.00 %

-0.08

December 31, 2017
0.18
-6.22

i
|
|
1 As of
|
| 1.61%

1/ Net income apﬁlicable to majority shareholders / weighted average of outstanding common

shares

2/ Tatal current assets / total current liabilities

3/ Total liabilities / equity

4/ Net income / total equity (average)

- OTHER MATTERS

a. There were no known trends, demands or uncertainties that will have a material impact on the
Group's liquidity. The Group does not anticipate any cash flow or liquidity problems within
the next twelve (12) months and is not at default or breach of any note, loan, lease or other
indebtedness or financing arrangement requiring it to make payments. No significant amounts
of trade payables have been unpaid within the stated (rade terms,

i
b. There are no known trends, or events, uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income

from continuing operations nor any events ¢
obligation that is matetial to the Group, including any

hat will trigger direct or c:ontingent financial
default or acce‘Ieration of an obligation.

c. There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements cbligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationship of the Group with unconsolidated entities or
other persons created during the reporting period.

d. There were no seasonal aspects that had a material impact on the financial condition or results
i

of operations of the Group.

e. Any material commitments for capital expenditure:

The Parent Company conducted a Follow-On Offering on November 23, 2007 that raised
gross proceeds of 2,275 million to finance expansion and devclopn:ient plans of its two (2)
subsidiaries, Treasure Steelworks and ZZ Stronghold. |

£ There were no significant elements of income or loss that did not ari
continuing operations except as presented in the Management Discussion and Analysis.

se from the registrant’s
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PART H - OTHER INFORMATION

Financial Soundness Indicators

CURRENT /LIQUIDITY RATIO
Current assets

June 30, 2018

1,243,048,062

1December 31,2017

1,021,224,038

Return on Equity

Current liabilities 5.691.468.918 5.563.739.329
Current Ratio 0.22 0.18
SOLVENCY RATIO |
Net loss before depreciation and amortization (53,743,855) (826,743,089)
Total ljabilities 5,717.395.881 5.586.730.924
Solvency Ratio (0.01) (0.15)
DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO
Total liabilities 5,717,395,881 586,730,924
Total equity (672.869.649) (898,723.113)
Debt to Equity Ratio (8.50) {6.22)
ASSET TO EQUITY RATIO
Total assets 5,044,526,232 4,688,007,811
Total equity (672.862.649) (898.723.113)
Asset to Equity Ratio (7.50) (5.22)

" INTEREST COVERAGE RATIO 1
Earnings before interest and taxes (33,161,427) (802,971,167)
Interest Expenses 38,082,509 63,809,500
Interest Caverage Ratio 0.87) (12.57)
PROFITABILITY RATIO |
Net Loss (71,248,829) (860,601,711)
Average equity (785.796,382) (534.523.400)

0.09 1.61
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SIGNATURE
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